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L E ‘ I ’ T E K  f r a l r n  t h e  C I I A I K M A N  

f i e  CHALLENGES of2004 - Our SUCCESSES and Our DISAPPOINTMENTS 

Let’s start with our successes. a Our new Small Business Package was well received in 

Our new branch in Newtown Square, Penmylvania, 

whch opened in January 2004, €ar exceeded expectations and 

t i d e d  the year with m r  $21 million of depositts. Credit goes 

to our manager, Barb Newcomer, and her caring staff. 

Our eighth U-senice okcc  is scheduled to open in 

March 2005 in Exton, BnnsyIvania. We have an exceuent site 

at the corner of Route N O  and Swedesford h a d ,  which asfords 

u9 superb vdilib, access and egress, all o! &ch are crucial for 

a successM branch o€€ice. 

We are close to U i n g  a re-location of our 

Wynnood  o&ce to a nearbx but far superior, site. Thv 

new location should enable u8 to grow that o&ce at a much 

€aster pace. 

In 2004, the Bank had a Btrong increase in loam 

(+12%) deposits (+14%), and total Corporation assets 

(+13%). 7h_18 wag a redt of an active sdes cultUre as we1 as 

a client retention rate far abm industry averages. 

Our WJth  Management Division had another soLd 

year with revenues up 6% and pmktabhy up 9%. T ~ I E  follow 

2003 where the figures were 11% and 21% rwpcctiwly. In 

a&tion, we were able to recruit John Pickcring to head up 

thm area. Before joining Bryn Maw Trust, John had been a top 

exmtiw with the pre*imw private bank, Brown Brothers 

fIarriman. 

the marketplace, witL chechg accounte and loans for ths 
important constituency increasing sharply. Our lowcod, and in 

many cases free, package incluhg a checking account, a line of 

credit, a credit card, a dekt card, and computer b&g, is the 

best of€ering of any bank in the entire FLiIadeIphia area. 

Our stock price held up relatively well during 2004 

despite our earnings results. Over the past four years we have 
seen the Corporation’s stock rise &om $10.56 per share 

(adjusted for stock-splits) to $21.99 at year-end 2004, 

an appreciation of 108%. 

Now, f o r  thc ~isappoi-ntrnents. ....................... -..- .................................................................................. . 

Our net income and earnings per share were below 

our normal levels of profidjlib. The conhence of three 

€actors caused this to hppen. 

Errst, the low level of sLort-term intereat rates 

thoughout &e year greatly impacted our net interest income. 

We began to get some relief towards the end of the year as the 

Federal Reserve s t a d  to increase interest rates. We should see 

the M1 benelit., however, in 2005. 

Second, the residenZmI refinancing boom ended and 

our mortgage division processed L €ewer loans for resale into 

the secondary marketplace. If you look at the Lne “gaiu on 

sale of loans” on our income statement, you d see the large 

variance mer the prior yeax 



R R Y N  M A W R  ~ A N K  

h d ,  provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley legislation 

mandated certain actions by all public companies, includmg 

the Ranks parent company, .By Maw Bank Corporation. 

Our compLance costs for Sarbanes-oxley alone were over 

$410,000 in a c t d  cash and over 8,000 horn of ow s&’s 

time. Fortunately, &e bur& of complying with this legislation 

going forward d be lcss oncrms. 

While some banks might have been satisfied with ow 

results, we c e . t d y  were not. I anticipate a sharp improvement 

in our financial performance in 2005 as shod-term interest 

rates rise, as our Weah Management Division maintains its 

growth pattern, and as we continue our close control on 

overhead expenses. 

h always, I would like to thank the Corporation’s 

Directors for their dedication and hard work. Wth the recent 

changes in corporate gtmmance and regulatory owmight, their 

participation and coiicrihut;ons are more important than ever. 

Thank you for your suppod and lor being a 

shareholder of die Corporation. 

Ted Petem 

Chairman and Chid Executive Officer 
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C ~ n s o l i d ~ t e d  F I N A N C I A L  ............................................................................................................................... H I G H L I G H T S  .................................................................................................. 
(D&s in thowon& except per share amounts) 

2004 2003 Change 

I:OR THE YEAR 

Net interest income 

OAer income 

Other expeiises 

Income Lorn continu i rig operations 

Net income 

$26,828 $24,931 8 "/o 
19,794 26,511 -26 
31,625 33,437 -5 

9,345 11,212 -12 
9,345 9,356 0 

hl YkAR-LNI) 

Total assets 

Total net loans 

Total deposits 

Shareholders' equity 

FER CC )MMON SXlhK1: 

Hasic earnings per common share from 

Diluted earnings per Cominoii share Loin 

Basic cariiirigs per coniinon ahare 

Diliitcd earnings per common skate 

Jlividends declared 

Hook value 

Closing price 

continuing operation 

continuing operation 

S F I  1 2 L T l X )  IRATI( )S* 

$682,946 $604,848 13 % 
552,620 495,246 12 
600,965 527,139 14 

11,238 67,382 6 

$1.09 $1.30 -16 % 

1.06 1.28 -17 

1.09 1.08 
1.06 1.06 
.40 .40 

8.29 1.11 
21.99 24.10 

1 
0 
0 
2 

-9 

Return on average assets 

Return on average shareholders' equity 

*Selected ratios are based on inconic from coriliriuing opcralions. 

1.45 % 
13.62 

1.98 % 
17.76 

.................................................................................................................. S i g n i f i c a n t  C O R P O R A T E  H I G H L I G H T S  ................................................................... ... 

Expanding our footprint 

Special focus on sma l l  business initiative 

Strong growth in loans and &sits 

New resi$entiaI mortgage strategies 

Media recognition of eqmtise o l  BMT weJtL pro[eessionaL. 
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SHAREHOLDERS' 

(Dollurs in millionons) 
EQ~JITY 

EARNINGS PER COMMON STOCK 
COMMON SHARE FROM MARKET VALUE 

CONTINUING OPERATIONS (Dollars per share) 
(Uollars) 

COMMON STOCK 

(Uollaw per share) 
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During 2004, we f d  ocuse on expanding an d upgrading our branch o&ce 
networ k an d k d  a ea y we are seeing positive results. 

A s  the year 2004 began, we were in the fmal 

construction phase of the handsome edifxe that now gems as 

our Newtown Square olLce. AB 2004 drew to a close, the 

L s h m g  touches to the major renovation project were being 

accompbhed at our newest hil i ty in Exton. 

The opening o l  our N d o w n  Square office was 

extremely successful oil all counts. First year business volume 

has far exceeded cxpectatioiw. Ths is a testament to the 

continued importance of convenient neigboAood banking and 

to the dedication and drlgence of the branch okce s d .  The 

puLlic at large to the hwtorical signkcance of th. 1s area. 
The acquisition of an office site in Exton and its 

complete renovation is $40 becoming an exciting project. A 

rather pdesixian functional Mdmg has been transformed into 

a sttriking landmark SA in *le to the Newtown Square 

LJdmg. The office is expected to open for business in March 

and grand opening' festivities wJl be scheduled throughout the 

spring. 

As in Ncwtown Square, groundwork is already 

underway to weave Bryn Maw Trust into the entire &ric OS 

Our conueniently 

located branch 

ofices pmvide 
true neighborhood 
banking. 

award-winning buildmg itself has been hailed as a d e L t e  

enhancement to the Newtown Square business area. The 

commissioning of the painting "New~nwn Square Station" by 

local artist Nick Santoleri heightened for the local residents 

their appreciation of their heritage and drew attention Lorn the 

the community: the large corporate presence, the cvm-expanding 

smal l  business conmunib and the rapidly expanding rcsidcntial 

conmmity. Our goal is to mure the fiscal soundness of 

hwineuses, individuals and future generations. Negcrtiations are 

also in progress to acquire a bcttcr 8trategic location for 

P A G E  6 



H K Y N  M A W K  B A N K  C O K P O R A T I O N  

the community now s e d  ly our office in ~ynllewmd. 

Our eff ods have not been Luted to enhancing our 

physical environment. BJdmg for the future encompasses 

an element even more important than our p h y d  plant. 

O u r  OBSESSION i s  
to  PROVIDE 

SUPERB PERSON& 
SERVICE t o  
our CLIENTS 

Strategies have been put in place to enable Bryn Mawr Trust to 

continue to Le a Lgh-performing Lmncial institution. 

Our intention is to continue to colicenhate on our 

four core competencies - wealth management services, 

business hanking, value-aded retail hanking and redmtial 

mortgage b&ig. Above all, we wJ maintain our commitment 

to high d u e s ,  integrib, teamwork and respect for our clients, 

our feuow workers and the community at large. 



Group Vce President Regina R Kemery i6 dedicated to 

alerting the small business Community to our excellent 
package of seruices tailor-made to meet their financial needs. 

Our all-inclusive platlorn o f services 
is extreme 1 1 1  y we receive d 

Our small business b&g team, &ch includes all 

of our branch managers and is headed up by seasoned bankmg 

professional Regina Kemery, Las initiated a massive calling 

efLrt to acquaint s d  businesses with our s d l  h ines s  

package - a platform of services hrgt introduced in the spring 

of 2003. The team memLers have L o m e  intricately involved 

with the Lusiness community, actively participating in local 

hiisiness organizations and establishing themselves as the 

ddinitive resoime for business financial information. Their 

C L t S  have heen extremely SLICCeSsful. 

To comnplement &e services included in the s m a l l  

business package, and to enable our small business chn t  to 

respoiirl quickly to customer needs and effectively manage the 

button1 linc, Bryll Mawr Trust recently introduced the Rryn 

Mawr Trust Productivity Card for Business. 

At year-end 20@, Bryll Mawr Trust made 

arrangements to introduce a forum of educat-ionsl programs 

on topics of interest to the small business owner. The fmt 

program, which was held in Janilary of 2005, adressed tlie 

retirement planning issues that d impact financial support 

of senior business members in rctircmcnt. It also dressed 

knancial support of the managing generation, as well as the 

BUCCCS~M uperation of the business. 



B R Y N  M A W K  B A N K  C O R F O R A T I O N  

.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... C O N S I S T E N T  E F F O R T  P A Y S  O F F  

The Bank enjoyed strong growth 
in total outstanding loans and a 
healthy increase in deposits. 
............................................................................................................ 

Advances in business must be sustained by thc solid 

depenule effort of dedicated B& members consistently 

providing tlie backbone upon which a strong h a n d  footing is 

bascd. Ths is best exemplified Ly the untiring eff0rt.s og our 

commercial lenders, commercial real estate lendem and the con- 

sumer lending team. The L t s  of their outreach and attention 

to tlie client Lve produced a healthy increase in loans as well as 

dcposits and a firm roster of dedicated and loyal clients. We get 

to know our clients, their financial goals and pride our~elvcs on 

helping them attain thcsc goals. 

REACHING O U T  t o  r s a h ~  

GET TO KNOW 
our  CLIENTS 

To reinforce the importance of focusing on the ne& 

of the client, a company-wide referral program was instituted in 

2001. Our s d  seeks to cultivate e x p a n u  relationships with 

exis.l.ing clients by lcaming ag much as p o s d e  about each 

individual’s LnciaJ. situation. A discussion of the many 

scrviccs that the hank has to offer is encouraged. In 2004, a 

total of 2,222 r d e d s  were generated &ou& h program. 

... 

.... 

,., 

Commercial Banking Group VCQ President George M .  Tcplica 
serues on the planning committee for expanding our commercial 

business in the Newtown Square and Exton communities. 

P A G E  9 
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.................................................................................................................................................................................................... R E S I I I E N T I A L  M O R T G A G E  M A R K E T  C H A L L E N G E  -.---.--------.--..--.--.--.--...--... .... ... 

New strategies, new d imensions an d 
new faces are being brought into play. 

Recent/# appointed Brp Mawr Trust ECQ President 
Susan S. Shute, a mal estate ucteran, and HMT 
Mortgage President M p o n  €I. Hcaden, a long-term 

Hryn Mawr Trust stafl member. 

In 2004, there were two major challenges facing our 

Residentml Modgage team. One was the unexpected departure 

of BMT Mortgage's three senior officers. Even more dramatic 

was the collapse ol the residentlal rehancing boom. 

Myron Headen, an 18-year Bryn Mawr Trust veteran, 

was appointed President of BMT Mortgage Company. Assisted 

by senior staff members, he has expertly led the residential 

mortgage lending team throughout t h s  troubled time. Our 

We're KNOWN f o r  o u r  

SOLID EXPERIENCE 
and  SUPERIOR 

SERVICE 
advertising effort in this area has been greatly beeied up, and 

a 3O-year real estate industry veteran has come on hoard. 

An innovative new &ategy for attracting new 

mortgage business is in h e  process of being implemented. 

Negotiations were star ted for the lormation ol a iicw BMUC 

mhsi&ry, whereby RMT Mortgage would handle the mortgage 

financing needs of a major agency, KJe r  WIIiams Main b e  

b a l k .  



~ K Y N  M A W R  R A N K  C O R P O R A T I O N  

WE A L T  1-1 M A  N A  G E M E N T S t r e  n g t 22 e n s L E A D E R s H I P . ....................................................... 1 ....................................................... ..................................................................................................... 

A key a h s t r a t i v e  eAancement in 2OM was the 

implementation of a new Wed& Management accounting 

system. The conversion to the new Bystem was a major e f L t  

for the entire Wealth Management Division and Trust 

Operations staff. Clients now reap the benekt oi an eaay-to- 

undemtand statement and a secure on-line internet Bystem k t  

allows access to real-time account inlormation. &o, they now 

have &e ability to monitor unrealized gains and losses on-he.  

In recognition of the importance of wealth 

management and trust services as a key ingredient for 

sustained business growth, John Fickering was chosen to head 

up the Wealth Management Division. Mc Pickering comes to 

B y  Maw Trust after a long and suclcessM tenire at Brown 

&others 1 Iarriman in Phhdelphia, Fa. 

In August of 2004, Karen A. Fahrner, Esquire joined 

the Wealth Management Division as Senior Vice President and 

head of Trust &ation. She has over 30 years experience 

in the trust and egtate field. She was a partner at the law kmi, 

PeLno 8 Lentz, P.C. in PhiIaddph. A member of the 

Penn&ania and Florida Bars, she is the author of a hgMy 

regarded treatisc on Pennaylvania trwt and estate law. 

During 2004, the Employee Benefit Department of 

the WeaIth Management Division wa8 rmamed &e "Retirement 

Executive Wee Pmaidcnt. John Pickering has overseen Wealth 
Maltagement's continued growth and increased revenue. 

P A G E  J 1 



T I I F !  Y E A R  i n  R E V I B W  2 0 0 4  

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... A T R U S T E D  S O U R C E  of F I N A N C I A L  I N F O R M A T I O N  

Services Depdrnent” to more accurately reflect the services 

this group oKers to clients. Bryn Mawr Trust’s Retirement 

Services Depdment offers a complete range of services for 

O u r  CLIENTS 
EXPECT the m o s t  

D I S C E R N I N G  ADVICE & 
GUIDANCE. 

A n d  THEY GET IT. 
group retirement plans. ?he Retirement Services Department 

is a h  responshle for Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation’s ‘lhnft 8 

Savings Plan, Deked Bench Pension Plan, Deferred Bonus 

Plan for executives, and the DeLred Payment Plan for 

directors. 

The Weal& Management Division continued its 

scrics of informational and educational programs !or the legal 

community, CPb, clients and the public at large. One o l  the 

most we1 received program was held in October 2004 on the 

subject of Managing an Inheritance. Two distinguished guest 

speakers offered their perspectives on the h a i c i a l  and 

emotional issues involved wich the inter-generational transfer 

of wealth. 

senior HCQ f)resident Khren A. Fuhrner brings 30 years 

uf experience in the trust and estate field tu her position 

as head of Trust Admin;ntration. 

................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 

P A G E  1 2  
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............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. M A K I N G  N A T I O N A L  N E W S  

Our Portfolio Managers an d 
Wealth Consultants have become a 
much-sought-aker source for their 
Lancial commentary, perspective 
and expert advice. 

O n  A p d  15,2004, Bryn Maw Bank Corporation 

celebrated its Z& consecutive year on the NASDAQ 

Exchange, and 115 years of Blyn Maw Trust’s dedication and 

service to the PMadelphia region with Ted h r s  presiding over 

the NASDAQ opening bell ceremonies. The Bryn Mawr Trust 

Company, which opened for bwinws in 1889, was accepted as 

a rncmber of the NASDAQ National Market in 1985. 

E f f d v e  January 2, 1982, Bryn Maw Bank Corporation was 

RE G u LAR LY 

FEATURED 
o n  TELEVISION, RADIO 

& FINANCIAL MEDIA 

formed a6 a bar& holding company witL The Bryn Maw T m ~ t  

Company 

Fox News, CNN l-I&e News and BLOOMBERG USA, 

a wL& owned mbsidiaxy. CNN, CNBC, CNNL, 

_ _  
among others, aired the opening ceremonies. 

Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation dominates ?;mes Square 
during NXSDAQ Opening Ceremonp. Brgn Mawr Trust’s 
poi$folio managers and wealth consultants have become 

national!y recognized for their expertise and oalued opinions. 

P A G E  1 3  
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C o R P O  R A T E  I N F  o R M A T I  O N  ....................................................... - .... ---.--.--.--.--.--.--..-..... 

~ . X ) l ~ ~ ’ O l ~ T l ~  Illf.A.l)QUA Kl’F RS 

801 Lancaster Avenue 
Bryn Mawr, Pennsylvania 19010-3396 
610-525-1700 
m. bmtc.com 

I )I RI3 C’T( )I< S 

Warren W. Deakins 
Self-mployed, Insurance Sales 

Andrea F. Gilbed 
President, Bryn Mawr Hospital 

William Harrd, I11 
Chairman, C&D Technologies. Inc.; President, the Barra 
Foundation 

Wendell R Holland 

Francis J .  Leto 
Partner, Celli and Lelo, LLF] Attorneys at Law: President, The 
Brandywne Abstract Companies 

Frederick C. “Ted” Peters TI 
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Offfcer, Eryn M a w  
Bank Corporation and The Eryn Mawr Trust Company 

James J. Smart 
Managing Partner, Smart and Associates, LLC: a certified 
public accounting firm 

Chairman, Pennsylvania Public Utilities Commission 

R. Loyal1 Taylor, J .  

Nancy J. Uckers 
President, Bryn Mawr College 

Thomas A. Williams 
Hebred, formerly Wce President, Secretaryflreasurer, 
Houghton International, Inc. 

President, Taylor Gifts. Inc. 

bl ARTCPT bl/\KII RS 

Boenning 8 Scattergood 
Citigroup Global Markets 
FTN Midwest Securities Corp. 
Goldman, Sachs 8 Co. 
IN, Thompson, Magid 8 Coe 
Jaiiney Montgomery LLC 
Lefe,  Bruyette 8 Woods Inc. 
Knight E uity Markets, L.P. 

Merrill Lynch, Pierce Fenner b Smith 
Moors 8 Cahot, Inc. 
Morgan Stanley Q Co., Inc. 
Ryan Beck Q Co., Inc. 
Susquehanna Capital Group 
UBS Capital Markets L.P. 

McConne Y I Budd @ nowncs 

PRIN(’Il’AI El~HSll)IhKY 

The Bryn Mawr Trust Company 
A Subsidiary of Bryn M a w  Bank Corporation 

1:XTZC ITTTVT; > lANAGI :MI~N 1 

Frederick C. “Ted Peters 11* 

Alison E. Cere 
Execubve Wce President, Support Division, Administration 
and Operations 

Joseph G. Keefer 
Executive Wce President, Credit Division, and Chief 
Lending Offfcer 

John Pickering 
Executive Wce President, Wealth Management Division 

Joseph W. RebP 
Executive fice President, finance Division, Corporate 
Treasurec and Chief Financial Omcer 

Robert J. Kicciardi* 
Executive Wce President, Retail Banking, Chief Credit 
Policy Offfcer and Corporate Secretary 

*Alp” ~ l L r  O[ the C O ~ W ~ , , , ~  

13lUN(’II 01’1 1C’I-S 

801 Lancaster Avenue 
Bryn Mawr, Pennsylvania 19010 
232 Nodh Pottstown Pike 
Exton, Pennsylvania 19341 

18 West Eagle Road 
Havertown, Pennsylvania 19083 
3601 West Chester PAe 
Newtown Square, PA 19073 
39 West Lancaster Avenue 
Paoli, Pennsylvania 19301 
330 East Lancaster Avenue 
Wayne, Pennsylvania 19087 
One Tower Brid e 
West Con8hohoc 1 en, 
Pennsylvania 19428 
312 East Lancaster Avenue 
Wynnewood, Pennsylvania 19096 

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Offfcer 

W I ~ A I ~ I ’ I  1 hWAC;JIMI‘NT ~)TVTSTON 

10 South Bryn Mawr Avenue 
Bryn Mawr, Pennsylvania 19010 
l,lM1TFi) SERVICT o l ~ l ~ l ~ ’ l ~ s  

Beaumont at Bryn M a w  Retirement 
Community 
Rryn Mawr, Pennsylvania 

BeUingham Retirement Living 
West Chester, Pennsylvania 

Martins Run Life Care Community 
Media, Pennsylvania 

Rosemont Presbyterian Vdage 
Iiosemont, Pennsylvania 

The Quadrangle 
Haverford, Pennvlvania 

Waverly Heights 
Gladwe,  Pennsylvania 

White Horse Village 
Newtown Square, Pennsylvania 

OTIIER SIJI<SII)IARICS ANr) 
I- I N ANC‘ 1 A I ,  S F l iV IC’ E S 
BMT Mortgage Company 
A Division of Ihc Bryn Mawr Irust Company 
Bryn Mawr, Pennsylvania 
Myron H Headon. Presiderrl 

BMT Settlement Services, Inc. 
A Subsidiary of The Eryn Mawr Trust Company 
Bryn Mawr, Pennsylvania 
Joseph G Keefer. Chairman 
Myron H Headon, President 

Insurance CounseIIoIcs of Bryn 
Mawr, Tnc. 
A Subsidiary of The Eryn Mawr Trust Company 
Bryn Maw6 Pennsylvania 
Thomas F Drennan, President 

P A G E  1 4  
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ANNCJAJ. MFETING 

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders 
of B n M a w  Bank Corporation w;U 
he herd in The Gregg Conference 
Center at The American College, 
Bryn Mawr, Pennsylvania, on 
Tuesday, April 19,2005, at 2:OO p.m. 

A I  I nrToRs 

KPMG LLP 
I601 Market Street 
Philadelphfa, Pennsylvania 19103-2499 

JL)-:GA[ t 'OIJNSFI 

Monteverde, McAIee b Hurd, PC. 
One Penn Centerat Suburban Station 
1617 John F Kennedy Boulevard 
suite 15w 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 191 03-1815 

SI'( )C'K 1 ,[STING 

Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation 
common stock is traded over-the- 
counter and is listed on the 
NASDAQ National Market 
System under the symbol BMTC. 
iWRM IO-K 

A copy of the Corporation's Form 
10-K, including financial statement 
schedules as Med with the Securities 
and Exchan e Commission. i s  
available wit$out charge to 
shareholders upon written request to 
Robert J. bcciardi, Secretary, Blyn 
M a w  Bank Corporation, 801 
Lancaster Avenue, Bryn Mawr, 
Penns lvania 19010-3396, or via 
e -mal t0  bricciardi@bmtc.com. 

I-QITAL EM' l  OYME:,NT 
OPPORTIIN I'IY 

The Corporation continues its 
commitment to e a1 opportunity 

discriminate against minorities or 
women with respect to recruitment, 
hiring, training, or promotion. It is 
the policy of the Corporation to 
corn ly voluntarily with the practices 
of Affirmative Action. 

l<I;GTSTMK Q TMNSFEK AGENT 

Mellon Investor Services L.L.C. 
PO Box3315 
South Hackensack, NJ 07606 
w rnellonmvestpr corn 

employment and T oes not 

P R I C E  R A N G E  of S H A R E S  
........................................................................................................................................................................................... --.-.--...... .................. ------.--............. 

Dividend 
High Bid Low Bid Declared 

. ~- .. .~ 2004 ~ ~ l G l l - L O W  QlJ0'lilllC)NS ._ 

First quarter $ 24.26 $21.50 $ 0.10 
Second quarter 23.23 19.30 0.10 
Third quarter 22.82 19.61 0.10 
Fmrth quarter 22.55 19.10 0.10 

First quarter $ 19.19 $ 12.08 0.10 
Second quarter 20.50 17.39 0.10 
Third quader 21.81 18.50 0.10 
Fourth quarter 25.07 20.00 0.10 

2003 I IIGI I-Low Qr JO'M I'IONS 

Tlie approximate number of registered holders of record of common stock ae of December 31, 2004 was 310. 
The sharee are traded on the over-the-counter market, and the price information wag obtained horn TLe National Association of 
Securities Dealers (NASD). 

P A G E  1 5  
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BUILT UPON 
*- 

a UNIQUE HERITAGE 
of over 115 YEARS 

of SERVICE EXCELLENCC, 
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Selected Financial Data 

For thc years cnded I~ccembrr 31, 
(in rholotmdv, t'xct'p6 for vhart- rrndper vhnre datn) 

2UU4 2003* 2002* 2001* 2000* 

lntcrcst income ................................... $ 31,381 9; 29,261 $ 29,412 $ 30,311 $ 31,985 

Net intcrcst income ....................................... 26,828 24,93 1 24,028 24,009 24,9 13 
Loan loss provision ........................................................ 900 750 1,000 1,200 250 

Interest expense ......................................... 4,553 4,330 4,484 6,302 7,072 

Net interest incomc dtcr  loan loss provision ................. 25,928 24,181 23,928 22,809 24,663 
............................................................... 19,794 26,577 23,899 18,846 15,322 
.................................. 31,625 33,437 3 1,642 28,109 27,854 

Income before income taxcs and discontinued operation 14,097 17,321 16,185 13,450 12,131 
Applicable income tuxes ............................................................................. 4,752 6,049 5,543 4,524 4, I37 

Income from continuing operations ............................................................ 9,345 1 1,272 10,642 8,032 7,994 
(Loss) income from disconti nucd opcrations ................. (1,916) (435) 

Net Income .................................................................... ................ $ 9,345 $ 9,356 9; 10,207 $ 9,126 $ 8,261 

- I94 267 

Per shwe &L~L 

sharc from continuing operations: 
............................................... !$ 1.09 $ 1.30 9; 1.22 9; 1.03 $ 0.93 
............................................................................ !$ 1.06 $ 1.28 $ 1.20 $ 1.00 9; 0*90 

Basic ................................................................................................. !$ 1.09 $ 1.08 $ 1.17 $ 1.05 $ 0.96 
.................................. !$ 1.06 $ 1.06 $ 1.15 $ 1.02 9; 0.93 

............................................................... $ 0.40 $ 0.40 $' 0.38 $ 0.36 $ 0.34 

Weighted-averagc sharcs outstanding ............................ ........................ 8,610,171 8,657,527 8,706,390 8,651,040 8,585,676 
Dilulive potential common sharcs .................................................... 170,545 158,543 130,020 254,180 322,816 

Earnings per common share 

Adjusted weightcd-avcragc sharcs .................................................... 8,780,716 X,8 16,070 8,836,4 I O  8,905,220 8,908,492 

At Decernlier 31, 

( I n  tliouscmd~) 

2UU4 2003 2002* 200 I * 2000* 

..................................... $ 682,946 $' 604,848 $ 577,242 $ 476,823 $' 444,424 

............................................................... 628,754 547,637 520,562 427,805 389,053 
Deposils ........................... .................................................... hO0,Y 65 527,130 483,620 391,059 386,966 
Shareholders' cquity .................................................................................... 71,238 67,382 62,601 57,307 50,970 
Ratio ofcquity to asscts ... .................................. IO.43Yo 11.14% 10.85%l 12.02% I 1.47% 
Loans scrviccd for othcrs ............................................................................ 507,421 797,326 631,105 442,373 325,040 

For the years ended I)ecember 3 I ,  2004 2003 2002* 200 I * 2000* 

Selected financial ratios: 
4.46% 4.70'X 5,34% 5.85%) 6.33% 

...................................... 1.45% 1.98'%1 2.01% 2.05% 1.94% 
.................................................. 13.h7% I1.7O'% 17.26% 16.95%1 17.20% 

10.64% 11.13% I I .67% 12.09%1 I 1.28% 

common sharc ......................................................................................... 36.8SYO 37.0 I yo 32.41%) 34.13% 35.34% 
Dividends dcclarcd pcr share to net income per basic 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

The following is a discussion of the consolidated results of 
operations of Bryn Mriwr Bank Corporation and its subsidiaries 
(the “Chrporation”) for each ofthe three years ended 
December 3 1,2004, as well as the financial condition of the 
Corporation as of Dcccinbcr 3 1,2004 and 2003. ?‘he Llryn 
Mawr Trust Company (the “Bank”), and Ioseph W. Roskos & 
Co. (“JWR & Co.”) are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the 
Corporation. Insurance Counsellors of Bryn Mawr, Inc. 
(“ICBM”) and BMT Settlement Services, Inc. C‘BMTSS’’) are 
wholly owned subsidiaries of the Bank. This discussion should 
be read in conjunction with thc Corporation’s consolidated 
financiitl statemcnts beginning on page 26. 

S P I C ~ I A ~  CAII‘I‘IONAKV Nwricc RIMXIDING FORWARD 

Certain of the statements contained in this Report may 
constitute forward-looking statcmcnts for the ptirposcs of the 
Securities Act of 1933, as amended and the Securities Exchange 
Act or 1934, as aniendcd, and may involve known and 
unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause 
actual results, performance or acliieveinents of the Corporation 
to be materially different from future results, perrormance or 
achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking 
statcmcnts. Thcsc forward-looking statements include 
statements with respect to the Corporation’s tinancial goals, 
business plans, business prospects, credit quality, credit risk, 
reserve adequacy, liquidity, origination aiid sale of residential 
mortgage loans, impairment of goodwill, the effect of changes 
in accounting standards, and market and pricing trcnds. The 
words ‘kxpect,” “anticipate,” “intended,” “plan,” “believe,” 
“seek,” “estimate,” and similar expressions are intended to 
identify such forward-looking statements, The Corporation’s 
actual results tnay differ materially from the results anticipated 
by the forward-looking statements due to a variety of factors, 
including without limitation: 

LOOKING STATEMENTS 

the effect of future economic conditions on the 
Corporation and its customers, including economic 
factors which affect consumer confidence in the 
securities markets, wealth creation, investment and 
savings pattcrtis, and the Corporation’s interest rate 
risk cxposure and credit risk; 
changes in the securities markets with respect to the 
market values or financial assels and thc stability of 
particular securities markets; 
govcnimcntal monetary and fiscal policies, as well as 
legislation and regulatory changes; 

changes in accounting requirements or 
iiilerpretations; 

the risks ofchangcs in interest ratcs on the Icvel and 
composition of deposits, loan detniind, and the value 
of loan collateral and securities, as well as interest 
rate risk; 
the effects of competition from other commercial 
batiks, thrifts, mortgage companies, consumer 
finance companies, credit unions, sccuritics 
brokerage firms, insurance companies, money-market 
and mutual funds and other institutions operating in 
the Corporation’s trade market area and elsewhere 
including institutions operating locally, regionally, 
nationally and internationally and such competitors 
offering banking products and services by mail, 
telephone, computer and the Internet; 
any extraordinary evenls (such as the September 11, 
2001 events, the war on tcrrorisni and the U.S. 
Government’s response to those events, including the 
war in Iraq); 
thc Corporation’s succcss in continuing to gcnerale 
new business in its existing tnarkcts, as well as its 
success in identifying and penetrating targeted 
riiarkets and generating a profit in  those markets in a 
reasonable time; 
the Corporation’s ability to continue to generate 
satisfactory investment results for customers and the 
ability to continue to devdop investment products in 
a manner that meets customers needs; 
the Corporation’s timely development of competitive 
new products and services in a changing environment 
and the acceptance o f  such products aiid services by 
customers; 
the Corporation’s ability to originate and sell 
residential mortgage loans; 
the accuracy of assumptions underlying the 
esrablishineiit of reserves for loan losses and 
estimates in the value of collateral, and various 
Giiancial assels and liabilities and technological 
changes being niorc difficult or cxpcnsivc than 
anticipatcd; and 
the Corporation’s success in iiianaging the risks 
involved in the foregoing. 

All written or oral forward-looking statements attributed to 
the Corporalion are expressly qualified in their entirety by 
the foregoing cautionary statements. All forwiird-looking 
statements included in this Report are based upon 
information prcscntly available, and the Corporation assumes 
no obligation to update any forward-looking statements. 

2 



Introduction 
‘I’hc Corporation derives thc vast majority of its income from its 
primary subsidiary, the Bank. The Rank is a state chartered 
member bank of the Federal Reserve System aiid was chartered 
in 1889. Located in an affluent western suburb of Philadelphia, 
Pennsylvania, the Bank provides commercial banking, trust and 
fiduciary services to its customer base. I n  19x6, the Corporation 
was formed and on Ianuay 2, 1087, the Rank became a wholly- 
owned subsidiary of the Corporation. The Corporation’s 
profitability is primarily derived from a number of segments or 
lines of business within the Rank. The traditional Banking 
segment includes the generation of net intcrcst income from the 
gathering of dcposits and fiinding of commercial, real estate and 
consuiiicr loans, and the ability to purchase and sell investment 
securities. Due primarily to the stiuchire of its deposit base, 
providing a source of low cost funding, the Rank was able to 
maintain a net interest margin of 4.46% for 2004. 
In uddition to its traditional banking activities of deposit 
gathering and lending, the Hank’s Wealth Management scgnicnt 
provides a strcitiii of revenue, primarily rclated to its ability to 
grow its assets under management, which ainounted to 
$ I ,XX7,000,000 as of December 3 1, 2004. In addition to the 
assets stated above the Rank acts B S  an iiivcstincnt advisor for 
$5 1,000,000 of‘ assets for Coininunity Banks lociitcd in 
Harrisburg, Pciinsylvaiiiu. 
Executive Summary 
In prior years, the Bank’s Mortgugc Banking segment had 
grown significantly. ‘lhis growth was due to the increased 
detnand for mortgage loans aiid the Mortgage Banking 
segment’s ability to iiiccl the demands of its customers to 
originate iind to then sell those mortgages to the secondary 
residential mortgage market. This deniand slowed sharply 
beginning i n  the third quarter 2003 through Dcccinbcr 3 I ,  
2004. While the Mortgage Banking scgiiiciit had cxpandcd its 
volume of residential loan originiitions nnd salcs in  prior years, 
rccctit volume dccrcascs indicate that the demand for mortgage 
loans is likely to retiiain at a reduced level causing a rcduction 
i n  the Rank’s mortgage loaii origiiiations and salcs compared to 
the years prior to 2003. ‘I’his decrease in residential mortgage 
loan origination and sale activity was priiiiitrily responsible for 
the Corporation’s lack luster 2004 income from continuing 
operations, which was 17% below 2003. 

In itddition to these thrce business segments, the Bank presently 
offers through IC‘BM insurance products which include 
comtnercial, personal lines, life and benefits insuriincc products. 
Both the Corporation’s and Bank’s capital levels remain above 
those capital tcvcls necessary to be considered “Well 
Capitalized” by their respective regulators. “Well Capitalized” 
is thc: highest rating availablc from the regulators. The 
C.’orporation’s aniiualized return 011 equity was 13.670/0 and its 
annualized returii on assets was 1.45% BS of December 3 I ,  
2004. Tlie Uiiiforiii Bank Pcrfortnnncc Report Peer Group nata 

Lis of Scpteinbcr 30,2004, the inost rcccnt data available, for 
banks with assets between $300 million and $1 billion had an 
annualized return on equity of 13.32% aiid an annualized return 
on assets of 1.2 1%. 
‘I’hc $3,224,000 decrease in income before income taxes and 
discontinued operations for 2004, over the same period in 2003, 
is primarily due to the decrease in residential mortgage 
originations aiid sales, ;is well iis expenses associated with the 
implementation of thc rcquircincnts of section 404 of the 
Sarbaiies Oxley Act of2002 (“SOX-404”). Thc gains on thc 
salc of rcsidcntial mortgage loans declined $7,75 1,000 and the 
related title insurance income from RMTSS declined $342,000. 
Partially offsetting the decline in income, due to the reduction 
in mortgage loan sale activity, was a decrcasc of $1,975,000 in 
the aiiiortization of inortgitgc servicing rights (“MSKs”). During 
the first qurti-tcr of 2004, the Bank sold MSRs, generating a net 
gain, after the accelerated amortization of the sold MSRs, of‘ 
$1,145,000. No such sales or gains were reported for 2003. I t i  

order to bccomc compliant with SOX-404, the C:orporation 
incurred at1 expense of $470,000 for consulting and accounting 
fees for 2004. N o  such fee expense was incurred in 2003. It is 
anticipated that fees for SOX-404 related activity will be less in 
2005 and thereafter. 
Also partially offsetting the decline in gains on tnortgugc loan 
sales was an increase in net interest income of $1,897,000 for 
2004 coniparcd to 2003 due primarily to strong growth in  the 
Hank’s earning assets. The Bank’s balance sheet is asset intcrcst 
rate sensitive, incaning that an incrcasc i n  interest rates should 
cause an incrcasc in thc net interest margin and related net 
interest income. Recent prime rate incrcitscs have, and should 
continue to have, ii positivc cffcct on net interest incotne. The 
fccs for trust services also increased i n  2004 compared to 2003, 
up by $603,000 or 6’%0. In addition to the reduction in 
aniortization of MSRs, discussed previously, the C‘orporittion’s 
other operating expenses decreased by $947,000 or 20%. The 
decrease in rcsidcntial loan sale activity is directly responsible 
for a $1,202,000 or S9% decrease in other operating expenses 
in the Mortgage Rarikiiig segment. There was an iiicrcasc i n  thc 
provision lor loan loss of $lSO,OOO, due to iin increase in net 
charge-offs i n  the second half of 2004. These iict changcs, from 
2003 to 2004, account for $2,983,000 i n  year-to-year changes 
in iiicoinc bcforc income taxes and discontinued operations, 
coiiiparcd to the net change reported of $3,224,000. 
Critical Accounting Policies 
The Corporation’s most critical accounting policy is the 
allowance for loan loss. ‘l’hc itllowancc for loan loss represents 
managcmcnt’s cstimate of the loan losses that tilay occur. The 
iillowiincc is continually rnonitored to determine iis adequacy. 
Ongoing rcvicw of credit standards, the level of delinquencies 
on loan products and loan segments, and the current state of the 
ecoiioiny are included in this rcvicw. Actual losses may differ 
from managcmcnt’s cstimatcs. This is explained in  more detail 
on pages 1 1 - 12. 
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In  December 2001, the Corporation adopted Staleiiient of 
Financial Accounting Standard No. 142 “Goodwill and Other 
Intangible Assets” (“SFAS No. 142”). In compliance with 
SFAS No. 142, the Corporation ceased amortizing the goodwill 
related to J W R  6t Co. During 2003, Corporation management 
dctcrmiiicd that J W R  8r Clo. wiis not attaining its strategic goals 
and that it would be in the best interest of the Corporation to 
discontinue offering family office sewices through 3 WR 6r Co. 
Therefore, tlie Corporiition sold substantially all of the iisscts of‘ 
JWK & Co. to Private Family Officc, Inc. (“PFO”), which is 
owned by the hrnier president of .IWK & Co. (the “Asset 
Sale”). The Asset Sale was accomplished on August 1, 2003, 
crf‘ective as ofJune 3 0 ,  2003. The Asset Sale resulted in the 
charge-orf of the balance of goodwill on the books of the 
Corporation, amounting to $1,005,000. As of December 3 1, 
2003 and 2004, there was no goodwill on tlie books of 
the Corporation. 
Since the assets which were sold in the Asset Sale met all the 
requirements of Statement of Fiiiancial Accounting Standard 
No. 144 “Accounting for the lmpainnent or Disposal of Long- 
Lived Assets” (“SFAS No. I44”), othcr reveiiue and expenses, 
the write-down oT goodwill and other related disposal expenses 
have been classified as a loss froin discontinued operations, net 
oT taxes in the respective statcnients of income, to reflect the 
accounting for discontiiiued operations undcr SFAS No. 144. 
There are 110 longer any assets oT JWR 6r Co. associated with 
the family oilice operation on thc books of JWR & Co. at 
December 3 1,2004 or 2003. 
As a part of its Mortgage Banking segment’s loan servicing 
business, the &ink records the value of M S R s  as an asscl when 
the mortgage loans arc sold and the servicing is retained by the 
Bank. MSRs represent the right to reccivc cash ilows froiii 
servicing mortgage loans. The sewicing rights arc capitalized 
based 011 the fair value of the servicing riglit and the mortgage 
loiin on the date tlie mortgage loan is sold. MSRs are aimortized 
in proportion to and over the period of the estimated net 
servicing income. MSRs are carried at the lower of cost or 
estimated fair value. ‘I’hc Uoiporation obtains an independent 
appraisal o f  the fair valuc of its MSRs quarterly, which 
approximates the fair value cxpcctcd in a sale between a willing 
buyer and scllcr. 
MSRs are assessed quarterly ror impairment based on the 
cstiinatcd fair value of those rights. For purposes of performing 
the impairment valuation, the MSR portfolio is stratified on the 
basis of certain predominant risk characteristics, including loan 
type and note rate. To the extent that the carrying value of‘the 
servicing rights cxceeds estimated fair valuc for any stratum, a 
valuation allowiincc is established; this allowance may be 
adjusted in the future ijs the estimated fair value of the MSRs 
increase or decrease. This valuation iillowaiice is included in the 
consolidated balance sheet and the valuation allowance i s  
recognizcd in  the consolidated statement of operation during the 
period in which the changc occurs. 

‘I’hc followi~ig suniiiiarizcs the Corporation’s activity related to 
MSKs for the twelve months ended December 3 I ,  2004 
and 2003: 
(Ill /hottstrncr‘ql 2004 2003 

Diilance, January 1 .............. $ 4,391 $ 3,956 
.......................................... 1,019 3,249 

(839) (2,814) 

Sules .................................... (1.399) - 

$ 3,172 $ 4,391 hlaiice, December 3 I ........ 

Fair Value .................................. $ 4,132 $ 6,828 

There has been no iinpainnent ofthe M S R  portfolio or any 
Ghange in the valuation allowance for M S R s  for the twelve 
months cndcd December 3 1, 2004 or 2003. 

At December 3 I ,  2004, key economic assumptions and the 
sensitivity of the current fair valuc of MSKs to immediate 
10 and 20 percent udvcrse changes in  those assumptions are 
as follows: 

I ............................. 

Ucccmhur 31, 
2004 

Fair value amount of MSRs ..................................... $ 
Wcighkd average life (in ycars) .... 
Prcpaymciil speeds (constant 

4,132 
3.7 

prepiiynient rate) (1):  ............................ 19.92% 

20% :idverse change (558) 

Discount ratc: IO.OS%) 

Iiiiptwl on fair value: 
10% adverse change (293) 

................................ 

Impact on fail- value: 
10%) advcrsc changu ...... (128) 
20% adverse changc ............................. (248) 

t h ~  ~ v i g l i t d  rrvurr~~yc pr.eprymcn/ nit<’ liw thr /!ti, ofthe 

‘I’hcsc assuniptioris and sensitivitics arc hypothetical and should 
he used with caution. As the tigures indicate, changes in fair 
value bascd on ii 10% variation in assumptions generally cannot 
be extrapolated bccausc the relatioiisliip of the changc in 
assuniptioiis to the changc in fair value iiiay not be linear. Also, 
the effect o f a  variation in  ii particular assumption on the fair 
valuc of the MSRs i s  calculated without changing aiiy other 
assumption. In realty, changes in one factor niiiy result in 
changes in another, which could iiiagnify or counteract 
the sensitivities. 
New Accounting Pronounccments 
During 2004, the Financial Accounting Standi-lrds Board issued 
one accounting standard applicable to banks, rcviscd Financial 
Interpretation No. 46 (FIN 46R)  and the Emerging Issues Task 
Force issued EITI; 03-1. These pronouncements arc discussed 
in detail in  Note 2 to thc Consolidated Financial Statements - 

Summary of‘ Signiticant Accounting Policies, wliich are a part 
of this Kcport. 
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SIGNIFICANT I T K M S  I W R  2004 

Opening of New Full Servicc Branch Office in 
Ncwtown Square 
During the Grst quarter of 2004, the Bank establislied a new full 
service briinch office in Ncwtown Square, Pennsylvania, 
thereby enabling the Bank to both broiidcn and strengthen its 
footprint in Delaware County. Hy December 2004, the branch 
reported total deposits oi‘$21 million. 
Sale of Servicing for $245 million in Loans Scrvicecl for 
Others 
Effective March 3 I ,  2004, the h i k  sold MSRs associated with 
$245 tnillion iii inortgagc loans serviced Tor othcrs to 
EVERHANK, a Tccdcral savings bank located in .lacksonvillc 
VI ,. The transaction generated it net gain on the sale of 
$1,145,000. Tliis gain on the side of tlie MSKs helped to 
mitigate the ncgativc impact on earnings caused by the dccline 
in gains on the sale ofresidential mortgage loans in the 
Mortgage Banking sepmcnt, cornpared lo gains in 2003 and 
2002. The primary reason for the decline i n  gains on loan sales 
was a decrease in the amount of resitlciitial mortgage loen 
retitlances sold to the secondary mortgage tnarket in 2004, 
compared to 2003 and 2002. 
Continuation of the Stock Rcpurchase Program 
Corporation management continues to believe Ihiit thc 
repurchase o f  the Corporation’s stock is ii very beneticial use of 
Corporation capital. In October 2002, tnanagernent wus 
authorized to rcpurchase up to 4% of the outstanding shares as 
of October 2002 o r  348,094 shares, effective January 2003, 
white not spendiiig irmc than $7,500,000. Under that program, 
from January 2004 through December 2004, the (’orporation 
repurchased I 14,600 shares of Corporation stock, a t  ii cost of 
$2,574,000, for an average cost of $22.46 per sharc. To date the 
shares repurcliased under this program toid 2 13,600 at a cost of 
$4,40 1,000. ‘This stock repurchasc program is authorized to 
extend for a tive-year period, with amiual rcvicws by the 
Corporation’s Board of Directors. The Corporation’s stock 
repurchasing activity, from I997 through December 3 1, 2004, 
resulted in the repurchase oi‘a total of 1,407,252 shiircs ofthe 
Corporation’s cotiinion stock, a t  a cost of $20,797,000 for an 
average purchase price of $14.78 per share. The use of the 
Corporation’s capital to repurchase stock increases the 
C’orporation’s return on equity, as well as offsetting the dilutive 
eflcct on earnings per sharc of issuing stock options. 
Compliance with Suction 404 of thu Sarbanes Oxley Act 
of 2002 
As rcquired by SOX-404, during 2004, the Corporation 
undertook a project to determine ( 1 )  what internal controls for 
public tinancia1 reporting were in place and (2) what additional 
intenial controls needed to be iniplcincnted i n  order to gain 
assurance that the Corporation properly presents its financial 
statements and related footnotes, under generally accepted 

accounting principles of the United States (“GAAP”). ‘1’0 
accomplish this task, the Corporation hired an independent 
consultant, experienced i n  coinplying with SOX-404, to assist 
riianageiiicnt in completing tlie project and thereby enabling tlie 
Ghicf cxccutive officer and chief financial officer to certify 
whether or not t h e  were any signiGciint deficiencies or 
iiiatcriul weaknesses in the internal controls eskiblished to 
assure that tlie Corporation’s financial statcmcnts were prepared 
under GAAP. 
KPMG LLP (“KPMG”), the C:orporation’s Independent 
Registered Public Accounting I;irtn, has issued an attestation 
report that managcnicnt’s iisse 
tiiaintaiiied cffcctive internal control over tinaticial reporting as 
of December 3 I ,  2004 is fairly stated, i n  all rnaterial respects, 
based on  criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated 
Fraiiiework issued by the Committee of Sporisoring 
Organizations of thc Treadway C’ornmission (“COSO”). Also in 
their opinion, KPMG stated that the Corporation maintained, in  
all inaterial respects, effective internal control over linencial 
repoi-ting Lis of December 3 1,2004, based on COSO. 
DISCONTIN~JIW OPERATIONS 

As ii result of Corporation managetnent’s decision to 
accornplisli the JWK & Co Asset Sale, the Corporation liad 
long-lived assets meeting the critcrion of SFAS No. 144 for 
being classified BS available for sale on its balance sheet. 
Therelore, thc revenues and expenses, the write-down of 
goodwill and other related disposal expenses have been 
classiticd as a loss rrom discontinued operations, net o f  taxes in 
thc respective statements of income. Following is a table 
outlining ( I ) the iimounts of revenue, cxpcnses and after-tax 
losses reported in the results from discontinued operations and 
( 2 )  the non-recurring trensactions’ impact, that iirc a result of 
the Asset Sale: 

nent that the Corporation 

Rcvcnucs ol‘JWR & Co.” ......... 
Fxpcnscs ol‘JWR & C‘o.’ ......... 
Pic-tax (loss) incomc ................ 
Applicable incomc (tax) bctiefit 

Nou-recurring transactions 
Writc-down ol‘hodwill ..... 
Accnu~ils receivahlc 

Other .................................... 
Income (tax ) bcncfjt ........... 

chal-gc-off .......................... 

‘l‘otal of non-rccurring 

Loss lkom discontinucd 
transuclions 

operations .... ................ 

- For thc twelve months endcd 
2004 2U03 2uu2 

(0001 i ) r l l l / t c d  

$ - $ 773 $ 2,228 

- (1,005) (400) 

5 (1,916) $ (435) $ 
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While there wiis no (loss) inconic horn discontinued operations 
in 2004, the Chrporation reported net income of $9,345,000 for 
the twelve inonths ended December 3 1, 2004, an $ I 1,000 
decrease from $9,356,000 reported for the same period in  2003 
which was an $851,000 or an 8% decrease from $10,207,000 
reported in 2002. Basic earnings per common share on net 
income amounted to $1.09, a 1% increasc froin $1 .OX reported 
for 2003, which was an 8% decrcase h i m  $ I .  I7 reported in 
2002. Diluted earnings per cominon share on net income were 
even at $1.06 tor both 2004 and 2003, which was an X% 
decrease from $I .  I5 reported in 2002. 

While there was no (loss) income froin discontinued operations 
for 2004, for both basic or diluted earnings per share, the basic 
and diluted loss per coininoii share from discontinued 
operations amounied to $.22 for year end 2 0 0 3 ,  compared to a 
loss of $.OS for the same period in 2002. The loss per common 
share from discontinued operations assuming dilution also 
ainounted to $.22 for 2003, compared to a loss of$.05 in 2002. 

SELECTloN OF NEW ALll>rrORS 

On December 19,2003 the Corporation retained KPMG LLP 
(“KPMG’) as its ncw independent registered public accounting 
firm to audit the financial statements for the fiscal year ended 
December 3 1 ,  2004. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (“PwC”) 
served as the independent registered public accounting firm for 
the fiscal year cnded December 31, 2003. The decision to 
change independent registered public accounting firms was 
mitdc by the Audit Coininittee of the Board of Directors or the 
Corporation. 

During each of the fiscal years ended December 3 1,2003 and 
2002 and subsequent interim period through March 15,2004, 
therc wcre no disagreements between the Corporation and PwC 
on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial 
statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which 
disagrecinents, if not resolved to the satisfiictioii of PwC would 
have caused it to make refercncc to the sub,ject matter ofthe 
disagreements in connection with its reports; and there were no 
“reportable events” as that term is defined in Item 304 (a)(l)(v) 
of Kcgulation S-K occurring within the Corporation’s two most 
recent fiscal years and the subsequent interim period through 
March 15, 2004. 

Thc reports of PwC on the financial statement for the past two 
years contained no adverse opinions or disclaimer of opinion 
and were not qualified or modified as to their uncertainty, audit 
scope or accounting principle. 

Thc Corporation provided PwC and KPMG with a copy of the 
foregoing disclosures regarding the changc of independent 
registered public accounting finns pursuant to Item 304 of the 
SEC’s Regulation S-K giving them the opportunity to provide a 
statement for inclusioii herein, if eithcr of thein disagrccs with 
the accuracy or completeness of‘ these disclosures. After their 
review, neither PwC nor KPMG expressed any disagreement 

h 

with these disclosures. A copy of PWC’s letter response to such 
request wits attached to the Corporation’s &-KIA tiled with the 
SEC on March 15, 2004. 

REStJLTS OF CONTlNUING OPERATIONS 

Overview 

The Corporation reported a 17% dccrease j n  income from 
continuing operations for 2004 to $9,345,000 from $ 1  1,272,000 
for 2003. 

h s i c  earnings per common share from continuing operations 
amounted to $ I .09 in 2004, a 16% decrease from $1.30 for 
2003. Dilutcd earnings per common share rroin continuing 
operations decreased by 17% to $1.06 for 2004 rrom $ I .2X for 
2003. The dilutivc potential common shares added to the 
weighted-avurage shares outstcanding werc 170,545, 158,543 
and 130,020 for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 

The decline in earnings for 2004 was priniarily due to a 
decrease in the origination and subsequent sale of rcsidential 
mortgage loans in the Mortgage Banking segment, causing a 
decline in the respective gains on the salc of residential 
mortgage loans in 2004. As presented on Table 1 - Line of 
Business Segment Analysis, the Mortgage Banking segment’s 
profitability declined 7 I % or $4,232,000 to $1,756,000 for 
2004, cornpared to $5,988,000 for 2003. The primary reason for 
this decline was a $7,75 1,000 decrease in net gains on thc sale 
of loans, a direct result of declines in the levcl of residential 
mortgage loan rcfinaiicmg activity in 2004, cornpared to 2003 
and 2002. This dccline in net gains on loan sales was partially 
offsct by a $3,177,000 decrease in other operating cxpcnses, 
due primarily to a decline in the amortization ofMSRs, its well 
as expenses related to the Mortgage Banking business segment. 
Partiitlly offsetting the decline in  the Mortgage Ranking 
segment’s profitability wits a 5% or $404,000 increase in thc 
Banking segment’s proijtability. Short term intcrcst rates began 
rising in the second half of 2004, which was beneficial to the 
Bank’s nct interest incoinc in the final two quarters of2004, 
coinpared to 2003. However, this increase in short term interest 
rates in 2004 wits not sufficient to increase the Bank’s net 
intcrcst margin ahead of2003. The net interest margin 
decreased 24 basis points in 2004, cornpitred to 2003. However, 
a 14% increasc in average outstanding earning assets in 2004, 
compared to 2003, offset the decrcased net interest margiii and 
is primarily responsible Tor the Ranking segment’s net interest 
iiicoine incrcasiiig 7% over 2003 levels. ‘I’hc Banlung segment 
also reported net gains on the salc of mortgage servicing rights 
of $1,145,000. No such sales were rcporled for 2003 or 2002. 
Due to larger net chargc-offs in the second half of 2004, the 
loan loss provision was increased by $150,000 to $900,000. 
The Ranking segment also incurred expenses related to the 
rcquirements of SOX-404. Accounting and consulting expenses 
for SOX-404 amountcd to $470,000 for 2004. No such 
expenses wcrc incurred in 2003 or 2002. 



A 6% iiicreasc in fccs for investment managcmcnt and trust 
services, combined with holding the wealth tnanagemcnt 
expenses to 3% growth, arc primarily responsible for a 12% 
increase in Wealth Management segment profits for 2004, 
cornpared to 2003. 

Rctiiin on average assets ("ROA") for the year was 1.45%, 
compared to 1.98% in 2003, while return on nveragc equity 
("ROE") [or 2004 was 13.67% coinpared to 17.76% in 2003. 

EARNINGS PERFORMANCE 

Lines of Business 

'I'hc Corporation coiilinucs to have four significant business 
segments or lines koni which it derives its earnings, one of 
which is the Banking linc of business. Addilional earnings 
streams are obtained from its Wealth Management line o f  
business and its Mortgage Ranking linc of business - the 
origination, servicing and sale of mortgage loans to the 
secondary inorlgage inarkct. The fourth segment, included in 
"All Other" in the following segmentation analysis, derives net 
rcvcnues frotn insurance services and products, offcrcd through 
the Rank's subsidiary, ICBM and intercst income on notes in 
JWR & Co. 

1;ollowing is a segineiibation analysis of the results of operations 
for those lines olbusincss for 2004 atid 2003: 

TABLE 1 - Line of Business Segment Analysis 
2uu4 
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The table retlects opcrating profits or losses or each corporate 
line of business bcforc incotne taxes and excluding inter- 
conipany interest incorne and expensc, rclated to inter-company 
borrowings and excludes loss Goin discontinued operations. 
The Banking segment's percentage o f  operating profits stood at 
62% for 2004, cornpared to 48% for 2003. The Wealth 
Manageiiieiit segmcnt's percentage of operating profit was 
26%, up from 19% for 2003. Thc Mortgage Ranking segment's 
share of operating profits drcrcascd from 3S%" in 2003 to 13% 
in 2004, while the "All Othcr" segment, including thc 
Corporation and all non-banking suhsidiaries, wcnt from (2%) 
i n  2003 to (1%) in 2004. 

Bunking Line of Business 

The Bank's average outstanding carning assels Sor 2004 of 
$S87,150,000 increased 14% from $516,3SX,000 for 2003. 
Average outstanding loans also grew by 13% in  2004. The 
largest dollar incrcasc in average outstanding loans occurred in 
the consiiiiier linc of credit loans, up $30,740,000 or 43% over 
2003 avcragc balances. Average commercial mortgage loan 
balances grew by $17,622,000 or 16%, cornpared to 2003 levels 
aiid, :tvcragc construction loan balances increased $2,835,000 
or 9% in 2004, coinparcd to the same period in 2003. Due to 
some commercial loan prepayments in 2004, average 
conmicrcial loan balances rcniaincd level with 2003, dccreasing 
$698,000 or less than 194, cornpared to similar average 
outstanding balances in 2003 
Reflecting the Bank's strategy to hold some shorter tertn 
residential mortgage loans i n  its loan portfolio, the average 



balance of residential mortgage loans increased Y; 15,827,000 or 
25% from 2003 average balances. The average outstanding 
biilances of thc Bank’s consuincr sinall business loan product 
increased by $6,263,000 or 50% from 2003’s averagc 
outstanding balances. This growth is attributed to the superior 
package of small business services designed to provide sinall 
business customers with high quality, coiiipctitivcly-priced 
loan, deposit and investment services. ‘I’hc average balance of 
the consumer loan portfolio decreased by $1 3,03 1,000 or 620/. 
This reflects the planned run-off ofthe Bank’s indirect 
automobile dcalcr paper portfolio, as well as a dcclinc in fixed 
rate home equity loan balances. 
The iivcragc outslanding balances of I‘ederal funds sold 
increased by $2,414,000 or 23% in  2004 compared to 2003 
levels. Average outstanding investments increiised by 
$8,658,000 or 37% for 2004 compared to 2003. 
Average outstanding total deposits increased $67,700,000 or 
14% in 2004 compared to 2003. The largest dollar increase 
occurred in the Bank’s money market account average 
balances. The Rank increased its money market account interest 
rate structure, making the interest rates competitive with interest 
rates paid oti off-balance sheet money market sweep accounts. 
This competitive I-ate structure orfcrcd by the Bmk resulted in 
the movement of off-balance shcct swccp balances, as well ;is 
other money market mutual funds, into the Bank’s money 
market accounts. The money market account balances grew by 
$37,668,000 or 44% over 2003 average balances. Average 
outstaiidiiig NOW account balances increased by $2 I ,  130,000 
or 17%, whilc iivcriigc nun-intcrcst bciiring dciiiand deposit 
account balances increased by $2,00 1,000 or 2%. Average 
outstanding saviiigs accounts increased 3 %  or $1,527,000, 
whilc thc average balances of certificates of deposit (‘LCL)s”) 
grew by $5,373,000 or 6%. As a result ofthe strong growth in 
the Bank’s avcriigc deposit base in 2004 thc Brink was not 
reliant on short-tcrni borrowings, having average outstanding 
balances of short-term borrowings and federal funds purchased 
of $XSO,OOO, comparcd to $49h,000 for 2003. The increases in 
the average balances of lower costing money market accounts, 
NOW account and noli-interest bearing deiiiand deposit 
accounts arc the primary reasons for the cost of funds 
dccrcasing IO basis points. Howcvcr, a continued low prime 
rate for much of2004, partially offset by increases in earning 
assets, is primarily rcsponsiblc for ii dccrcasc in the net interest 
margin to 4.46% i n  2004 from 4.70% for 2003. An expanded 
discussion of tlie Rank’s net interest income follows in tlie 
section below cntitlcd “Net Interest Income.” 
‘I’otal other income from the Hanking segment increased by 
32% in 2004 compared to 2003. The Bank sold MSRs 
associated with the servicing ofS24.5 inillion of residential 
mortgage loans serviced I‘or others. This sale gcncratcd a net 
gain on the sale or$1,145,000. Thcrc was no such sale or gain 
in 2003. Exclusive of this gain, total other iiicoiiie increased 
less than 1 %. ‘I’hc largest incrciisc in other income wiis on other 

operating income, up $51,000 or 3%, due primarily to increases 
in swccp fccs. Service chnrges oii deposit accounts decreased 
$09,000 or 4%. 
‘I’otal othcr cxpcnses of‘ the Banking business segment increased 
by 12% in 2004 compared to 2003 Icvcls. While regular salaries 
increased by 6%, other salaries, primarily incentives and it 
corpor-ate-wide bonus pool of $275,000 increased by $463,000 
or 97%, compared to similar corporate-wide incentives incurred 
i n  2003. A corporate-wide bonus pool of$275,000 was accrued 
for 2004. N o  such bonus pool wiis accrued in 2003. Fringe 
benetits reinaiiied level with 2003. Occupancy expenses 
incrcascd by $2S2,000 or 8%, due priiiiarily to expenses related 
to the new Newtown Square branch, put into service i n  January 
2004. Other operating expenses increased by 28% which 
includcd ii dccrcasc in advertising expenses of 35%. The 
increase in other opcrating cxpciiscs in 2004 WM mainly due to 
accounting and consulting cxpenscs related to implciiicnting Ilie 
requireiiieiits of SOX-404 of $470,000. No such expenses wcrc 
incurred in 2003. Included in other operating expense in 2003 
was ii $250,000 elimination of B prior accrue1 Lor poteiilial 
litigation that was deemed unnecessary as of December 3 I ,  
2003. Exclusivc or thc above iiieiitioned items, other operating 
expenses increased by 10% over 2003. 
Slrong growth in the Bank’s average eaimiiig assets, over 2003, 
is primarily responsible for a $1,780,000 01- 7% increase in net 
interest income. ‘I’hc Hank also iiicrciiscd its loan loss provision 
by .R 150,000. The result wiis ii $404,000 or 5% increase in the 
Ranking segment protit for 2004, over 2003. 

Wtwlth Mmngemeiit Line qj’Bzr,sinw.s 
The Wealth Management business segment reported ii 12% 
increase in operating profit for 2004 compared to 2003 levels. 
A $h03,000 or 6% increase in  fccs for investment managcmcnt 
aiid trust services i s  primarily responsible for this increase. An 
overall increase in asset values coinbined with lhe growth in 
iicw business was the primary cause for the increase in trust 
fccs. The market value of assets managcd iiicrciiscd by 11% 
from $ I,752,000,000 at Dcccmbcr 3 I ,  2003, to $ I,938,000,000 
as of December 3 I ,  2004. 
Total other expenses of the Wealth Mmiagemeiit line of 
business increased by $198,000 or 3% in 2004 over 2003 
levels. 
‘The primiiry rciison h i -  this increase was iiii increase in the 
salary - other expense of$209,000 or I XSu/, due primarily to 
iiicreased incentive paynients in 2004 related to the growth i n  
new business, coiiipared to 2003. Occupancy expenses declined 
$45,000 or 7% and other operating expenses increased by 
$44,000 or 4%. 
Mortgqc Uclnking Lint, of Business 

The operaling prolit of the Bank’s Mortgage Raiiking liiie o f  
business dccrciiscd 7 1% i n  2004 compiircd to 2003 duc to a 
significant decline in the volume of residential refinaiicing 

x 



activity in 2004 compared to 2003. The sale of residential 
inortgagc loans decreased by 77% and the respective gains 
declined by 73% or $7,75 1,000. Other fees and service charges 
decreased 25% primarily due to decreased fees iissociated with 
the decline in residential inortgage originations, as well as a 
decline in loan servicing fees caused by the sale ofMSRs in the 
first quarter of2004. CMier operating income, consisting of fees 
earned by BMTSS, decreased 75%. This decrease is directly 
related to the 77% decrease in the sale ofresidentiiil loans in  
2004, compared to 2003. 

Regular salaries declined 33'3'0 due to a decrease in overtime, as 
well as not replacing three Mortgage Banking segment officers, 
who resigned in the tirst quarter of 2004. Salaries - othcr 
dccreased 70% due to lower incentives related to the lower 
volume of respcclivc loan sales. Fringe benefits declined I 5%, 
rclatcd to lower salary expense in 2004, while othcr operating 
expenses dccrciiscd 05%. Of this decrease Y; 1,975,000 was due 
to lower amortization ofMSRs, due to the decline in 
rcfinancing activity previously discussed , and othcr cxpcnscs, 
directly related to the volume of loan sales, such BS rippraisal 
fees, loan pair off fees and credit reports, decrewxi by 
$ 1,228,000. The total decrease i n  other opcriiting expense 
aiiiountcd to $3,177,000. 

1;ollowing is a table showing thc volume of residential 
mortgage loans originated and sold to the sccondary tiiortgage 
tiinrket, the total net gains realized, and the yield on thcsc loan 
sales: 

TABLE 2: Summary of Kesidential Loan Sale Activity 
( t lol l~rr:~ iii /hoir.vuiidd zuu4 1003 

Volutnc of loans sold ....................... S 144,916 $ 628,052 
Loan fees xid net gains on salcs ................ 2,886 10,637 
Yield on salus ............................................ 1.9Y Yo 1 .hY% 

As of December 3 I ,  2004, the Bank serviced $480,494,000 in 
residential mortgage loans for others, compared to 
$755,132,000 in Ioiins serviced for olhcrs at ycar-end 2003. 
This decrease rellects tlic siilc of MSRs i n  2004 associated with 
$245,000,000 in residential mortgage loans serviced for others. 
R r y  Muwr. Bonk C'orprLitlion 

The Corporation is a one-bank holding company, generating 
intercompany revenues from [lie rcntnl of Corporation owned 
properties to the Rank. The Corporation's expenses arc 
primarily of an administrative nature. 
I n . s u r i i r ~ ~  Cbrii~sellors of Rryn MUMJI,, Iric.. 

In January 1998, the Bank established a wholly owned 
subsidiary, ICBM (a full-service insurance agency), to enable 
the Hank to offer iiisurancc products arid related services to its 
customer base. ICBM offers a full line of l ik ,  propcity and 
casualty and coinincrcial lines to its customer base. I(?RM 
reported net income of $44,000 for 2004, coinpiired to a loss of 
$28,000 in 2003. While insurance commissions grew by 
$26,000 or hU/, expenses decreased by $90,000 or 20%. 'l'his 

decrease is primarily related to the elimination of one senior 
position iri  ICBM at year-end 2003. 
BMT Sdernent Services. Inc. 

In January 2002, the Rank formed BMTSS, a Pennsylvania 
Corporation, to be a limitcd partncr i i i  a limited partnership, 
establishcd to provide title search aiid abstract services to Bank 
customers either refinancing their existing residcntial mortgage 
loans or obtaining new residential tnortgagc loans. BMTSS 
entered into an  agreement (the "Partnership Agreerneiit") with 
Commonwealth I m d  T r a d e r  Company, whereby BMTSS 
would receive 70% of'the profits, after expenses, from the 
partnership. Due to the significant decrease in the volume of 
mortgage loan rcfinancitig in  2004, compared to 2003, as 
described in the Mortgage Banking segment, HMTSS earned 
$82,000 in net iiicorne for 2004, ii OX% decrease from $2S8,000 
reportcd for 2003. 
.Josq)h W. Roskos & Co. 
On August 1, 2003, effective June 30, 2003, the Corporation 
concluded the Asset Sale and, as a result of that transaction, 
JWR 6r Co. took back notes from PFO, the purchaser. Income 
from continuing operations for 2004, representing the intercst 
on the notes totaliiig $1,287,000 nt December 3 1,2004 was 
$8 1,000 compared to $47,000 for 2003. 
Net lnturcst Income 
During 2003 und for the first seveii months of 2004, the Bank's 
pritnc rate rernained at 4.25% I:rom August to Deceiiibcr 2004, 
the bank iiicreascd its primc rate by IO0 basis points, cnding 
2004 at 5.25%. 'The continued low p r i m  rate for much of2004 
and all of 2003, compared to 2002, retluccd thc Bank's net 
interest margin. In 2004, the compressed net interest inargin 
was offsct by a 14% increase in iivcrage outstanding e'ming 
assets and resulted in a $2, t 20,000 or 7 %  increase in total 
interest income. Strong growth i n  the Bank's low cost deposits, 
partially offsct by a decline iii interest riitcs paid OKI deposits 
during 2004, compared to 2003 deposit rates, wiis primarily 
responsible for a $223,000 or 5% increase in total interest 
expcnsc for the year elided December 3 I ~ 2004. This resulted in 
net interest income [or 2004 of$2h,X28,000 being 8?4 ahead of 
$24.93 1,000 in net iiitcrcst incoriie reported [or 2003. In an 
effort to increitsc interest income the Bank grew the investment 
portfolios, avcragc outstanding inveslmcnts balances by 37%. 
This growth, being partially offsct by a 50 basis point decrease 
in the yield on investments, is primarily responsible for an 18% 
increase in intercst on investments. Primarily the result of 
strong average deposit growth in 2004, average outstanding 
balances oTfcdcral funds sold iiicreased by 23%. The yield on 
earning assets decreased by 40 basis points, froin 5.7% for 2003 
to 5.3% for 2004. 
Total average deposits increased I4Yi The liirgcst increases 
occurrcd i l l  the Bank's lower costing deposits. 'T'hc largest 
dollar increase occurred in the Rank's iiioncy tniirket account 
average balances, up $37,668,000 or 44%. This is due to [he 
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change in the pricing of the money tnarket account to be more 
conipetrtrve which rcsultcd in the movement of off-balance 
shcct sweep hinds hack into the Bank's money market accounts 
and funds froin other money market mutual funds being 
deposited. Averagc NOW account balanccs increased by 
$21,130,000 or I 7%. hvcrage non-interest-bearing demand 
deposits increased by $2,001,000 or 1%. Statement savings 
average baliinccs grew by $1,527,000 or 3% and CD balances 
grew by $S5373,000 or 6%. Average outstanding short-tcnn 
borrowings and federal funds purchased were less than 
$1,000,000 for each period, increasing by 71% ti-om $496,000 
for 2003 to $850,000 for 2004. The low levels ofborrowings 

arc due prirnarily to thc increased liquidity provided by the 
growth in average deposits in both 2004 and 2003. A 
combination of the ability to lower overall interest rittcs paid for 
Interest-bcitring deposits and short-term borrowings and strong 
growth in the low and no cost deposit balanccs was primarily 
responsible for a 10 basis point decrease in the itvcrage cost of 
hinds for 2004, compared to 2003. 'The decrease in the yield on 
earning assets, partially offset by the dccrcased cost of funds 
was dircctly responsible for the Bank's net interest margin, 
detined as nct interest income, inclusive of loan fees, as 
a percentage of avcrage earning assets, dccreasing from 4.70% 
for 2003 to 4.46% for 2004. 

TABLE 3 - Analyscs of Interest Rates and Intcrcst Differential 

The following table shows an analysis of the Composition ofnet interest incomc for each ofthe last thrcc years. Interest incomc on 
loans includos fees on loans of $645,000, $677,000 and $620,000 in 2004,2003 and 2002 respectively. The average loan balances 
include nonaccrual loans. All average balanccs itre calculated on a daily basis. Yields on investment securities are not calculated on a 
tax-cquivalent basis 

( h l l u r v  in thousun&) 

Assets: 
Cash and due froin hanks 
Jntmst-bcaring deposits with othcr banks* 
Federal l'unds sold* ................................. 
Investment securities available for sale: 

......................... 

Taxable* .............................................................. 
.............................................. 
................................ 

Loans* ............................. ................... 
Less itllowancc for loan lnsses ...... 

Other asscls ........ ..................................................... 
'rotdl asscis .......................................... 

I iabilities: 
Dctnmtd deposits, nonintcrcst-bearing ................................... 

Time deposits ............................ 
Short lerm borrowitigs ......................... 
Fcdcral futids purchased ......................................................... 

Savings deposits .......... ................... 

'Total liabilities .................................... 
Shareholders' equity ..................................... 

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity .......................... 
Total earning assets ........................................ 

Ititcrest income to earning asscts ........................... 
Iiitcrcst expense to earning asscts ........................................... 

short tcrtn borrowings ........ 

Net interest margin ................ 
Earning assets to interest-bcaring liab 

Average 
Intcrcst Raten 

Average Inroincl Eumed/ 
Rnlanee Expcnsr h i d  

$ 32,774 $ - -% 
3,079 48 1.6 

13.052 1Y1 1.5 

27,173 854 3.1 
5,071 165 3.3 

32,244 1,019 3.2 

538,775 30,123 5.6 
(6,957) - -  

531,818 30,123 5.7 
29,827 - -  

S 642,794 $ 31,381 - 

$ 137,336 $ - -Ya 
323,Y72 1,999 0.6 
102,369 2,544 2.5 

96 1 1.0 
754 9 1.2 

574,427 4,553 - 

6X,367 - -  
$ 642,194 $ 4,553 - 
$ 587,150 - -  

- 5.3 
- 0.8 

4.5 
- 1.1 

- -  9,900 

- 
- 

- - 
- 
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2003** 
Avcrnge 

Interest Kalcs 

Avcragc Iiiconiel EamclV 
Halancc Expense P;dd 

$ 33,005 $ - Yo 
3,737 37 1.0 

10,638 110 1.0 

2 I ,087 780 3.7 

23,586 866 3.7 

478,397 28.248 5.9 
(6,519) 

471,878 28,24X 6.0 

2,499 86 3.4 

- -  

- -  27,557 

$ 570,401 $ 29,261 - 

$ 135.335 Y; % 
263,646 1,658 0.6 

96,996 2.664 2.7 
438 7 1 .(i 

58 I 1.7 
- -  10,454 

506,927 4,330 - 

(73.474 - 

$ 570,401 $ 4,330 

$ 516.858 
- 5.7 

- 0.8 
4.9 
I .2 

- 0.9 
- .  - 4.70 
- - 1.43 

- 
- 

- 

2002 

Average 
Intercst Kalcs 

Avernge Inconiel Farncdl 
Halance Expense Paid 

$ 20,934 Y; --% 
54 1.5 

112 1.5 
3,651 
7.215 

21,371 1,024 4.8 
939 39 4 2  

22,112 1,063 4.8 

421,904 28,183 6.7 
(5,459) - - 

416,445 28,IXB 0 8  
27,365 - - 

Y; 506,982 $ 29,412 - 

$ 117,949 Y; -'% 
221,725 1,556 0.7 

79,332 2,509 3.2 
386 2.1 18,609 

1,665 33 2.0 
8,551 - - 

447,831 4,484 - 

59,151 - 

$ 506,982 $ 4,484 - 

$ 455,142 
... 6.5 

I .0 
5.5 
I .4 

I .0 
-. 5.34 

- I .42 

- 
- - 

- 

- 

- 

- 



TABLE 4 - Rate/Volume Analyses 
The following table shows the effect ofchanges in volumes and 
ratcs on interest income and interest expense. Variances which 
were not specifically atlributablc to volume or rate were 
allocated proportionately between volume and rate. Interest 
income on loans included (decreases) increases in Tees on loans 
of ($32,000) in 2004, $57,000 in 2003, and $46,000 in 2002. 
(in rlioristmtl%/ 2004 vs. 20U3 2003 vs 2002 
Incrcusc/~~ecrr,rr~) Volume Kate 'Total Volullle Rule Tulal 

Intcrcst Income: 
Iiilere~l-hearmg rlcpuvils wllh 

(8)s 19 Y: 11 S 1 S ( I K )  P (17) 
kdcral funds sold ........................... 25 56 X I  41 (43) (2) 
lnvcstment securiiieb ilvu~lrhlr 

fir sale:. ...................................... 
Tunuhlc ....................................... 209 (13s) 74 (13)  (268) (281) 
Tun-cnmmpl ,,,, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , .. , , , , , , , , , , , , , , . RZ (3) 79 56 ( 9 )  47 

I .LllI"* .................................. JJR3 (1,508)* 1,875 3.622 (3,52U)* 102 

Told inlcrcvt incomc . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3,691 (1,571) 2.120 3,7117 (3.858) (151) 

Savmgsdcposits ........................ 341 0 341 311 (209) l o2  
Intcrcst oxpcnsc: 

'I iinc deposits ....................... 115 (235) ( i n ) )  557 (402) 1 5 5  
Shon term hurrowiny\ ........... (4) (2) (ti) ( 7 0 5 )  (74) (379) 
Fed Iundh purchuarrl x (0) 8 (28) (4) (32 )  

Total intcrcst cxpcns ..................... 460 (237) 213 535 (hKY) (154) 

l i iterestdit~ereniial. ....................... S 3,131 $(l,334) $1,891 I 3,172 S(3.169) S 3 

Included in the loan  rut^ vuriance was ( I  (dwrcuse) increase in itiferesf 
income related to tion-perforniing h n s  o f $ ( d l .  000) and $(IO, 000) in 2004 
(2nd 2003. resprcfivdy. The voriutm,$ 
nonaccmtrl Iorms bernii.w no infaresl 

The 7% increase in interest income for 2004 was primarily 
attributable to a 14% increase in average earning assets, 
partially offset by a 40 basis point decline in the average yield 
on carning assets, from 5.7% in 2003 to 5.3% for 2004. Interest 
income relatcd to the rate variance decreased by $1,57 I ,000. A 
$3,h9 1,000 increase in intcrcst income, attributable to volumc 
growth, was the rcsult of a 14% increase in average outstanding 
earning assets, including a 13% increase in average outstanding 
loans. 'The average yield on loans decreased 3 0  Basis points 
froin 5.9% in 2003 to S,6'% in 2004. The average yield on 
fcdcral funds sold increased 50 basis points to 1.5% for 2004, 
compared to 1 .O% for 2003. The yicld on the investment 
portfolio decrcasod by 50 basis points from 3.7% in 2003 to 
3.2% in 2004, as higher yielding maturing or called investments 
were replaced by investincnts at lower market intercst rates. 
While an increase in interest expensc due mainly to increased 
average deposits caused an increase in interest expense of 
$460,000, the payment of lower rates on deposits caused a 
decrease in intcrcst expense of $237,000. The net rcsult was an 
increase in intcrest expense of $223,000. Because of declining 
average yields on both the loan and investment portfolios, as 
indicated in Table 4 - RateNoluine Analyses on page 12 of this 
Report, net interest incomc, related to interest rates, decreased 
by $1,335,000 from 2003 to 2004. However, continued growth 
in earning assets, primarily in the loan portfolio, was 
responsible for a $3,232,000 increase in net interest income, 
offsetting the decline in the rate variitncc and increasing net 
interest income by $1,897,000 or 8% over 2003. 

As of December 3 1,2004, average outstanding loan balances 
increased 13% over December 31,2003. The largest increase in 
average loans occurred in the consumer lines of credit, up 
$30,740,000 or 43%, as borrowers took advantage of lower 
intcrcst rates associated with the floating rate home equity 
credit lines. Average outstanding coiiimcrcial mortgage loans 
increased by $17,622,000 or 16%. In rcsponse to a strategy to 
hold some or thc shorter-term residential mortgage loans, 
primarily 7-year and 15-year maturity loans, in tlie Bank's loan 
portfolio, cornpared to selling them as done in prior periods, 
average outstanding residential mortgage loans increased by 
$15,827,000, or 25%. Average outstanding small business 
loans, a new loan product recently established by the Bank, 
iiicreascd by $5,963,000 or 46% over 2003 average outstanding 
balances. Avcrage outstanding construction loan balitnccs 
increased by $2,835,000 or 9%. Due priniitrily to unanticipated 
pay downs during 2004, average outstanding commercial and 
industrial loans remained flat, decreasing by $698,000 or less 
than 1%. A $13,03 1,000 or 62% decrease in outstanding 
consumer loans is due primarily to continued run-off of indirect 
automobile loans, which was planned by thc Bank, its well as 
repayments by tixed rate home equity loan borrowers. The yield 
on average cmiing assets decreased by 40 basis points from 
5.7% in 2003 to 5.3% in 2004. 
Average outstanding deposits increased $67,700,000 or 14% 
during 2004. The niajorrty of this growth occurred in average 
outstanding money market accounts, and NOW accounts 
increased $37,668,000 or 44% and $21,130,000 or 17%, 
respcctivcly. The growth in money market accounts is due to 
the competitive pricing of these accounts. Average outstanding 
CL) balances increased by $5,373,000 or 6%. Average 
outstanding non-interest-bearing demand deposits were up by 
$2,001,000 or 2%, while average outstanding savings account 
balanccs grew by ti; 1,527,000 or 3%. Avcragc outstanding 
short-terni borrowings and federal hiids purchased increased 
by $354,000 or 7 I YO, with average outstanding balances 
remaining under $1,000,000 for both 2004 and 2003. The total 
cost of funds for the Bank averaged .8% for 2004 cornpared to 
.9% Tor 2003, a IO basis point decrease. 
Loan Loss Provision 
Primarily in response to increased chargc-offs in the second 
half of 2004, the Bank incrcascd its annual loan loss provision 
from $750,000 for 2003 to $900,000 for 2004. The allowance 
for loan losses was $6,927,000 and $6,670,000 as of 
December 3 1,2004 and 2003, respectively. Delinquencies, as 
a percentagc of outstanding loans, amounted to 41 basis points 
and 27 basis points as of December 3 I ,  2004 and 2003, 
respectively. Nonpcrforming loans amounted to $1,109,000 at 
Deccinbcr 3 I ,  2004, compared to $286,000 at December 3 1, 
2003. The allowanw for loan losses, as a percentagc of 
outstanding loans, was I .23% as or December 3 I ,  2004, 
compared to 1.33% as ofDeceinbcr 31,2003. Rank 
management has determined that the 2004 loan loss provision 



was sufficicnt to maintain an adequate level of the allowance 
for loan losses during 2004. 

T A R I X  5 - Allowance for Loan Losses 

A suiiunary of the changes in the allowance for loan losscs and ii breakdown of loan loss experience by major loan catcgory for each 
of thc past five ycars roiiows: 

(dollurs iri h ) u s t m r l s )  2004 2003 2002 mi 2000 

Allowance Tor loan losses: 
Balancc, January 1 .. $ 6,670 $ 6,114 $ 4,928 $ 4,320 !$ 4,400 

December 31, 

- Coiiimercial and industrial ................................ (167) (1 12) (940) 0 

Kea1 estate-mortgagc (43J) (13) (51) (44) 
........................................................................ (OX) (178) (355) (94) (102) 

............ (692) (227)  (68) ( I 169) (3 99) 

Kcal cstatc construction ............................... - - - - 

Kccovcrics: 
- Commercial and industrial 2 220 63 3 

Real estate-construction .......................................................... 476 

Consumer ............................................... 47 32 24 3% 66 
'I'otal re 49 33 254 577 6 9 

Provision for loan lossc 900 7.50 1,000 1,200 250 
Balance, December 3 1 $ 6,927 $ 6,670 $ 6,l 14 $ 4,02X $ 4,320 

- - - 

Real estate--mortgage I I I O  

Net recovcrics / (chargc-offs) (643) ( 194) 186 (592) (330) 

Net recoveries / (charge-offs) to average loans (0.12)"h (0.04)% 0.04% (0. I h)% (0 .  IO)% 

TABLE 6 - Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses 

The table below allocates the balance ofthe allowance for loan losscs by loan catcgory and the corresponding percentage of loans to 
total loans ror each loan category for the last five years: 

( i h h r s  in husur id~)  

Balancc at cnd of period applicable to: 
Cornmcrcial and industrial ................... 
Rcal cstatc construction .................... 
Rcal cstatc mortgage ......................... 
Consumcr ............................................. 
Unallocated .......................................... 

Total ............................................... 

December 3 I ,  
2004 2003 2002 200 I 200 I 

'Yn Loans 'YO Loans % Lonns (% Loans 1% Loans 
to Total to Iota1 to Tolal to Total to Total 
Loans Loans I,oans Loans Loans 

$ 3,575 33.1% $ 3,656 35.7% $ 2,940 36.4Y' $ 2,729 39.1% $ 1,193 41.5% 
74 1 6.6 558 1.2 494 5.9 214 5.1 7 3.0 
so6 5x.5 1,089 53.4 1,107 52.4 1,019 45.0 5fi  38.3 

1,174 1 .s 906 3.7 907 5.3 316 10.8 248 17.2 
2,816 - m-. _~__L2 ~- 63 I 46 1 606 - 

$ 6,927 1OOo/u $ 6,670 100% $ 6,l 14 IOO'Yo 9; 4,928 100'%, $ 4,320 100% 

12 



Other Real Estatc Owned 
During 2004 the Rank obtained a property in foreclosure, 
adding $357,000 in Other Real Estate Owned (“ORLO”). There 
was no ORE0 recorded on the Rank’s books iis of 
December 31, 2003. 

Othcr Income 
The Mlowing table details other income for the years ended 
December 3 I ,  2004 and 2003, and the perccnt change from year 
to year: 
TABLE 7 - Other Iiiconie 

2UU4 2003 9.;) Change 

Fccs for investment managcmcnt 
and tnist services ........ ..... $ 10,087 $ 9,484 6% 

........ 1,827 1,806 (4)%, 
.......... 1,87Y 2,470 (22)X 

Net gain on sale of loans ................... 2,920 10,650 (73)% 

sei-viciiig rights ............................... 1,145 100% 

brokcragc fees ........... 216 24x (13)‘X 

Othcr operating income ..... 1,421 1,611 ( l2)% 

Ne1 gain on sale of rnorlgage 

I nvcstmcn t advisory and 

Insurance commission in 2YY 268 12% 

Total otlicr iiicoiiic ....................... $ 19,794 $26,577 (26)% 

In addition to net interest incotne, the Bank’s three operating 
segineiits, as well as ICXM gcncratc vnrious streams of fee- 
based income, including investment managcmcnt and trust 
incomc, insurance commissions, service charges oti deposit 
nccounts, loan servicing income and gainsilosses on loan sulcs, 
atid i n  2004 a gain on the sale ot‘MSKs. 
Fees for investment management md  trust services increased 
$603,000 o r  6% from $9,484,000 i n  2003 to $1 O,OX7,OOO io 
2004. Kcfer to the discussion under the heading “Wealth 
Managetnent Line of Business” on page X of this Report. 
Service charges on deposit accounts decreased $69,000 or 4%, 
from $1,890,000 in 2003 to $ I  ,827,000 i n  2004. Increased 
average outstanding deposit balances, partidly offset by low 
earnings credit rates, which produce an earnings credit to orfsct 
servicc charges, were sufficient to produce this reduction in 
service charges on deposit accounts in 2004, compared to 2003. 

Other fees and scivice charges dccrcascd $54 1,000 or 22%, 
from $2,420,000 for 2003 to $1,879,000 for 2004. ‘l’he pritnary 
reasons for this decrease wiis a reduction in residential 
refinancing activity, discussed in the Mortgage Banking 
segment, and the sale of MSKs iii the Grst quarter of2004. ‘I‘he 
MSR sale accounted for a $245,000,000 rcduction in loans 
serviced for others, thereby lowering loan servicing fccs in  
2004, compared to similar fees carncd i n  2003. 

As discussed in the “Mortgage Uanking Line of Uusincss” 
section, the $7,730,000 or 73% decrease in gains on the sale of 
residential mortgage loans was directly atlributable to a 
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$483,136,000 or 77% decrease in the volume ofresidciitial 
mortgage loans sold, compared to 2003, 
Other operating income decreased $ I90,OOO or 1294, from 
$ I ,6 I 1,000 for 2003, compared to $1,42 1,000 for 2004. 
Included in other operating income are fees earned by HMTSS, 
frotii its partnership with a title iiisurancc company. These fccs 
dccrcased by $342,000 or 15% frotn $454,000 for 2003, to 
$ 1  12,000 reported for 2004. The reduction in fees earned by 
BMTSS rrom ycar to year i s  directly attributable to the 77% 
decrease in the voluiiie of residential loan sales, discussed 
prcviously. This decrease in BMTSS fees is the primary reason 
for the 12% decline in other operating income in 2004, 
coinpared to 2003. Partially offsctting this decrease in othcr 
operating income was a $40,000 reitnbursement from a loan 
agreetnent iii 2004, relatcd to a prior year and an increase iii 
rental income of $26,000 from a property leased by the Bank, 
as well as a $24,000 incrcnsc in sweep fees c:irncd by the Rank. 
Brokerage dccreased by $32,000 or 13%, while insurancc 
commission income rose by $3 1,000 or 12Yi 

Othcr Expenses 
l’hc following table dctails other expeiises for the years ended 
December 3 I ,  2004 and 2003, and the percent change froiii year 
to year: 
‘I’ABIX 8 - Other Expenscs 

200‘4 2003* ‘%, Cllange 

Salaries-regular ............... 5 13,567 $ 13,596 O‘X 
Salaries-other ............ 1,446 1,438 I Yo 
Employee benctits .... 4,297 4,353 ( I ) %  

eytiipment .............. 1,785 1,806 (l)%;, 
Advertising ............... 879 h74 30%) 
Profossiond fees ....... .......... 1,799 937 !12% 

587 607 (3)X C‘omputcr processing 

lnsurancc 151 156 ( 3 ) %  

Occupancy expcnsc .. 2,161 1,961 IOYo 
Furniltire, lixturcs, and 

...................... 
................... Stationery and supplies 282 316 (11)X 

................ 
Aniorlization of MS 839 2,814 (70)X 
Other opcrating cxp ...... 3,832 4,779 (20)‘%, 

Total other expenses ........ $ 31,625 $ 33,437 ( 5 ) x  

* Hrr,lii.cci/ic~d /or ~ . o m p n ~ ~ 7 f i i ~ ~  p i i i p c j s t a .  

Total other expenses decreased for the year ended 
Dccctnbcr 3 I ,  2004, by $ I  ,8 12,000 or 5%. Regular salaries, 
consisting o t  regular, part time and overtime salary expense, the 
largest component of other expcnscs, decreased $29,000 or less 
than 1%. Staffing tuniovcr and the Bank’s ability to replace 
necessary vacant positions fiom within the Bank arc the 
primary rciisotis for regulur salaries being even with 2003 levels 
not withstanding a 3% saliiiy increase. As of December 31, 
2004, the C‘orporation’s consolidated full-time equivalenl 
staffing level was 237.5 cornpared lo 247.5 as o f  
December 3 1,2003. 



Other salaries increased $8,000 or I %  from 2003 to 2004. 
Primarily retlecting the decrease in mortgage banking activity 
in  the Mortgage Ranking business segment, incentive-based 
salaries in the Uaiik’s credit division decreased $780,000 or 
650/. Offsetting this decrease were increases in incentive based 
salaries incurred in the Wealth Management business segment, 
rclated to new business development, increasing $187,000 or 
165%, the accrual of a corporate wide bonus pool of $275,000 
for 2004, compared to no corporate wide bonus pool in 2003, a 
$77,000 incentive pool rclatcd to the sale of MSKs in 2004, 
compared to no such pool in 2003, and an overall increase in 
other incentives related to new business acquisition within the 
Bank of$130,000 or 41%. Also related to the decrease in 
residential mortgage loan sales was a $1 19,000 or 56% 
decrcasc compared to 2003 in  the deferred expenses related to 
mortgage originations as required by C i h h P .  All of these 
changes in 2004 from 2003 accounted for $7,000 of the $8,000 
net change in other salaries from year to year. 
Employee benefit costs decreased $56,000 or 1% in 2004 from 
2003 Icvels. There was a decrcasc of $I  X 1,000 in the expensc 
associated with the Corporation’s pension plan, which produced 
an expense of $935,000 i n  2004 compared to $ I, 1 16,000 in 
2003. Increasing pension asset values are primarily responsible 
for this decrease in pension expenses. Partially offsetting this 
decrciisc was an increase in fringc benefits: other fringe benefits 
were up $98,000 or 22%, primarily drivcn by an increase in the 
Corporation’s postretirement benefits expensc up $9 1,000 or 
95% from 2003. 
Occupancy cxpcnses increased $200,000 or 10% from 2003. 
l h i s  is mainly related to the new branch office in Newtown 
Square, Pennsylvania, which opened during the first quarter of 
2004. This expensc did not exist in 2003. 
Advertising expenses incrcased by $205,000 or 30%, due 
primarily to an increase in the cost of radio advertising. 
Professional fees increased by $862,000 or 92%. The largest 
increase wiis related to accounting and consulting fees incurred 
to comply with the requirements of SOX-404 of $220,000 and 
$250,000, respectively. Exclusive of the SOX-404 related 
expense, consulting expenses grew by $218,000 or 55%, due 
primarily to consulting cxpcnses associated with enhancing the 
Corporation’s public image, iis well as consulting fees paid to 
the retired CEO of ICBM for managing the Clorporation’s 
insurance policies. 
The amortization of MSRs decreased $ 1,975,000 or 70% 
from 2003 to 2004. This decrease is associated with the 77% 
decrease in the volume of residential refinancing activity and 
the sale MSKs discussed above in thc Mortgage Banking 
segment 
Other operating expenses decreased $947,000 or 20% from 
$4,779,000 in 2003 to $3,832,000 in 2004. The decrcasc in 
rcsidential mortgage loan salc activity in 2004 was primarily 
responsible for a $I  ,176,000 decrcasc in other operating 

cxpenses of the Mortgage Banking segment. Included in other 
operating expense in 2003 was a $250,000 elimination of a 
prior accntiil for potential litigation that was deemed 
unnecessary as of Dccember 3 1,2003. Thc decreased Mortgage 
Banking segment related expenses in 2004 and the elimination 
of the $250,000 accrual reversal, effectively increasing 
expenses in 2004, accounts for $926,000 of the decrease in 
other operating cxpenses for 2004, cornpared to a total decrease 
of $947,000 i n  2004, compared to 2003. 
Income Taxes 
The income taxes for 2004 werc $4,752,000, cornpared to 
$6,049,000 for 2003. This represents im effective tax rate of 
33.7% and 34.4% for 2004 and 2003, respcctively. Income 
taxes for tinanciiil reporting purposes differ from the amount 
computed by applying the statutoxy rate to income before taxes, 
due priniarily to tax-cxcnlpt income from certain loans and 
investment securities. 
FINANCIAL CONUITION 

lnvcstment Securities 
Maiiageiiient has elected to classify 100% of the investment 
portfolio as held for sale. Therefore, the investment portfolio 
was carried at its cstimated market value of $35,44 1,000 and 
$3 1,397,000 as of December 3 I ,  2004 and 2003, respectively. 
The amortized cost of the portfolio as of December 3 I, 2004 
was $35,654,000, resulting in net unrealized losses of‘ 
$213,000. The amortized cost of the portfolio at Dcccmber 3 I ,  
2003 was $3 1,4 1 1,000, resulting in net unrealized losses 
of$14,000. 
TABLE 9 - Investment Portfolio 

MAlrring Maturing 
frum rroni 

Maturinp. 2006 20111 Maturine. 
durine. thruuxh Ihrciugll nfter 

(dullurs vi rhousmlci 2005 2009 2014 2014 ‘Iota1 

Ohligationh or the U.S. 
CitwcmrntriI and agencies: 

$ 3,475 ?i 21.351 .y; 3,967 -- $28,793 
3.3% 2.4% 3.1% 3.5% - 

Stale arid political subdivisions: 
Ruok yiiliic - 5,098 - 5,OYX 
Weighted avcragc yicld ....... - 3.2% - 3.2% 

........................... 

Othur investtnent securities: 
Rook value ............... 54 306 1.190 1,550 - 
Wcightcti avcragu yicld __ - - 

Total book v;tloc ......................... $ 3,529 $ 21.351 $ Y,371 $ 1,190 $ 35,441 
Weighted average yicld .............. 2.4% 3.1% 3.2% 0.0% 3.0% 

During 2004, $13,147,000 in investments were called and 
$204,000 of Federal Homc Loan Bank of Pittsburgh (the 
“FHLB”) stock was redeemed. During 2004, purchases of 
investment securitics amounted to $17,568,000. Those 
transactions were primarily responsible for the $4,044,000 or 
13% increase in thc investment portfolio from December 3 I ,  
2003, to December 3 I ,  2004. At December 3 I, 2004, 
approximately 81% of the investmcnt portfolio consisted of 
fixed rate U.S. Government Agency securities. The Corporation 
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does not own any derivativc investments and at the current 
timc, does not plan to purchase any such invcstments in the 
foreseeablc future. 
Loans 
For Bnancial reporting purposes, both fixcd and floating ratc 
home equity loans, collateralized by mortgages, are included in 
other permanent mortgage loans. Floating rate personal lines of 
credit loans are includcd in consumer loans. 
Table 10 - Loan Portfolio 
A brcakdown of the loan portfolio by major categories at 
December 3 I for cach of the last five ycars is as follows: 

Dcrcmber 31 
(in thouwind\) 2004 2003 20U2 20(11 200(J 

Real cstate loans: 
Pcrrnanent 

mortgage 

Constnictioii 

Commercial and 

iomls ................. 330,442 $ 263,220 .R 244,638 $ 177,479 x 135,777 

loans ................. 36,941 36,235 27,514 20,416 10,642 

industrial 
louis ................. 186,923 178,381 170,286 167,452 147,398 

lonns ................. 10,291 18,580 24,537 35,521 61,181) 

Total .............. $ 564,597 % 502,416 $ 466,975 Y; 400,868 r6 355,006 

Consumer 

1s 

The maturity distribution of the loan portfolio, excluding loans 
secured by onc to Sour family rcsidential property and consumer 
loans, at December 31,2004, is shown below. 

MaturinE 
from 

Maturing 2006 Maturing 
during through ilfter 

( in tlioir,rendv) 200s 2009 ZUOY Total 

C:onimercial, financial, 

Real estate- 
and agricultural ............... $ 100,227 $ 62,869 $ 23,827 $ 186,923 

construction ..................... 15,420 15,757 5.764 36,941 
Kea1 esVate- 

other ................................. 710 19,368 117,063 137,141 

Total ................................... $ 116JS7 .R 97,994 $ 146,6S4 .R 361,005 

Interest sensitivity o n  
lhc above loans: 

Loans with 
prcdetermined 
rates ........................... $ 9,915 $ 46,414 $ 16,876 $ 73,265 

adjustablz or 
floating rates .............. 191,207 88,167 8,366 287,740 

Total ....................... r6 201,122 $ 134,641 $ 25,242 $ 361,005 

There are no schcduled prepayments on the loans included in 
the maturity distributions. 



Table 1 I - Loan Portfolio and Nonpcrforming Asset Analysis 

A t  Ilecernlrer 31,2004 

(in /hoii.wrtu(r) 

Loan Porttnlio 

Past Drir Puvt Orre 

Currcnt Day, vr Miire Loans 
30 to 89 90 Days 'Iota1 

Rcal estate loans: 
Permanent morlgage loans: 

Rcsidcntial ........................................... $ X 1,725 . Pi, 984 $ 1,080 $ X3,789 
C'ornmcrcial .......................................... 137,071 63 7 137,141 
Hornc cquity ......................................... 109,482 24 6 109,512 

Tola1 perniannent mortgage loans 328,278 I ,07 I 1,093 330,442 

Construction mortgage loans: 
- - 32,059 

_ 4,882 

l'otal construction mortgage loans .................. 36,941 - - 36,941 

Tola1 real estate loans . 365,219 1,07 I 1,093 367,383 

Conimercial and industrial loans ................ 186,X44 79 186,923 

Total commercial aiid industrial hans ............ 186,844 79 180,023 

Consuincr loans: 

Kesidcntial ................................................. 32,059 
C:ominercial ............ 4,882 

- 

907 
................ 500 4 10 604 

8,758 16 6 8,780 

Total coiisiirrier loans ...................................... 10,236 39 16 I0,29 1 

Unallocated reserve lor loan loss - - 

Total ............................................................... $ 562,299 $ I , I  89 $ 1,109 $ 564,597 

- ......................................... 888 I9 

Loan Lon 
He<ervc 

Imnu * Owncd Asset, Allocation 

I093 357 X06 

643 
98 

- I 74 1 - 

1093 357 1450 I 1,547 

3,575 fl -- 3,575 

% 1,109 $ 357 $ 1,466 $ 6,927 



The Bank’s lending function is its principal income generating 
activity, and it is the Bank’s policy to continue to serve the 
credit needs of its market area. Total loans at December 3 I ,  
2004 increased 12% to %504,597,000 rrom $502,416,000 as of 
Dcccnibcr 3 1,2003. 
The largest growth in outstanding balances occurred in 
residential loans secured by real estate, which increased by 
$44,358,000 or 397’0, firom $1 14,677,000 at December 3 I ,  2003 
to $159,035,000 at December 3 I ,  2004. In an cfhrt  to enhance 
current net interest income, the decision was made in the fourth 
quarter of 2003, to hold some shorter-term residential mortgagc 
loans in the Rank’s loan portfolio. ‘This is the primary reason 
for this increase in  outstanding residential iiiortgage loans. 
Available for sale mortgage loans increased by $S,O 17,000 or 
I36%, from $3,6O 1,000 at December 3 I ,  2003 lo $8,708,000 at 
year-end 2004. 
C:oiiimercial iiiortgagc loan biilances increased by $17,293,000 
or 1494, from $120,188,000 at December 3 I , 2003 to 
$137,481,000 as of December 31,2004. 
Second mortgage loans, originated as a function of the 
Mortgage Banking scgment, decreased 18% or $5,542,000, 
from $3 I ,203,000 at December 3 1, 2003 to $25,hh I ,000 at year 
end 2004. 
As of December 3 I ,  2004, the construction loan portfolio 
increased by $706,000 or 20/, from $3h,235,000 at 
Deceinber 3 I, 2003, to $36,941,000 at December 3 I ,  2004. ‘I’hc 
construction lending function continues to maintain banking 
relationships with builders who are priinarily located within the 
Bank’s marketing area. As of December 3 1, 2004 and 2003, the 
construction lending portfolio had neither any nonpcrroniiiiig 
loans nor any loans delinquent 30 days o r  more. 
Chnmercial and industrial loan balances grew $8,542,000 or 
S% from $1723,38 1,000 at December 3 I ,  2003 to $ I Xh,923,000 
at December 3 1, 2004. This net increase is inclusive o f  early 
pay downs by two borrowers totaling $14,240,000 in 
commercial and industriiil loan balances in 2004. Chtinucd 
incrciiscd business development in the Bank’s commercial 
lending market area is the primary reasoii for this growth. 
Consumer loans, consisting of loans to individuals for 
household, automobile, family, iind other coiisuiner needs, as 
well as purchased indirect rtutoniobilc paper from autoiiiobile 
dealers in the Rank’s market iircii, dccrcascd $8,289,000 or 
45%, from $18,580,000 at December 3 I ,  2003, to $10,29 1,000 
at December 3 I ,  2004. Continued pay downs of dealer 
automobile paper, as well as pay downs or  Gxed rate home 
eqiiity loiins arc priiiiarily responsible for this dccrcasc. 
Mortgage Servicing Rights 
As a part of its side ofresidential mortgage loans to the 
secondary market, for those loans sold with the loan servicing 
retained by the Bank, the Bank records MSRs as an asset. 
During 2004, the Bank has significantly decreased its 

residential mortgitgc origination and sale activity, thereby 
decreasing the balances of MSRs being recorded on its books. 
As ofneceniber 3 I ,  2004, MSRs recorded 011 the Bank’s 
balance sheet amounted to $3,172,000, a 28% decrease from 
$439 1,000 in MSRs as of December 3 1,2003. MSRs are 
recorded on the Bank’s balance sheet at values determined by 
reviewing the current value of MSRs in the mortgage servicing 
market. The currcnt value of new MSRs being recorded, as 
loans are sold with servicing retained, is reviewed periodically 
and any ad.justmcnt to the initial basis point values being 
recorded is done in a tinicly niaiiiier. Partially because of the 
sale ofMSRs for $245,000,000 in lonns serviced for others in 
the Brst quarter of2004 and a decline in the amount of new 
loans generated in  2004, compared to prior periods, the balance 
of residential mortgage loans serviced for others aiiiourited to 
$480,494,000 and $755,132,000 as of Decembcr 3 I ,  2004 and 
December 3 I ,  2003, respectively. 
Quarterly, the book value ofthe MSRs is tested for impairnxnt 
by an independent valuation tirm. Should iiny impairment 
occur, the MSK balances are written down against the Bank’s 
current income. I n  an increasing residential interest rate 
environment, prepayment spccds associated with related MSKs 
should slow, and prcpaymcnts of the MSRs will be less likely. 
Ilowever, in a lower residential mortgage lonn interest rate 
environment, il is niore likely that mortgage loans that were 
sold by the Hank with the servicing retained will be refinanced 
and the balaiice ofthe MSRs would bc subject to accelerated 
amortization, thus reducing the Bank’s income. Should the 
Bank rehaiice the loans, the accelerated amortization of the 
MSRs may be offset by the recording of new MSKs, increasing 
the gain on the loans sold, thereby reducing or eliniinitting the 
negative effect of the accelerated amortization of the MSKs. 
Sliould the Bank not rcfiiiiincc or replace the loans being paid 
off, the Rank’s net income would be reduced to the extent of 
the aggregate accelerated amortization as the respective 
mortgage loans arc paid off. 
Deposits 
The Rank attracts deposits from within its market area by 
offering various deposit instruments, including savings 
accounts, NOW accounts, money market accounts, certificates 
of deposit iind lion-interest bearing demand deposit accounts. 
Total dcposils increased 14% to $h00,9h5,000 ut December 3 1 , 
2004, from $527,139,000 at year-end 2003. Due primarily lo 
coiitinued strong deposit growth in 2003 aiid 2004, there were 
no shorl-knii borrowings at either Dcccmbcr 31, 2004 or 2003. 
A more meaningful measure of the change in deposits and 
short-term borrowings is average daily balances. As illustrated 
i l l  Tablc 12, iivcragc daily deposit balances increased 14%. 
Strong growth in  low costing money market arid NOW account 
average balances, combined with the ability to lower overall 
iiitcrcst rates paid for interest-bearing deposits and short-term 
borrowings was priiiiarily responsible for ii 10 b 

17 



decrease in the average cost of funds for 2004, coinpared to 
2003. The average cost of funds for 2004 was .8% compared to 
.9% for 2003. 
The following tablc presents the average daily balances of 
deposits and the percentage change for the years indicated: 
TABLE 12 - Average Daily Balances of Deposits 

(dollnr\ itr Ihou.w,,rhJ 2004 2003 2004 VS. mu3 2002 2003 “I. 2002 
%I Changc % Ctinnge 

Dcmand dcposits, non- 
intcrcst-hmring ....... 

Market rate accounts .. 123,651 85,984 43.8% 61,105 40.7% 
NOW accnutits ........... 149,058 127,Y27 16.5% 117,864 8.5% 
Regular swmgs .......... 51,263 49,736 3.1 % 42,756 16.3% 

Savings deposits ......... 323,972 263,647 22.9% 221,125 18.9% 

‘Time deposits ............. 102,369 96,996 5.5% 7Y,332 22.3% 

5 563,677 % 495,978 13.6% $ 41Y.006 18.4% 

The following table shows the maturity of certificates of deposit 
of $100,000 or greater as of Dcceinber 3 1,2004: 
TABLE 13 - Maturity of Certificatcs of Deposit of $100,000 

or Greater 
(in thou.wn&) 

I hrce months or less ................................................... $ 19,546 
Thrcc to six months ..................................................... 5,344 
Six to twelve month .,, ........................................ 9,026 
Greater than twelve s ., ...................................... 5,734 

. $39650 A Total ........ , , ... , ........................... t .... e .. e e e ... 
Capital Adequacy 
At Dcccmber 3 1,2004, total sharcholders’ equity of the 
Clorporation was $7 1,238,000, a $3,856,000 or 6% increase 
ovcr $67,382,000 at December 31,2003. Increasing the capital 
was the addition of earnings, after the payment of the dividends 
for the year, capital from the exercise of stock options, less 
shares repurchascd in the Corporation’s stock repurchase 
program, offset by the reduced market value of the investment 
securities year to year. As of December 3 1,  2004, sharcholdcrs’ 
equity included accumulated othcr comprehensive loss on 
investment securities and the supplemental pension, net of 
dcfcrred taxes, of $288,000 coinpared to accumulated other 
comprehensive loss on investment securities and the 
supplemental pension, net of deferred taxes, of $126,000 at 
December 3 1,2003. ‘I‘his change caused a $162,000 dccrease to 
shareholders’ equity from Dcccmber 3 1,2003 to 
December 3 1,2004. 
The Corporation and the Bank arc required to meet certain 
regulatory capital adequacy guidelines. lJndcr these guidelines 
risk-based capital ratios measure capital as a percentage of risk- 
adjusted assets. Risk-adjusted assets are determined by 
assigning various wcights to all assets and off-halancc sheet 
arrangcmcnts, such as letters of credit and loan commitments, 
based on the associated risk. 
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Thc Bank’s risk-based capital ratios at December 3 1,2004 and 
2003 are listed below. These ratios arc all in excess of the 
minimum required capital ratios, also listed below. 
TABLE 14 - Risk-Based Capital Ratios 

2UU4 2003 

Minimum Minimum 
Actual Required Actunl Required 

Tier I capital ratio ..................... 9.YY‘% 4.00% 10.12% 4.00% 
Total capital ratio 11.09 8.00 11.30 8.00 

‘L‘hc FDIC has created a statutory framework for capital 
requirements that established five categories of capital strength, 
ranging from a high of “wcll-capitalized’ to a low of “critically 
under capitalizcd”. As of December 3 1,2004 and 2003, the 
Rank exceeded the levels required to meet the definition of a 
“well-capitalized” bank. Management anticipates that the 
Corporation and thc Bank will continue to be in compliance 
with all capital requirements and continue to be classified as 
“well-capitalized.” 
The Corporation’s ability to declare dividcnds in the fuhure is 
dependent on future earnings. 
Risk Elcmcnts 
Risk elements, as defined by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission in its Exchange Act Industry Guide 3, Statistical 
Disclosures by Bank Holding Companies, iirc composed of four 
specific categories: ( I )  nonaccrual, past due, and restructured 
loans, (2) problem loans, loans not included in the first 
category, but where information known by Bank management 
indicates that the borrower may not bc able to comply with 
present payment terms, (3) foreign loans outstanding, and 
(4) loan concentrations. Table 11 presents a summary, by loan 
type, of the Bank’s nonaccrual and past due loans as of 
December 3 1,2004. It is the Bank’s policy to promptly place 
nonperforming loans on nonaccmal status. Bank management 
knows of no outstanding loans that presently would meet the 
criteria for inclusion in the problem loan catcgory, as indicated 
under specific category ( 2 )  referred to above. ‘The Bank has no 
foreign loans, and loan concentrations are presented in Table 6 
- Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses. Table 6 presents 
the percentage of outstanding loans, by loan type.. compared to 
total loans outstanding as of December 3 1,2004. 
Asset Quality 
The Bank is committed to maintaining and developing quality 
assets. Loan growth is generated primarily within the Bulk’s 
market area, which includes Montgomery, Delaware, Chester 
and Philadelphia Counties in Pennsylvania. Loan and deposit 
growth is also generated in portions of Bucks County in 
Pennsylvania. ‘I’hc development of quality loan growth is 
controlled through a unifonn lending policy that defines the 
lending functions and goals, loan approval process, lending 
limits, and loan review. 
Nonpcrforming loans were $ 1  ,109,000 at December 3 I ,  2004, a 
297% increase from $279,000 at December 3 I ,  2003. This 
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increase is primarily the result of one large residential mortgage 
loan that moved to non-pcrfonning status. Thc Bank had 
$357,000 in ORE0 balances as of December 3 I ,  2004. There 
were no ORE0 properties on the Bank’s books as of 
December 3 I ,  2003. 
TARLE I S  - Nonpcrforming Assets 

Uecembcr 31 
( in  thousumis) 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 

Loans past due 90 days or more 
not on nonaccnial status: 

Rcal cstatc rnortgagc ......... $ 6 $ 15 $ 19 $ 15 $ 18 
Cunsumer .............................. I6 40 26 28 63 

Imms on which the accrual of 
interest has been discontinued: 

- - .- -. Comncrcial arid industrial ... - 

Real eskite--niortgage ......... 1,087 205 - - - 

Real estate----- conslrucliun ..... - - - 19 -- 

Total nonperfomiing loans ......... I,lU!J 279 45 43 81 

Other real estate owned anti 
in-suhstnnce foreclosed 

- - - - properties * 357 

Total nonperfor~~~ingassets ........ $ 1,466 !$ 279 !$ 45 !$ 43 $ X I  

All loans past due 90 davLv or more, except consumer loans and 
home equity mortgage loans, are placed on nonoccrual stutus 

and uny accrued intmest incomp is revers($ fkom current 
interest income. Such factcirs us the type und ,size o f  the lmn, 
/he yuulily ($/he colluteral, und hisloricul rwditworthiness oj’ 
the borrower and/or guuruntors are considered b-v management 
in assessing the collectibility qfsuch loans. Interest.foregone on 
nonaccrucll status loiins was %88,000,for the year ended 
Decemher 3 1 I 2004. Interest earned und included in inleriw 
income on /hest? huns prior lo lheir nonpctjbrming stutus 
amounted to $44,000 in 2004. 
* Kef& to Note 2 to the consoli~ate~,financial statements. 

The Rank maintains a Loan Review Committee (the 
“Coinmittee”) that periodically reviews thc status of all non- 
itccrual, impaired loans, and loans criticized by the Bank’s 
regulators. An independent consultant is retained to review both 
the loan portfolio as well as the overall adequacy of the loan 
loss reserve. The methodology used to arrive at an appropriate 
allowance for loail loss involves a high degree of management 
judgment. It is thc goal of this loan loss reserve adequacy 
process to provide a loan loss reserve sufficient to address the 
Bank’s risk of loan losses, in the existing loan portfolio, during 
various economic cycles. During the review of the loan loss 
reserve, the Committee considers allocations of the loan loss 
reserve to those specitic loans reviewed by the Committee on a 
loan-by-loan basis. Also considered is an inherent loan loss in 
specific pools of similar loans, bascd on prior historical loss 
activity and the impact of thc currcnt economic environment. 
The sum of all analyzed loan components i s  compared to the 
loan loss reserve balance, and any adjustments deemed 

necessary to the loan loss reserve balance are rnadc on it 
timcly basis. 
The Rank is a Pennsylvania banking institution subjcct to the 
jurisdiction of the Pennsylvania Department of Ranking, and is 
a state member bank of thc I:cdcral Kcscrvc System. The Bank 
is regulated and periodically cxamincd by both those entities. 
There are no recomtnendations by the regulators, which would 
have a material effect on the Corporation’s or Rank’s asset 
quality, liquidity, capital resources, or results of operations. 
Off-Balance Sheet Commitmcnts and Contractual Cash 
Obligations 
The Bank has financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk 
that are used to help our customers meet their financing needs. 
Thcsc instruments have elements of credit risk that exceed the 
amount recognized in the consolidatcd statements of financial 
condition. The commitments to extend credit totaled 
$277,839,000 at December 3 I ,  2004 and $222,389,000 at 
December 3 1,2003. Unfunded mortgage commitments totaled 
$3,103,000 at December 31,2004 and $13,134,000 at 
December 3 I ,  2003. Total loan commitmcnts to cxtcnd credit 
were $269,036,000 at December 3 I ,  2004 and $2 13,207,000 at 
December 3 1,2003. The increase in coinmitinents lo extend 
credit is primarily concentrated in the commercial and home 
equity lines of credit secured by real estate. Standby letters of 
credit, which are conditional commitments issued by the Bank 
to a customer for a third party to support a private borrowing 
arrangement, were $8,803,000 and $9,182,000 as of 
December 3 1,2004 and December 3 1,2003, respectively. 
‘I’hcsc cornrnitmcnts generally have fixed expiration dates or 
other tcrrnination clauses and may rcquirc pitymcnt of a fee. 
Please refer to Note I5 to the accompanying Consolidated 
Financial Stateinents for expanded discussion of off-balance 
shcct commitmcnts. 
The following chart presents the off-balance sheet coiiiinitlneiits 
of the Bank its of December 3 1,2004, listed by dates of funding 
or payment: 

Within 1 2 - 3  4 - 5  Aftcr 5 
(It1 !hOt6StltldS) Total ycar years ycars ycars 

Unftinded loan 
commitments 

Standby letters 
of credit ................ 8,803 8,803 

Total $277,839 $163,930 $40,60X $60,683 $12,618 

While unrundcd loan coiimitments and standby letters of credit 
could potcntially bc funded within a one ( 1 )  year timeframe 
from date of issuance, funding of these unfunded amounts will 
not necessarily be required within the one ( I )  year timefiarne 
and funding requirements could be partially funded by 
repayments of existing loan balances. 

$260,036 $155,127 $40,608 $1,0,6X3 $12,61X 

- - - 



The Rank has cntcred into a number of contractual obligations 
to support the ongoing activities of the Bank. The following 
chart presents the contractual cash obligations of lhe Bank as of 
Deccnibcr 3 1, 2004, listed by dates of required payments: 

Within I 2 - 3  4 - 5  Af ter  5 
‘l‘otal yrur years yrars ycurs 

Dcposits without a 

Consumer C:L)’s (b) .,.. 1 10,470 89,449 20,433 489 99 
Operaling leases ........ I 1,516 787 1,246 1,172 8,31 1 
Purchase obligations .. 3,372 1,XIO 1,047 465 50 
Noti-discretioiiary 

stated maturity (a) ... $569,795 $569,795 $ - $ % -  

pension 
contributions ........... 131 131 - ._ 

Total .......................... 
(a) Excludcs iiilcrcst 
(b) Includes inkrcsl 

The Bank’s operating lease obligations represent rental 
payineiits for facilities and data processing cquipment. Purchase 
ohligations represent obligations under agreements to purchase 
goods and services that are enforceable and legally binding on 
the Bank. ‘Ihc purchase obligations arc prirnarily related to 
contrachia~ payiiicnls for the outsourcing of certain operational 
activities and inforniational technology. ‘l’hc ainount of non- 
discretionary pension contribulions for future pcriods cimnot be 
readily dctcrniined. The non-discretionary pension payment 

$695,284 $661,972 $22,726 $2,126 $8,460 

included in the chart represents the required payments to 
participants in the Corporation’s Supplemental Employee 
Retirement Plan (“SERP”). 
Asset and Liability Management 
Through its AssetiLiability Coinmittee (“ALC’O”) and the 
application of its risk management policies and procedures, the 
Bank seeks to niinimizc its exposure to intcrcst rate risk as well 
as to maintain sul‘fcient liquidity and capital compliance. 
Interest Rate Scnsitivity 
The difference between intcrcsl sensitive assets and interest 
sensitive deposits, stated i n  dollars, is referred to its the interest 
rate sensitivity gap. A positive gap is created when interest rate 
sensitive assets excccd interest rate sensitive deposits. A 
positivc interest rate sensitive gap will result in ii greater portion 
of assets compared to deposits rcpricing with changcs in 
interest rates within specitied time pcriods. The opposite effect 
results fi-om a negative gap. In practice, however, thcre inay be 
ii lag in repricing some products in comparison to others. A 
positivc gap in the short-term, 30  days or less, in  a rising 
interest rate cnviroiiiiient should produce an increasc in net 
interest incornc. ‘The converse is truc o ra  negative gap in a 
rising interest rate cnvironrnent. 
As shown in  thc following table, the Bank is presently asset 
interest rate sensitive in  thc short-term, 30 days or less category. 

TABLE 16 - Intercst Rate Sensitivity Analysis as of December 31,2004 

Kcpriting Periods .””, . 
u to 3u 3 I to 90 91 to 180 181 to 365 Over Non-Rate 

(tkdlcrr~ in thozrscmdvj Days Days Days I h y s  1 Year Sensitive Total 

Assets: 
Interest-bearing dcposits with other banks ..... $ 15,293 $ $ - $  $ - $ - $ 15,293 

- .- - 13,423 
Tnvcstment securities ...................... 3,012 3,466 7,047 I x,x40 17 35,441 
Loans ................ I 1,465 12,614 17,363 223,489 (6,927) 557,670 
Cash and due frot - - 26,526 26,526 

..................................................... - - - 34,593 34,593 Othc1- asse1s 
‘l‘otal asscts ..................................................... $ 331,435 $ 14,477 $ 16,081 $ 24,410 $ 242,334 $ 54,209 $ 682,946 

Liabilitics and shareholders’ equity: 
Demand, nonintcrcst-bearing .......................... $ 30,486 $ $ - $  $ -  $ 116,750 $ 147,236 
Savings dcposits ............................................. 18,847 37,692 IS,911 3 1 ,X2 I 238,988 343,259 

1 10,470 
- 10,717 10,743 

$ 68,950 $ 61,474 $ 31,439 $ 62,369 $ 260,009 % IOX,705 $ 682,946 

..... 262,4X5 (46,997) (15,358) (37,959) (17,673 (I 44,496) - 

162, I 71  144,496 - Cumulative gap ........................... 262,485 2 I5,4XX 200,130 

C‘uinulativc carnjng a 



‘l’hc Corporation measiires its interest rate risk as it effects its 
market value of portfolio equity using a discounted cash flow 
analysis to determine the net present value (”NPV”)  of its net 
assets (iisscts iniiius liabilitics). NPV is calculated based 011 the 
net present value of estimated cash flows utilizing various 
assuiiiptions. The Corporation’s interest rate risk is measured as 
the change to its NPV as a result o r a  hypothetical immediate 
IO0 and 200 basis point change in murket interest rates. Based 
on this analysis at Deccinbcr 31, 2004 the Corporation would 
experience a 64 basis point decrease in its NPV as a percent uf 
asscts if interest rates decrease by 100 basis points in 
comparison to a flat rate sccnario. Due to thc abnormally low 
interest rate environment, decreases of200 basis points have 
been omitted. 
(:liangcs in  Market 
lrilcrcst Ratcr 
Hasis Points $ Aoioiist $ (’Iiangc % change NPV Ret!- 

Markct Valric of Piirllolio Equity 

+200 r6: 63,883 $ 1,068 I .70‘%, 9.67% 
I100 63,889 1,074 1.71% I2.5.3% 

-100 59, I X2 (3,633) (5.7X)%, X.(12‘%, 

The Hank uses iiicoiiic simulation models to nieasiire its inlcrest 
rate risk and to niaiiage its interest rate sensitivity. The 
simula~ion models consider not cmly [he iriipact of changes in 
interest rates on forccasied net interest income, but also such 
factors ;is yield curvc relationships, loan prepayments, and 
deposit withdrawals. As of year-end 2004, based or1 an iinalysis 
of the results from the sirnulation models, the Bank’s interest 
rate risk was within the acceptable riinge as establishcd by the 
Rank’s AssclJLiability Policy. 
While hitlire intcrest rate movements and tlicir cLlbct on Hank 
revenue cannot be predicted, there arc no trends, events, or 
uncertainties of which the Chporation’s management is 
currently aware that will have, or are reasonably likely to have, 
ii inaterial effect on the Corporation’s liquidity, capital 
rcsoiirces, or results o l  operations in the hiture. In fittiire 
periods, shodd interest rates begin to rise, the Corporation 
would benefit from its asset interest rate sensitivity, increasing 
its net interest margins, while continuing to dccrcase its 
revenues obtaincd froni residential relinancing. 

Liquidity 
The Bank’s liquidity is inaintaiiied by inanaging its core 
deposits, purchasing federal funds, selling loans to the 
sccondary markc(, atid borrowing horn the FHL13. 

The Bank’s liquid assets include cash arid cash cquivaleiits as 
well BS certain unpledged iiivestmcnt securities. Bank 
managcmcnt has developed a liquidity measure, incorporating 
its ability to borrow from the FHLB to mcct liquidity needs and 
goals. Monthly, ALCO reviews the Bank’s liquidity needs, 
incorporating the ability to borrow from thc FHLB and reports 
these tindings to the Risk Management Corntnittcc of the 
Bank’s Board of Directors. 

- - 0 h2,X I 5  

(a) C‘:ilculated as thc cstiiixitetl NPV divided by the pi-mctit value of  total asscts. 

As presented in the Consolidated Statenlent of Cash Flows on 
page 28 ofthis Kcport, during 2004, cash provided by 
operations amounted to $9,311,000. ‘Ihis was a $26,672,000 
dccrease from $35,983,000 of income from continuing 
operations i n  2003. ‘I‘his decrease was due primarily to a 
$30,960,000 net decrcasc in procecds from loan sales, net of 
loans originated for salc from $35,025,000 in 2003 to 
$4,065,000 in 2004. Gains on the sale of loans also provided 
$4,065,000 in positive cash flow from operations. 

Cash uscd for investing activities amounted to $hX,756,000. 
hivestmcnt activity used %4,217,000 in ciish, as the balance in 
the invcstmeiit portfolio increased by 13%) at 1)cccmber 3 1, 
2004, conipiired to Decembcr 31, 2003. The net fiinding of 
loiins used $63,258,000 in funding. The cost of premises 
improvements and the pwchase of eyuipiiient uscd $1,7 16,000 
and the pay downs of the notes rcccivable from PI;O, associated 
with the Asset Sale, incrcased cash flows by $435,000. 

Offsetting the decrease in funds from investing activities was ail 
increase in funds from the Rank’s Linancing activities, which 
provided $68,392,000 in nei cash, priinarily the result of a 
$73,826,000 increase i n  deposits. The Corporation received 
$S97,000 in proceeds rroin the issuance of common stock, 
related to stock option exercises and uscd $2,574,000 to 
rcpurchase coininoil stock, pursuant to the Stock Repmchasc 
Program and $3,446,000 to pay dividends in 2004. The 
Corporation’s cash iind cash eqiiivaleiits incrcascd from 
Deccmber 3 I ,  2003, to December 3 1, 2004, by $8,947,000, 
lroin $46,295,000 at December 3 I ,  2003 to $55,242,000 at 
Dcceniber 3 I ,  2004. 

QUANTITATIVE ANI) ~ITALITAL‘IVE: DISCLOSUKICS AHOUT 

~ ~ 

The Quiintitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market 
Risk are included in the Management Discussion and Analysis 
under the hcadings of Off-13alance Sheet Conmitriients and 
Contractual Cmh Ob1 igations, Asset and Liability Management, 
lntcrest Rate Sensitivity and Liquidity. 

Devclupments for 2005 

Lffective February I ,  2005, the Bank started ii subsidiary, BMT 
Mortgage Services, Inc. (“RM‘I’MS”) to enter into an agreement 
with MIGC Financial LLC and M I W  Financial Agent 
Investment IdLC:, d/b/a Keller Williams, Main Line Realty 
(“KIW”), to form Bryn Mawr Mortgagc Company, LLC (the 
“LJX:”), a limited liability company, whereby WW will refer 
their clients to the J,I.,C:. Mortgage loan appliciitions taken by 
the I.,L(.’ will be submitted to UMT Mortgage Company, a 
division of the Bank. Fees and gains on the salc of loans 
generated under this agreement will be credited to the LLC. 
Both BM‘I‘MS and KIW will share in the net protits or losses of 
the LLC. 
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‘I‘hc Bank anticipates opening its next branch, located in Exton, 
Pennsylvania, during the first quarter of 2005. This branch will 
service the western area of’the Main Line and parts of 
Chester County. 

2003 VS. 2002 RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Income from continuing operations 
Income from continuing operations was $1 1,272,000 in 2003 a 
6% increase over $ 1  O,642,OOO reported for 2002. Basic 
earnings per share for 2003 were $1.30, a 7% increase over 
$1.22, reported for 2002. Diluted earnings per share for 2003 
were $1.28, a 7% increase over $1.20 reported for 2002. 

Loss from discontinued operations 

The Corporation reported ii loss from discontinucd operations 
of($1,916,000) for 2003, compared to a loss of ($435,000) in 
2002. During 2003, Corporation nianageinent determined that 
JWR & Co. was not meeting its strategic goals and, therefore, it 
was i n  the best intcrcst of thc Corporation to sell JWR & Co. 
As a result of the Corporation’s decision to sell JWK & Co.’s 
assets, the revenues and expenses of .IWR & Co., the related 
writc-down of goodwill and other related disposal expenses 
were classified as losses from discontinucd opcrations in 2003. 
The primary reason for the loss in 2002 was the write-down of 
$400,000 in goodwill in 2002, related to JWR & Co. Both basic 
and diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations 
amounted to ($0 22) in 2003, compared to ($0.05) in 2002. 

Net Income 

Net incotne for thc year cndcd December 31,2003, was 
$9,356,000, an 8% decrease from nct incomc of $10,207,000 
for the year ended December 3 1,2002. Basic earnings per share 
decreased 8% from $1.17 in 2002 to $1 .OS in 2003. Diluted 
earnings per share decreased 8% from $1.15 for 2002 compared 
to $1.06 in 2003 In 2002, the Corporation paid dividends o f  
$0.38 per share. In 2003, the Corporation paid dividends of 
$0.40 per share. 

Return on average assets was 2.0 I % for 2002 compared to 
1.98% in 2003. Return on average equity was l7,26% in 2002 
versus 17.76% in 2003. 

Nct Intcrcst Income 
Average earning assets grew I3%, primarily in higher yielding 
average loans, which also grew by 13%. The growth in higher 
yielding earning assets was offset by an 80 basis point decline 
in the average yield on earning assets during 2003, which was 
primarily responsible for ii $151,000 or 1% dccrcasc in 
interest incotne. 

Average outstanding deposits, short-term borrowing and federal 
funds purchased also increased by 1394, with non-interest 
bearing checking accounts growing by 15%, while other 
savings deposits incrcascd by 19%. Average outstanding CDs 
increased by 22%, while average shot--term borrowings 
decreased by 98%, reflecting the large increases in average 

deposits during 2003, compared to 2002. The cost of funds for 
the Bank averaged .O% for 2003 comparcd to 1 .O% for 2002, a 
I O  basis point decrease. 

Net interest income increased by $3,000 froin 2002 to 2003, 
and the net interest margin decreased from 5.34% for 2002 to 
4.70% for 2003. 

Loan Loss Provision 

The provision for loan losses amounted to $750,000 for 2003 
compared to $1,000,000 in 2002. The ratio ofthe allowance for 
loan losses to total outstanding loans was 1.33% and 1.3 I % at 
December 31,2003 arid 2002, respectively. 

Othcr Incomc 

Other incoine increased $2,678,000 or 1 1 % in 2003 from 2002 
levels. The largest incrcascs occurred in three specific 
categories. Net gains on the salc of loans were up $997,000 or 
10% from $9,653,000 at December 3 I ,  2002, comparcd to 
$10,650,000 as ofnecember 3 I ,  2003, reflecting the rcsults of 
a 13% increase in the sale or residential mortgage loans in 
2003, comparcd to 2002. Fees for investment nianagetnent and 
trust services were up $864,000 or 10% from $8,620,000 for 
2002 to $9,484,000 for 2003, due primarily to a 13% increase 
in the niarkct valuc of assets managed in the Wealth 
Maiiagement business segment. Other fees and service chiirgcs 
grcw by $673,000 or 39% froin $1,747,000 for 2002, compared 
to $2,420,000 for 2003, rcflccting the increase in residential 
mortgage loan sale activity in 2003, compared to 2002. 

Other Expenses 

Othcr expenses increased by $1,795,000 or 6%, frotn 
$3 1 ,642,000 for 2002 to $33,437,000 for 2003. Regular salaries 
increased $889,000 or 7%, from $12,707,000 for 2002 to 
$13,596,000 for 2003. Salaries-other, primarily incentive based, 
decreased $1,540,000 or 52%, from $2,978,000 for 2002 to 
$1,438,000 for 2003. The decrease was directly related to lower 
incentive-based compensation, which is directly related to 
corporate profitability. 

Employee benefits cost increased by $1,058,000 or 32% from 
$3,295,000 for 2002 to $4,353,000 for 2003. Of this increase, 
$802,000 relates to increases in the cost of the Corporation’s 
pension plan, due primarily to reductions in the value of plan 
assets, as well as the lower projected returns on plan assets. 

Advertising expenses decreased $39 1,000 or 37% from 
$1,065,000 for 2002 to $674,000 for 2003, rcflccting dccrcascs 
in the Corporation’s advertising campaign in 2003, compared 
to 2002. 

The amortization of MSRs increased $1,197,000 or 74% froin 
2002 to 2003.  This increase is associated with the increase in 
the residential refinancing activity in 2003, compared to 2002, 
discussed m the Mortgage Ranking segment. 

Othcr opcrating expenses increased $587,000 or 14% from 
2002 to 2003. Increased residential mortgage loan salc activity 
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in 2003 also generated increased related cxpcnses, such as 
appraiwl fees and loan pair off fccs. Other operating expenses 
associated with the incrcascd residential mortgage lending 
activity incrcased by $769,000, Included in other operating 
expense in 2003 was a $250,000 elimination of a prior accrual 
for potential litigation that was decmcd unnecessary as of 
December 3 I ,  2003. Exclusive of the increased residcntial 
mortgage lending related expcnscs in 2003 and the elimination 

of the $250,000 accrual reversal, other operating expenses 
increased by $142,000 or 3% in 2003, compared to 2002, 

Income Taxes 

The income tax provision for 2003 was $6,049,000, or a 34.4% 
effective rate, compared to $5,543,000, or a 34.2% effective 
rate, for 2002. 

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Renorting: 
I U 

Corporation management is responsible for both establishing 
and maintaining adequate internal control over financial 
reporting. As of‘ December 3 1,2004, management conducted an 
assessment of the effectiveness of the Corporation’s intcrtial 
control over financial reporting and concluded that such 
internal control is effective and found no material weaknesses. 
The assessment was accomplished using the criteria set forth by 
the Committcc of Sponsoring Organimtions of the Treadway 
Coininission ( “ C ~ O S O ” )  in Internal Control - Iiitegratcd 
Framework. Management has concluded that, as of 
December 3 1,2004, the Corporation’s internal control over 
financial rcporting is effective, based on the COS0 criteria. 
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Management’s assessmeiit of the effectiveness of the 
Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of 
December 3 I ,  2004 has been audited by KPMG LLP, the 
Corporation’s independent registered public accounting tim, 
having rcsponsibility for auditing the Corporation’s financial 
statcmcnts (“KPMG”). KPMG has expressed unqualified 
opinions on management’s assessment and on thc effectiveness 
of the C’orporation’s internal control over financial reporting as 
of December 3 1, 2004 and has issued an attestation report on 
the Corporation’s management’s assessment of the 
Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of 
December 3 I ,  2004. 



Report of Independent Reg stered Public Accounting Firm 

The Board of Directors and Shareholders 
Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation: 

We have audited management’s assessment, included in  the 
accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Conlrol Over 
Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A, that Uryn Mawr 
Bank Corporation and subsidiarics (the “Coinpiiny”) mainliiiiied 
effective internal control over tinancial reporting as of 
Deceiiiber 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal 
Control - Integrated Fratnework issued by the Cotrimittee of 
Sponsoring Organizations o f  the Treadway Cominissioii 
(COSO). Compaiiy iiianagemeiil is respoiisible for iiiairitaiiiing 
cffcctivc intcrnal control over financial reporting and for its 
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control ovcr financial 
1-cporling. Our responsibilily is to express an opinion oil 
managcmcnt’s asscsstncnt and an opinion on Ihc cflccliveness 
of the C’ornpany’s internal control ovcr financial reporting based 
on our audil. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standiirds of the 
Public Coiiipariy Accounting Oversight Board (Ilnited States). 
Those standards require that we plaii and perforin the audit to 
obktin reasonable assurance about whellier eLCective internal 
control over finiincial reporting wiis tniiintaincd in all material 
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of 
internal control over fiiiaricial reporting, evaluating 
tniinagcrncnt’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design 
aiid operating effectiveness of internal control, aiid performing 
such other pi-ocedures as we considered necessary in tlie 
circumstanccs. We bclicvc that our audit provides a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 

A company’s internal control over tinancial reporting is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporling and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposcs in accordancc with gcncrdly 
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control 
ovcr finiincial reporting includcs those policics and procedures 
that (1) perlaiii to the inaiiitenaiice of records that, in  reasonable 
detail, accurakly and fairly reflect tlie transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; ( 2 )  provide 
reasonable iissuraiicc that trensactioiis iwe recorded iis necessary 
to permit prcparatioii of finitlicial staleinelits in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, nnd that receipts itlid 
expendihires of the company arc being iniidc only in accordiincc 
with authorizations of tnanagernent and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance rogarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, 
o r  disposition of the cornpimy’s usscts hii t  could have a 
material effect on the tinancial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitalions, inlcniel control over 
linancial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatcmcnts. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future 
periods are subject to the risk that controls may bccornc 
inudcyuatc because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliiince with the policies 01- procedures may deteriorate. 

I n  our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company 
maintained effective internal control ovcr financial rcpol-ting as 
of December 31, 2004, i s  fairly stated, in all material respects, 
based on criteria established in Iiiteriial Control - Integrated 
Frarnework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway C‘ommission (COSO). Also, in 
oiir opinion, the Company niaintaioed, in all inaterial respects, 
effective internal control ovcr financial reporting as of 
December 3 1,2004, based on criteria established in Internal 
Control Intcgratctl Framework issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Coiiunissioii (COSO). 

We dco have audited, in  accordance with the standards of thc 
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board ( I  Jnited States), 
the consolidatcd balance shcct of Bryn MLiwr Bank Corporation 
and subsidiariec as of Deccrnbcr 3 I ,  2004, iind the rclatcd 
consolidated slateiiients of incorne, shareholders’ equity, 
coniprehensive income and cash flows for Ihc year ended 
December 3 I ,  2004, and our report datcd March 2 ,  2005 
expressed an iinqiialrtied opinion on those consolidated 
fi nit ncia I s la 1 cinciit s . The a ccoinpanying con sol I dated ti 11 an c i a1 
statements of the Company its oCDcccniber 3 1,2003 and for the 
years cndcd Dcccmbcr 3 1,2003 and 2002, wcre aiidiled by 
other auditors whose report thereon dalcd February 27,2004, 
exprecsed an unqualitied opinion on those statements. 

Philiidclphia, Pennsylvania 
March 2, 2005 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

Thc Board of Directors 
Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation: 

We have audited the itccompanying consolidated balancc shcct 
of Bryn Mltwr Bank Corporation and subsidiaries ( h e  
“Company”) as of December 31 , 2004, and the rclatcd 
consolidated statetrients of income, chitngcs in shareholders’ 
equity, comprehensive income, and cash tlows for the year then 
ended. Thcsc consolidiitcd financial statements are thc 
responsibility of  the Company’s management. Our 
i~csponsibility is to cxpress an opinion on these consolidatcd 
financial StateTlientS based on our itudit. The accompanying 
consolidated financial slalcmcnts of the Company as of 
Decetnher 3 1,2003 and foi- the years ended December 3 1,2003 
and 2002, were audited by othcr auditors whose report thereon 
rlaletl Fcbruiiry 27, 2004, expressed an unqualified opinion on 
those stittcments. 

We conducted our audit in accorditnee with the auditing 
slaiidarcls o f  the Public Company Accounting Oversight I3oard 
(United States). Thosc slandards rcquire that we plan and 
perform the audit to ohtai t i  reasonable assurance ubout 
whcthcr the financial statements are frw of matcrial 
misstaternent. An audil includcs examining, on a test basis, 
evidence suppoiling the mounts and disclosures in the 
financial stalemcn(s. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimatcs mitdc by 
management, as well as evaluating the ovcrdl financial 
statement presentation. Wc bclicvc that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

I n  our opinion, the conwlidated financial statements rcfcrrcd to 
uhovc present tairly, in  all rriaterial respects, Ihe financial 
position of the Company as of Deceinbcr 3 1,2004, and the 
results of their opcrahns and thcir cash flows for the year then 
cndcd in conformity with accounting principles generally 
itccepted I t i  the LJnited States of America. 

We also have audited, in accordance with thc stitnditrds of the 
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), 
the cffcctivcncss of the Company’s internal control over 
finitncial reporting iis of December 31 , 2004, based on crileria 
cstublished in  Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued 
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of thc 
Treadway Commission (COSO), itnd our report dated March 2 ,  
2005 expressed itn unqualified opinion on management’s 
asscssmcnt of,  and the effective operation of, internal control 
over financial reporting. 

March 2,2005 
Philadclphia, I’ennsylvania 
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Consolidated Ba 

As of December 31, 

- Assets 

ante Shee s 

2004 2003 * 
(In thousunds) 

Cash and due from banks ........................................ 
Interest-bearing deposits with other banks ........... 15,293 10,524 
Federal funds sold ........................................................................................ 
Investment sccurities available for sale, at market value (amortized cost of 

Portfolio loans .......................................................................................... 
Loans held for sale, at fair market value .............. 
Less: Allowance for loan losses .................. 

..................... 

at December 3 I ,  2004 and 2003, respectivcly) ................................................................................ 

Net loans ................................................. ....................................................................................... 557,670 495,746 

Premises and equipment, nct ................................................................... ........................................ 14,162 13,756 
Accrued intercst receivable .......................... ................................................................................. 2,579 2,274 
Mortgage servicing rights ................................................................................. ............................ ..* 3,172 4,391 
Othcr assets ..................... .............................................. 14,680 10,989 ....................................................... 

Total assets ........................................... $ 682946 $ 604,848 .............................................. 

Liabilities 
Deposits: 

......... !$ 147,236 $ 144,579 Demand, nonintcrest-bearing ......................................................................... .................... 
Savings ..................................................... ......................................... 343,259 285,364 
Time .......................... .......................... ..................................................................................... 110,470 97,191 

........................................... ...................... ................................................ 600,965 527,139 Iota1 deposits 
Othcr liabilities .................................................... .......................... ................................................. 10,743 10,327 

Total liabilities .................................... ............................................ 611,708 537,466 

* .  

Commitmcnts and contingencies (Note 15 ........ 
Shareholders' equitv 
Common stock, par valuc $1, authorized, 25,000,000 shares, issued 11,172,582 shares 

and 11 , I  35,232 shares as of December 31,2004 and 2003, respectively, and outstanding 
8,597,958 shares and 8,670,974 shares as of December 3 1 ,  2004 and 2003, respectively ............................ 11,172 11,135 

Paid-in capital in excess or par value ........... .................................................................................... 7,112 6,487 
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income, net of deferrcd income taxes (288) ( 126) 
Retained eiunings ....... ..................... .................................................................................... 75,179 69,280 

93,175 86,776 
Less: Common stock in trcasury, at cost -- 2,574,624 and 2,464,258 shares 

at December 3 1 ,2004 and 2003, respectively ............................................... ..................... . (21,937) (19,%4) 

Total shareholders' equity ..................................................................... ............................. ........ 71,238 67,382 

'I'otal liabilities and shareholders' equity .............................................................................. $ 682946 $ 604,848 

* KeclussiJi'edJhr cornpardive purposes. 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the consolidatcd financial statcments. 
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Consolidated Statements of Tncon 
For tlic years ended 1)eCemheK 31, 

Net interest income: 
Interest income: 

Tnicrest and fees on lams ............................................... 

e 

............ $ 30,123 $ 28,248 S 28,129 
Interest on federal funds sold ....................................................................................................................................... I9 1 I10 I12 

Interest and dividends on investment securities: 
Interest on deposits with other banks ..................................... ...................................................................... 48 37 54 

Taxable inlcrest Income ................................................................................................................................ 820 741 1,013 
'Tax-exempt interest inco ................................................................................................................................ 165 80 3 0 
Dividend inctime .................................................................................................................................................... 34 33 65 

........................................................................................................................................................ 31,781 29.261 29,412 
......................................................................................................................................... 4343 4,322 4,065 Inlerest expense on deposits 

......................... I 33 Interest expcnsc on federal funds purchased ................................................................... 9 
Interest c~pcnsc on other horrowitrgs .................................................................................................................................................. 1 7 386 

........................................................................................................................................................ 4553 4,330 4,484 

Net interest income ..................................................... ................................................................... 2hp2x 24,wi 24,928 
Loan loss provision ........................................................................................................................................................ 900 750 1.000 

............................... 24,181 23,928 Net interest income a oss provision ................................................................... 25,Y28 
. .  

Other income: 
Fees fo r  investment management and trust scrviccs ............. ................................................................... 10,087 9,484 8,620 
Service charges on deposit accounts ........................................ ................................................................... 1,827 I g96 I .n22 

............................................................................................................................................................. 2,420 1,747 
Net gain on sale of loans .............................................................................................................................................. 2,920 9.65 3 
Other fees and service charges 

Net gaiti on salc of rriortgagc scrvicing rights ....................... 
Investment advisory and brokerage fees .............................................................................................................................................. 216 248 216 
Insurance commission income ..................................................................................................................................... 299 268 21s 
Other operating incotne ........................................................... ................................................................... 1,421 1,611 1,566 

'Total other income ........................................................................................................................................... 19.794 26.577 23 ,899 

- 
"" in,6sn 

- ........................................................................... 1,145 

Other expenses: 
Salaries-reguliir ............................................................................................................................................................ 
Salaries-other ......................................................................... ........................................... 
Employee benefit .......................................... ................................................................... 
Occupancy expen ........................................................................................................................................................ 
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment ............................................................................................................................... 
Advcrtising ............................................................................. ........................................... 
Professional fees ....................................................... ................................................................... 

........................................................................................................................................................ 
Skitiunary and supplies ................................................................................................................................................ 
Insurance ................................................................................ ................................................................... 
Amortixarion of MSRs ..... ........................................................................................................................................................ 
Othcr operating expenses ............................................................................................................................................. 

13567 
1,446 
4397 
2,161 

879 
1,799 

587 
2x2 
151 
839 

3832 

I ,7x5 

13,596 
1,438 
4,353 
1.961 
1,806 

674 
931 
607 
310 
IS6 

2,814 
4,779 

1 2,707 
2,978 
3.205 
1,942 
I .x IO 
1,065 

595 
300 
133 

1,617 
4,192 

99n 

Total other expenses ........................................................................................................................................ 3 1,625 33,437 3 1,642 

Income hcforc iticomc taws and discontinued operations ........................................................................................................................ 14,097 17,321 16,185 
Applicable income taxes: 

Federal ..................................................................................... ........................................... 4,741 hJ105 5 500 
..................................................... 44 43 State ... ................................................................... 11 

Income from continuing operations ................................................................................................................................... 9,345 I 1,272 10,642 

Loss from discontinucd operations, nct ol income lax benefit of $ -, ($200,000) and ($I  8,000) ........................................... - (1,916) (435) 

934s 5 o,m $ 10,207 Net income ......................................................................................................................................................................... 
B. MC : carnings per common shai-e: 

Income from continuing operations ........................................ ................................................................... $ 1.09 $ 1.30 5 1.22 
Lnss fronr discuntinucd operations ......................................... ................................................................... $ M M I  $ (0.22) $ (0.05) 

'Total basic eiimings per common shai-e .................................................................................................................................. $ 1 .OY 5 I I)X 5 1.17 

Diluted earnings per cnminoii share: 
Income from continuing operations ..................................................................................................................................................... $ 1.06 5 1-28 5 I .2n 

Totnl diluted earnings per common shxe ................. ................................................................... $ 1.06 5 I Oh .B 1.15 

Dividends pcr share ............................................................. $ OA(I 5 0.40 5 0.3x 

Weighted-average shares oursrand ........................................... ...................................................... 8 g  1 0 ~ 7  I 8,657,527 X ,700.300 
Dilutive potential common shares ....................................................................... ................................................................... 17034s 158,543 I :30.020 
Adjusted weighted-average shares ............................................... 8,780,716 8,816,070 8,836,410 

The accompanying notcs arc iin integral part of the consolidated financial stalements. 

Loss from discontinued operations ...................................................................................................................................................... $ 0.00 $ (0.22) 5 (0.05) 

....................................................................... 

................................................................... 
* Herla.&fitiPd,fnr r o t r ~ p n r ~ ~ t i v ~  purpos~s  
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

For the years ended December 31, 

Opcrating activities: 
Income from continuing operations .................................................... 
Adjustments to I-ecuncile incorrie tmni continuing operations 

net cash provided tiy opcrating activities: 
l’rovisioti for loan losscs ................................................................................... 
Provision for depreciation and amorlixolioii 
Loans originated lcrr resale ................................................................................................................................ 
Pi-oceeds lrcrrri sale (of loans ............................................................................................................... 
Ne1 goin or1 salc of loans ................................................................................................................... 
Ne1 gain on siile of mortgage servicing rights ............................................................................................... 
Provision for dcfcrrcd incoinc taxes .................................................................................................. 
(:tianfie iti inconic taxes paynblc/rcfutidable ............................................................. 
Chnngc in accrued inlei-esl receivahle ......................... 
Change in accrued interest payablc 
(:hangc in niottgiigc scrvicing rights 
Other ............................................................................................................................. 

.................................................................................... 

............................... 
.............................................................................. 

Net cash provided (iised) hy operating activities ................ 

Investing activities: 
Purchases ol investrrlcnt securities ................................................................................................................... 
Proceeds lrom malurilies of investment sccuritics ........................................................................................... 
Proceeds Ironi sales of invcstiricnt sccuritics available for sale ....................................................................... 
Proceeds lroni calls (of investment sccuritics ........................................................................................ 
Net rcpaytriciits (originations) of notes rcceivable ........................................................ 
Net loan originations ........................................................................... 
Purchase o l  autornohilc rctail installmcnt contracts 
Purchases of prcmiscs atid cquipment 

............................................... 
................................................................................... 

Net cash used in invesling iiclivilies ................................ 

Financing activities: 
Chiingc i n  rlcmand and savings deposits 
Change in time dsposils ...................................................................................................................... 

Purchase o l  ireahury stock ............................................... 
. . .  Net cash provided by finnncing activities .......................................................... 

Net cash used by disconlitiued operillions 

Change in cash and cash equivalents .................................................................................. 

Cash and cash equivalents at end or year .......................................................... 

Supplenien~al cadi flow inf(ormation: 
Cash paid during the ycar for: 

Inconic taxes .......................................................................... 
Inlerevl, ........................... 

Non-cash transactions during thc year: 
From d iscon I in ued opera1 i on s- 

Charge-off of goodwill ................................................................................................................................ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated finiinciiil stiitcmcnls. 
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity 
Accomolutrd 

Olher 
Sharrs of Comprehensive 
C!oininon Common Paid-in Retainrd Incoinc Treusury 

Stork lsvued Stock Capitul Earnings (Loss) Stock For the years ended Dcccmber 31,2004,2003 and 2002 

Balance, 1)ecembcr 31 , 200 I ...................................................... 5,329,675 $ 5,330 $ 6,676 $ 56,499 $ 274 $ ( I  1,472) 

-.I"_ 
(in /hou.~atrt~,~, mwpf tiw .r/mrt!.v o f ~ o m i n o t i  s l n c k )  

Net incomc ...... ................................... 10,207 
Dividends declared, $0.76 per share ............................................... 
Accumulated other comprehensive 

(3,317) 

(loss) incomc, net ol- incorne taxes of 
................................... (213) 

'l'ax hcncfit fro 
.......................................................... 1,597 

(6,183) 
48 Rctircment 01- treasury stock ........................................... (2.456) (2) (45) 

Common stock issued ........................... 213,889 213 3,015 

Balancc, Dcccmhcr 3 I , 2002 ....................................................... 
Net income ....................... 
Dividends d 
Accurnulatcd other compreherisive 

(loss) income, net o C  iricoirie taxes of 
....................................................... 

Tax benefit from pains on stock option 
exercise .......................... 

Common stock issued .................................... 

Ralancc, December 3 1,2003 
Nct income ........................................................................... 

Accumulated other cornprchcnsivc 
Dividends declxed, $0.40 per share ................................ 

(loss) income, nct of income taxes 0 1  

excrc i sc . . . . . . .  
P1irchasc of trc 
Ketirrmcnt o f t  
Coninion stock issued ................................................................................ 

(167) 

5,541,108 $ 5,541 $ 11,243 $ 63,389 $ 41 $ (17,607) 
9,356 

(3,465) 

5,503,816 5,564 (5,564) 

168 
( 1,826) 

(2,003 (2) (37) 39 
32,313 32 617 

11,135,232 $ 11,135 $ 6,487 $69,280 $ (121,) $(19,304) 
9,345 

(3,446) 
(162) 

107 
(2,574) 

(4,234) (4) (38) 31 
4 I ,584 41 556 

Balmce. December 31 ,2004 ..................................................................... 11,172,582 $ 11,172 $ 7,l 12 $ 75,179 $ (288) $ (21,1137) 

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the years ended Decemher 31, 

$9345 $0,356 $ 10,207 ........................................................................................ 

(199) (362) (67) Unrealized holding (losscs) gains arising during the period ......................................... 
.................................................. (33) 68 (1x5) 

arising during the period . ............................................................ 70 121 I9 

Comprehensive net income ................................................................................................................................................. $9,183 $9,189 $ 9974 

Thc accompunying notes are an integral part of thc consolidiitcd financial statements. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

1. Basis of Presentation: 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of 
Rryn Mawr Bank Corporation (the “Corporation”), ‘lhc Uryn 
Mawr Trust Company (the “Bank”), Insurance Counscllors of 
Bryn Maw, Tnc. (“TCBM’), BMT Settlement Services, Inc. 
(“BMTSS”) and Joseph W. Roskos & Co. (“JWR & Co.”). For 
all years presented, all adjusting entries required for the fair 
presentation of the financial statements were made. All such 
adjustments were of a normal recurring nature. All significant 
intercoinpany transactions and accounts have been eliminated 
upon consolidation. 

2. Summary of Significant Accountinp Policies: 

Thc accounting policies of the Corporation conform to 
Ccncrally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP’) and to 
general practices of the banking industry. The significant 
accounting policies are as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and due from banks, 
federal funds sold, and interest-bearing deposits with other 
banks with original maturities of three months or Icss. Cash 
balances reserved to meet regulatory requirements of the 
Federal Reserve Board amounted to $8,407,000 and $9,453,000 
at December 3 1,2004 and 2003, respectively. 

Investment securities: 

Management categorizcd all of its invcstmcnt securities as 
available for sale as part of its asseuliability management 
strategy since they inay be sold in response to changes in 
inturcst rates, prepayments, and similar factors. Investments in 
this classification are reported at the current market value with 
nct unrealized gains or losst.s, net of the applicable deferred tax 
effect, being added to or deducted from the Corporation’s total 
shareholders’ equity on the balance sheet. As of December 3 I ,  
2004, shareholders’ equity decreased by $1 39,000 due to 
unrealized losses (net of $75,000 in deferred income tax 
benefit) of $213,000 in the investment securities portfolio. As 
of December 3 1,2003, shareholders’ equity was decreased by 
$9,000 due to unrealized losscs (nct of $5,000 in deferred 
income taxes) of $14,000 in the investment securities portfolio. 

Loans: 

Loans are generally reported at principal amount outstanding, 
net of unearned income. Loans held for sale or securitization are 
valued on an aggregate basis at the lower of citrrying amount or 
fair valuc. 

Interest income on loans performing satisfactorily is recognized 
on the accrual method of accounting. Non-performing loans are 
loans on which scheduled principal and/or interest is past due 
90 days or more or loans less than 90 days past due which iirc 

deemed to be problem loans by managenicnt. A11 noii- 
performing loans, except consiiincr loans, are placed on non- 
accrual status, and any outstanding intercst receivable at the 
time the loan IS deetned non-performing is deductcd from 
intcrcst income. Consuiner loan principal and interest balances 
dccmed uncollectable are charged off on a timely basis against 
the loan loss rcscrve. The charge-offpolicy for all loans, 
including non-performing and impaired loans, considers such 
factors as the type and size of the loan, the quality of the 
collateral, and historical creditworthiness of the borrower. 

As a part of its internal loan review process, managcmcnt, when 
considering making a loan an impaired loan, considers a 
number of factors, such as a borrower’s current financial 
strength, the value of related collateral and the ability to 
continue to tneet the original contractual terms of a loan. Major 
risk classifications, used to aggregate loans include both credit 
risk and the risk of failure to repay a loan and concentration 
risk. A loan is not considered impaired if there is merely an 
insignificant delay or shortfall in the amounts of payments. An 
insignificant delay or shortfall is a temporary delay in the 
payment process of a loan. However, under these 
circumstances, the Bank expects to collect all amounts due, 
including interest accrued at the contractual interest rate for the 
period of the delay. 

When a borrower is deemed to be unable to muct thc original 
terms o fa  loan, the loan is considered impaired. While all 
impaired loans are not necessarily considered non-performing 
loans, if a loan is delinquent for 90 days or more, it is 
considered both a non-performing and impaired loan. All of the 
Corporation’s impaired loans, which amounted to $1,353,000 
and $371,000 at December 31,2004 and 2003, respectively, 
were put on a non-accrual basis and any outstanding accrued 
interest receivable on such loans, at the time they were put on a 
nowaccrual status, was reversed from income. 

Impaired loans are required to be mcasurcd based upon thc 
present valuc of expected future cash flows, discounted at the 
loan’s initial effective interest rate, or at the loan’s market price 
or fair value of the collateral, if the loan is collateral dependent. 
As of December 3 1,2004 and 2003, no impaired loans were 
meiisurcd using the prcscnt value of expected future cash flows 
or at the loan’s market price. Impaired loans measured by the 
fair value of the loan’s collateral arnountcd to $1,353,000 and 
$371,000, respectively. 

If the loan valuation is less than the recorded value of‘the loan, 
an impairment reserve is established for the difference. The 
impairment reserve is established by an allocation of the reserve 
for loan losses dcpcnding on the adequacy of the reserve for 
loan losses. All impairment reserves established in either 2004 
or 2003 were allocated fiom the existing reserve for loan losses. 
As of Dcccmber 3 I ,  2004 thcre was $1,353,000 of impaired 
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loans for which there is no related allowance for loan losses. 
There was no related allowancc for loan loss on impaired loans, 
which totaled $37 1,000 as of December 3 1,2003. Average 
impaired loans during both 2004 and 2003 amounted to 
$798,000 and $170,000, respectively. 

When a loan is classified as impaired, it is put on non-accmiil 
status and any income subsequently collccted is credited to the 
outstanding principal balance. Thcrcforc, no interest income 
was reported on outstanding loans while considered impaired in 
either 2004 or 2003. Loans tnay be removed from iiiipaired 
status and returned to accrual status when all principal and 
interest amounts contractually due arc rcasonably assured of 
repayment within an acceptable period oftiiiie and Ilierc is a 
sustained period of repayment performance by the borrower, 
with a minimum repayment of at Icast six months, in 
accordiincc with the contractual terms o f  interest and principal. 
Subsequent incoine recognition would be recorded under the 
existing terms of the loan. Based on the abovo criteria, $62,000 
a id  $31,000 of loan balanccs wcrc removed from impaired 
status and rcturiicd to accrual status during 2004 and 2003, 
rcspcctively. 

Smaller balance. homogeneous loans, cxclusively consumer 
loans, when included in non-performing loans, for practical 
considcriition, arc not put on a non-accrual status nor is the 
current accrued interest receivable rcvcrscd from income. Once 
deemed uncollcctable, the outstanding loan is charged off 
through the loan loss reserve, on a timely basis. 

Loan loss provision: 

The loan loss provision charged to operating expense is driven 
by a systematic fonnula and those factors which, in 
management’c .iudgment, deserve current recognition in 
estimating loan losses including the continuing evaluation of the 
loan portfolio and the Bank’s past loan loss experience. The 
allowance for loan losses is an amount that management 
believes will be adequate to absorb known and inherent losses 
in existing loans. Additionally, the Bank’s regulators, as a 
routine part of their examination process, review our loan 
portfolio and may, at their discretion, require the Bank to add to 
the allowance for loan losses. 

Other real estate owned: 

Other real estate owned (“OREO”) consists of‘ propcrtics 
acquired by foreclosure. These assets are carried at the lower of 
cost or estimated fair vitlue at the time the loan is foreclosed 
less estimated cost to sell. The amounts recoverable from 
ORE0 could differ materially from the amounts used in arriving 
at the net carrying value of the iisscts bccause of future market 
factors beyond the control of the Bank. Costs to improve and 
hold the property are capitalized as long as the carrying value is 
less than the appraised value otherwise these cost are charged 
to expense. 
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Dcfcrrcd loan fees: 

On loans where the expected life is readily dctcnninablc, the 
Bank defers loan fccs iind related direct loan origination costs. 
Loan fees related to loans with no stated maturity are 
recognized as income when received. Dcfcrrcd loan fees and 
costs are capitalized and amortized as a yield adjustment over 
the life of the loan using the interest method. 

Premises and equipment: 

Prcniiscs and equipment arc stated at cost, less accumulated 
depreciation. The provision for depreciation i s  computed on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives, as follows: 
premises--10 to 50 years, and cquipment--3 to 20 years. 
Lcaschold improvements are amortized over the shorter o f  the 
estimated useful life or the term of the lease. Maintenance and 
repairs are charged to expense; major renewals and betterments 
are capitali~ed. Gains and losses on dispositions are reflected in 
current operations. 

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation: 

As pennitted in Statement of Finitncial Accounting Standard 
No. 123 “Accounting for Stock Based Compensation”, the 
Corporation has elected to use the intrinsic value mcthod of 
accounting for stock-based employee coinpcnsation. Following 
is a summary presentation for the previous 5-year period of net 
income and basic and diluted earnings per share, as reported, 
the stock-based employee compensation cost, net of related tax 
effects, that would have been included in the determination of 
net income, if the fair value tnethod of accounting for stock- 
based employee compensation had been applied to all awards 
and proforma net income and basic and diluted earnings per 
share, had the fair value method of accounting for stock-based 
eiiiployee compensation been applied to all awards, 

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 

Net income - as reported ..... $9,345 $9,356 $10,207 $9,126 $8,261 
S lock-based compensation 

cost, net ofrclatcd taxcs .... 94 79 158 140 224 
Net income - proforma ........ $9,251 $9,277 $10,049 $8,986 $8,037 
Basic earnings pcr sharc 

asreported ......................... $ 1.09 $ 1.08 $ 1.17 $ 1-05 $ 0.96 
Diluted earnings per share - 

as rcportcd ......................... $ 1.06 $ 1.06 $ 1.15 $ 1.02 $ 0.03 
Basic earnings pcr sharc - 

proforma ............................ $ 1.07 $ 1.07 $ 1.15 $ 1.04 $ 0.94 
Dilutcd earnings pcr sharc - 

proforma ....,.. $ 1.05 $ 1.05 $ 1.14 $ 1.01 $ 0.90 

Income taxes: 

The Corporation tiles a consolidated Federal income tax rcturn 
with its subsidiaries. Certain items of incomc itnd expense 
(primarily pension and post retircmcnt benefits, provision for 
loan loss and other reserves) arc reported in diffcrent periods for 
tax purposes. Defcrred taxos arc provided on such temporary 
differences existing between financial and income tax reporting, 
subjcct to the deferred tax asset realization criteria required 



under Statement of Fiiiaiicial Accounting Standards No. 109, 
“Accounting for Income Taxes” (“SFAS No. 109”). 

Trust income: 
Trust inconic is recognized on thc accrual basis of accounting. 

Cioodwill: 

The excess of cost over fair market value o f  net assets acquired 
through the purchase method oL accounting (Goodwill) was 
being amortized on a straight-line biisis over the period of the 
cxpcctcd benetit, which ranges from I O  to 20 years. Under the 
provisions of Stateiiient ofFinancia1 Accounting standard N o .  
142 “Goodwill and  Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS No. 142’7, 
in years subsequent to 2002, goodwill woiild no longer be 
amortized hut rather, would be periodically measured foi- 
impairment and if any expected bcneGl froin an acquisition 
becomes impaired, the respeclive iimount of impriircd goodwill 
would be charged-off in the pcriod of impairment. As of 
L)cccmbcr 3 1 ,  2004 and 2003, there was no goodwill 011 the 
books of the Corporation. 

Mortgage Servicing Hights: 

Mortgage servicing rights (“MSRs”) arc recorded whcn 
residential inortgagc loans are sold with servicing retained by 
the Bank. A quarterly independent valuation or  MSRs is 
cornpleted to detennine ( 1  ) the market value of the MSK 
portfolio at that quarter eiid and (2) the projected cash flows 
fi-om the MSR portfolio Lor the subscqucnt quarter (the “MSR 
Valuation”). The subsequent cash flow pro-jcctions, which 
measures a number of factors, including the projecktl pre- 
payment speeds of the respective iiiortgitgc loiins, is the basis 
for the amortizalion ofthc MSKs in the subsequent quarter. The 
ainount o f  quarterly airiortizatioii is measured c:tch quarter, 
from the results ofthe quarterly MSR Valuation and any 
changes to the amount of amortization are made on a yuarlcrly 
basis. When loans are paid oLL, any unamortized biilanccs of the 
respective MSRs are written off against current Bank nel 
income. Sliould any impairment of the MSRs be delcrniincd by 
the quarterly MSR Valuation, the balance of the MSKs would 
be written clown by the amount of the impairment. 

Recently issued accounting standards: 

hi Decembcr 2004, thc Finiincial Accounting Standards Hoard 
(“FASR”) issued Statement oLFiiiancia1 Accounting Standard 
No. 123 (revised 2004) “Shiirc Hascd Payment” (“SFAS No.  
123 (R)”). SFAS No. 123 (K) establishes standards for the 
accounting for thc transactions in  which an entity exchanges its 
cquity instruments for goods and services. SFAS No. 123 (R) 
requires ii public entity to measure the cost of ernployee 
services received i n  exchange for an award of equity 
iiistniinents based on the grant-date Fair valuc of the award 
(with liinitcd exceptions). That cost will be recognized over the 
period during which an employee is required to provide scrvicc 
in exchange for the award-the requisite service period (usually 
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the vesting pcriod). SFAS No. 123 (R) eliminates the altcrnativc 
to use APR Opinion No. 25’s intrinsic value method or 
accounling that was provided in S1:hS N o  123, as originally 
issued. lJnder Opinion No. 25, issuing stock options to 
employees generally resulted i n  recognition of no coinpensation 
cost. SFAS No. 123 ( R )  requires entities to recognize the cost of 
eiiiployee services received in exchange for awards oL equity 
instrumcnts biiscd on the grant-datc fair value of those awards. 
SFAS N o .  121 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods 
beginning after Julie 15,2005. Previously, the Corporation 
chose to follow the intrinsic methodology allowed under the 
original SFAS No. 123. The Corporation will adopt SFAS No. 
123 (R) for interim periods beginning aflcr June 15,2005 and, 
thcrcLore, anticipates recording additional cxpcnsc associated 
with the issuancc of stock options to cmplayees. Beginning in  
the third quarter of2005, the adoption of SFAS No. I23 (R) 
will have a material impact on the financial condition or results 
of operations of the Corporation, reducing net income in 2005 
by approximiitcly $130,000. 

In December 2003, FASH revised Interpretation No. 46 (FIN 
46K), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Lntities, an 
interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 5 1” (the 
“Inte~relalioii”). ‘l’hc Interpretation requires the consolidation 
of entities in which an cntcrprisc iibsorbs a mijority of the 
entity’s expected losses, receives a rna.iority ofthe entity’s 
cxpcctcd residual returns, or both, as a result of ownership, 
contractual or other tinancial interests in the entity. Chirently, 
entities are generally consolidated by an eiiterprise whcn il has a 
conh-olling finiincial interest through ownership of a ma,jority 
voting interest i n  the entity. Applicatioli of this loterptetation is 
required iii financiiil statements of public entities that have 
interests in variable interest entities or potential variable interest 
cnlitics coininonly rcfcrrcd to iis spccial purpose entities for 
periods ending after Dcccinbcr IS, 2003. Application by public 
cntitics for all other types of entities is required in tinaiicial 
statements for periods cnding after March IS, 2004. The 
iidoption of FIN 4hR did not have a material impact oil the 
financial condition or results of operations of the Corporation. 

In December 2003, the Emerging Issues Task Force issued 
Elr l ’ l~  03- 1 , “7hr Meaning of Other- Tlron- Tcmporuq~ 
Imptrirmml and Its Applicutiori to Cwtuin Invcvtrrrents. 
El FT addresses disclosure requirements regarding infonnalion 
about teinporarily impaired iavestments. The reyuircinents Brc 
effective lor liscal years ending aftcr Dcccinbcr IS, 2003 for all 
eiitjties that have debt or marketable cquity sccuritics with 
iiiarket values below carrying values. ‘I‘hc rcquirements apply to 
investments in debt and marketable cquity securities that are 
accounted for under SFAS I IS, “Accniml in~, l i l r  Cwluiri 
Investmrwts in Lkh/ und Ev74ilV S~wrrit ir~s.  ” The requirements 
apply only lo annuiil financiiil statements. As of December 3 I ,  
2004, the Company has included the required disclosurcs in 
footnote 3 lo the financial sliitcmcnts. 
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3. lnvestrncnt Securitics 

'fhe aiiiortizcd cost and estiiiialed niarkct value o f  invcstmcnts, 
all olwhich were classified its available for sale, are as follows: 

As of December 31,2004: 
Cro\\ Gross Futinialcd 

Amortired Unrcalizcd linrealizcd Mnrkel 
( I t1  ~/ l fJl l \U?ld~) Cost Chins I . o r w  Valuc 

Obligations ol'the U.S. 
Government and 

8 $ (IS(,) X 28,791 
Stale & political 

1x (100) 5,099 
17 1,551 

1 otal .......................... !$ 35,654 $ 43 r6' (256)  !$ 35,441 , >  

As of Decembcr 31,2003: 
Gr i iss  Cross tMitnntcd 

ArniwliLetl Utirrali/ed llnrcalizrd Mxrket 
( i i i  thou.r.rind.r) Cost Gains I , i ~ s h e ~  Vulnr 

Obligations ol'thc U.S. 
Govcmmenl and 

.. $ 25,OXl $ I I I r6' (79) $ 25,113 

25 (89) 5,113 
18 - 1,171 

Total .............. $ 31,411 $ 154 $ (16%) $ 31,397 

'l'he following table shows the aimourit of securities that wcrc in 
iin unrealized loss position iit Deceniber 3 I ,  2004: 

I , c \b  than 12 12 Months 
Months UT I.ongcr Tiilal 

Fair Ilnrcnlized Fair llnrcalized Fair llwcnlized 
V a l ~ l e  I.osscs yabt I .owa Value I.abbcs _- 

LIS ' I  runsuty obhgiti i i i i~ 
and d i rcc l  ohligations o f  
US Govcmmcnl Agencies .. $IY,$Oh S (134) SI,Y7Y S (22) $ZI ,?XS $ (156) 

suhdlvisioiis ........................ 1.913 (3')) 1,671 (61) 3.S84 (100) 

backed vxurilic:, - - 

S h k  und political 

Fedcwl agcncy Inoitga~c- 
................. - 

- 
.~ 

- 
." - - 

-- 
21,219 (17.3) 3,650 (X3) 24,8b9 (2%) 

- - - ( 'onitnoti Stock ...................... 
'lord teinpoiai-ily 

inipalrcd sacuritics ....... $21,219 5 (173) $3,650 $ ( 8 3 )  $24,869 $ (2.56) 

As of December 3 I ,  2004, the amount of unrealized losses, Tor 
less than twelve months, in dcbt and equity securities classificd 
as either available-for-sale or held-to-maturity was $1 73,000 
and had a fair value of $2 I ,2 19,000. The ainount of unrealized 
losscs, for twelve months or longer, in debt and equity securities 
classified as either available-for-sale or held-to-maturity was 
$83,000 and had a fair value of$3,h50,000. As of December 3 I ,  
2004 the Corporation has concluded that thc unrealized losscs 
are temporary in nature since they are primarily related too 
market interest rates and itrc not related to the underlying crcdit 
quality of the issuers of the invcstment portfolio. Nolle of the 
investmcnts are believed to be other-tliaii-(eiiiporarily impaired. 
The ('orporation has the ability and intent to hold the sccurities 
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until maturity to recover the entire value. 

A December 31,2004, securities having a book value of 
$1 5,960,000 wcre pledged as collateral for public funds, Mis t  
deposits, and other purposes. 

The amoitizcd cost and estimated market value of investment 
securities at Uecember 3 I ,  2004, by contractual maturity, are 
shown below. Lxpected maturities will dificr from contractual 
maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or 
prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. 

2UU4 
Estimated 

Amortized Market 
( in  ihoiwnd\i  Co\t Value 

DLK in one year or less ............. $ 3,555 $ 3,529 
Due after one year through five 21,439 21,351 
Due after five years through ten ......... 9,487 9,371 
Due after ten years ....................................... 
Other securities .......................... 1,173 1,190 

$ 35,654 $35,441 

- 

Tliere were no sales of dcbt securitics during 2004,2003 
or 2002. 

4. Loans: 

Loans outstanding at Dcccmber 3 I arc detailed by category 
as Ibllows: 

( i t ?  thouA(ttdv) 2004 2003 

Red estate loans: 
Permanent 

commercial mortgage loans $137,481 $120,188 
second mortgage loans .. 25,661 3 1,203 
mortgage loans available 8,708 3,691 
mortgage loans ................ 159,035 114,677 

Uonstmction loans ................. 37,000 36,358 
Coniinercial and industrial loans .... 186,923 178,381 
Loans lo individuals [or 

houschold, family, and 
other consumer expcnditures .. 

.... 

10,291 18,580 

Subtotal ........................... 565,099 503,078 
Allowance for loan losscs . (6,927) (6,670) 
Net dcfcrred loan fees ...... 

Loans, net $557,670 $495,746 

llnacfvsnced loan funds $269,036 $222,389 
265,543 I3 1,829 Loans with predetermined rates 

Loans with adjustabic or floatin 299,556 37 1,249 

(662) 

.............. 

..................................... %56S,U99 $503,078 

All loans past due 90 days or more, except consunicr loans, are 
placed on nonaccmal status. Nonperforrning loans amounted to 
$ I ,  IO9,OOO and $279,000 at Decembcr 3 1,2004 rind 2003, 
respectively. b'orgone interest on iionaccrual loans was $88,000, 



$ I  ,000, and $ I  1,000 in 2004,2003, and 2002, respectively. 
There were I9 impaired loans at December 31,2004, amounting 
to $1,353,000. 

5. Allowance for Loan Losses: 

The summary of thc changes in the allowance for loan losses is 
ab follows: 

(6t3 /ho~stitds) 2004 2003 2002 

Balance, January 1 ........................... $6,670 $6,l 14 $4,928 
. (692) (227) (68) 

33 254 

Net recoveries / (charge-offs) .......... (643) (194) 186 
Loan loss provision . 900 750 1,000 
Balance, December 3 1 ..................... $6,927 $6,670 $6,1 I4 

6. Prcmiscs and Equipment: 

A summitry of premises and equipment at December 3 1 is 
as follows: 
(in thousands) 2004 2003 

$ 2,974 $ 2,973 
15,226 14,877 

......................... 14,996 l4,5 19 
1,552 818 

Lcss accumulated depreciation .. ... (20,586) (19,43 1) 
Total .................... . $ 14,162 $ 13,756 

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 3 1,2004, 
2003 and 2002 amounted to $1,3 10,000, $ I ,29 1,000 and 
$1,368,000, respectively. Future minimum rent commitments 
under various operating leases are as follows: 

2005 ........................................................................ $ 787,501 
2006 ...................... 

.......................... $ 592,881 

2009 ........................... 

p 
The Bank records the value of mortgage servicing rights 
(“MSRs”) as an asset when the tnortgage loans are sold and the 
servicing is retained by the Rank. MSRs represent the right to 
receive cash flows from servicing mortgage loans. The 
servicing rights are capitalized based on the relative fair value 
ofthe servicing right and the mortgage loan on thc date the 
mortgage loan is sold. MSRs are arnortbed in proportion to, and 
over the period of, the estimated net servicing incoinc. MSRs 
are carried at the lower of cost or estimated fair value. The 
Corporation obtains iin independent appraisal of the fair value 
of its MSRs quarterly, which approximates the fair value 
expected in a sale between a willing buyer and seller. 

MSRs are assessed quarterly for impairment based on the 
estimated Fair value of those rights. For purposes of performing 

the iiiipainnent valuation, thc MSK portfolio is stratified on the 
basis of certain predominant risk characteristics, including loan 
type and note rate. To the extent that thc carrying value ofthe 
servicing rights exceeds estimated fair value for any stratum, a 
valuation allowance is establishcd, which may be adjusted in 
the future as the estimated Fair value of the MSRs increase or 
decrease. This valuation allowance is recognizcd in thc 
consolidated statements of operations during the period in 
which impairment occurs. 

The following summarizes the Corporation’s activity related to 
MSRs for the years ended December 3 1,2004 and 2003: 

(It3 /hotrs~~rldr) 2004 2001 

Balance, January I ........... $ 4,391 $ 3,956 
3,249 

Amortization . (839) (2 ,s  14) 

................... (1,399) - 

t t t t t t t t t . . t  $ 3,172 $ 4,391 

........................ 4,132 6,828 

Thc following summarizes the Corporation’s activity rclatcd to 
changcs in the valuation allowance impairment of MSKs for the 

years cndcd December 3 I ,  2004 and 2003: 
2004 2003 

Balance, January I $ - - %  - 

..................... 350 
................................................ - (350) 

........................... $ - $  - 

- 

At Deceiiiber 3 1 ,  2004, key economic assumptions and the 
sensitivity of the current fair value of MSRs to immediate 10 
and 20 percent adverse changes in those assumptions are as 
rollows: 

Fair value amount of MSKs 
Weighted average lifc (in years 
Prepayment speeds (constant 

Prepayment rate) (1): ........... 
Impact on [air value: 

10% advcrst: change ................................ 
20% adverse change .. 

Discount rate: .................................................... 
Impact on fair value 

20% adversc change ................................ 

December 31, 
20U4 

$ 4,132 
3.7 

19.92% 

(293) 
(558) 

(128) 
(248) 

10.05% 

( I )  rcprcscrits Uic wcightcd avcrage prepayment rate for the life of the MSR 
assct. 



These assuinptions and sensitivities arc hypothetical and should 
be used with caution. As the figures indicate, changes in fair 
value bascd on a 10% variation in assumptions generally cannot 
be extrapolated because the relationship of the change in 
assumptions to the change in fair value may not be linear. Also, 
the effect o f a  variation in a particular assumption on the fair 
value of thr: MSRs is calculated without changing any other 
assumption. In  realty, changes in one factor may result in 
changes in another, which could magnify or counteract the 
sensitivities. 

8. Deposits: 

Following is a suminary ofdeposits as of December 3 1, 

( in thourandv) 2004 2003 

Regular Savings ............... ................. $ 50,300 $ 52,396 
NOW Accounts ....................................... 166,901 134,995 
Market rate accounts ........ .......... 126,058 97,978 
Time deposits (less than $1 ......... 70,820 65,037 
Time deposits, $100,000 or more ............ 39,650 32,154 
I opal interest-bearing deposits ................ 453,729 382,560 
Non-interest-bearing deposit ......... 147,236 144,570 

......... $600,965 $527,139 

The aggregate amount of deposit overdrafts included as loans as 
of December 3 I ,  2004 and 2003 were $393,000 and $5 18,000, 
respectively. 

Maturity of’ certi ficatos of depos it: 

$ 100,000 Less than 
(in thouvand~) or more $ 100,000 

Maturing during: 
......... $ 33,916 $ 55,533 

2006 ........................................................ 5,090 12,416 
644 2,283 

............... 460 
128 

............................................ $ 39,650 $ 70,820 

- 

- 

9. Short Term Borrowinw: 

The Bank had no outstanding borrowings as oiDecember 3 1, 
2004 or 2003. 

10. Disclosure abuut Fair Value of k’inancial Instruments: 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 107, 
“Disclosures about Pair Value of Financial Instruments” 
(“SFAS No. 107’7, requires disclosure of the fair value 
information about financial instruments, whether or not 
recognized in the balance sheet, for which it is practicable to 
estimate such value. In cases where quoted market prices are 
not available, fair values are based on estimates using present 
value or other market value techniques. ‘Those techniques arc 
significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the 
discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. Tn that regard 
tlie derived fair value estimates cannot be substantiated by 

3s 

comparison to indcpcndent markets and, in many cases, could 
not be reabed  in itninediate settlement of the instrument. SFAS 
No. 107 excludes certain financial instruments and all non- 
financial instruments from its disclosure requirements. 
Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented do not 
rcpresent the underlying value of the Corporation. 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate 
thc fair value of cach class of financial instruments for which it 
is practicable to estimate that value: 

Cash and cash equivalents: 

The carrying amounts reported in the balance shcct for cash and 
cash equivalents approximate their fair values. 

Invcstment securitics: 

Estimated fair values for invcstinent securities are based on 
quoted market price, where available. 

Loans: 

For variable rate loans that reprice frequently and which have 
no significant change in credit risk, estimated fair values are 
based on carrying values. Fair values of certain mortgage loans 
and consumer loans arc estimated using discounted cash flow 
analyses, using interest rates currently being offered for loans 
with similar tcrms to borrowers of similar credit quality. The 
estimated fair value of nonperforming loans is bascd on 
discounted estimated cash flows as detcnnined by the internal 
loan review of thc Bank or the appraised markct value of the 
underlying collateral, as determined by independent third party 
appraisers. 

Dcposits: 

The estimated fair values disclosed for noninterest-bearing 
demand deposits, NOW accounts, and Market Rate accounts 
are, by dehition, equal to the amounts payable on demand at 
the reporting date (Le,, their carrying amounts). Fair values for 
certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash 
flow calculation that applies interest ratcs currently being 
offered on certificates to a schcdule of expected monthly 
maturities on the certificate of deposit. SFAS No. 107 defines 
the fair value of demand deposits as the amount payable on 
demand and prohibits ad,justing estimated Fair value from any 
value derived from retaining those deposits for an expected 
future period of time. 

Short Term Borrowings: 

Due to the short term nature of the maturities the carrying 
amount of the borrowings approximates the fair value. 

Other liahilities: 

Lstiinated fair values accrued interest payable, accrued taxes 
payablc and other accrued payables. 

Off-balance sheet instruments: 

Estimated fair values of the Corporation’s off-balance sheet 
instruments (standby letters of credit and loan commitments) 



are based on fccs and rates currently charged to enter into 
similar loan agreements, taking into account the remaining 
terms of'the agreements itlid the counterpartics' credit standing. 
Since fees rind rates charged for ofl--balance sheet i t em are at 
market levels when sct, there is 110 material dif'ference between 
the stated amount and estimated Lair values of off-balance 
sheet instnimcnts. 

The carrying amount and estimated fair value of the 
(:orporatioii's financial instruments at Decembcr 3 1 are 
as follows: 

(V I  t l lorcs~l l l r lv )  

Financial assets: 
(:ash and due from hanks ... 
Inkrest-bearing dcposits 

with other banks ............. 
Federal funds sold .............. 
Invcstrncnt securities ......... 
Mortgage servicing rights .. 
Nct loans ............................ 
Total liilaiicial assets ......... 

Financial liabilitics: 
Deposils ............................. 
Other liabilitics .................. 

2004 2003 
(:arrying Estiinatrd Carrying Estimatctl 
Amwnt  Kair Valuc hmoiml linir Value 

$ 26,526 $ 26,526 $ 32,471 $ 32,471 

15,293 15,293 10,524 10,524 
13,423 13,423 3,300 3,300 
35,441 35,441 31,397 31,397 

3,172 4,132 4,391 6,828 

$651,525 $649,330 $577,829 $582,306 

557,670 554,515 495,746 497,786 

1600,965 $601,109 $527,139 $527,835 
2,878 2,878 2,328 2,328 

Total tinancial liabilities .... 

Off-balance shcct 
instrunicnts .... 

$603,843 $603,987 $529,467 $530,163 

$277,839 $277,839 $23 137 1 $23 I .57 I 

1 1 .  Applicable Income Taxcs: 

The components of'llie net deferred tax asset (liabilities) as of 
December 3 I are as follows: 

(!,I Iholr .srrr l t ls)  2004 2003 

Defcrrcd tax assets: 
1,oan loss rcscrve ................ $ 2,270 !$ 2,064 
Other reserves 699 52s 
Unrealized dep 

investment seciirt 1 ss 68 
'rotd dcfcrred tax asset 3,124 2,657 

Deferred tax liabilities: 
Depreciation ........................ (261) (323) 
Iiislallrnerit sale and other - (339) 
Pension iind olher postretirerncnl 

benefits ..................................... (1,417) (849) 
Originated iiiortgage servicing 

rights ........................ (1,110) ( 1,537) 
Total deferred kix liability ................ (3,127) (2,709) 

I'olal net deferred tax assets (liabilities) .... $ (3) $ (52) 

No valuation iillowance was recorded ;is of December 3 I ,  2004 
and 2003; since rnanageiiient believes that it is more likely than 
not ha t  the net deferred tax asset will be realized. 

- >  I he provision for income taxes consist ( he Ilowing: 
(in thorr\orid\) _ _  2004 2003 2002 

Chrrcntly payable ............................. $4,714 $5,245 $5,755 
Deferred 38 1,004 (230) ........................................... 

............................................ $4,752 $6,249 $5,525 

Appliciiblc income taxes diffcrcd l-rom the amount dcrived by 
applying the statutory federal tax rntc ol-35% to income as 
l-ollows: 
(in thozrsrmdsl 2004 2003 2002 

$4,934 $6,062 $5,665 
Tax-exempt i ticomc .... (140) (103) (72) 

.................... (42) 90 (50) 
Tax expense from coiltinuin 

... 4,752 6,049 5,543 

- 200 (18) 

Total income tax expense $4,752 !$h,249 $5,525 

* Rerlnss~fifiL.c/,fi~i,,. coiiipar-crti I J C  prrrpo.~e.s 

12. Pcnsion and Other Postretirement Benefits 

The C.!orpoKilion spoiisors two pciisioii plans and ii 
postretirement bcnclit plan for ccrtain . .  of its employees. 'Ihc 
following tables provide a reconciliation ofthe changes in the 
plans' henetits obligation arid fair value of assets over the two 
year pcriod ending Deccmbcr 3 1, 2004, and a statement of 
funded status as of Deccmbcr 3 1 of both yeiirs: 

Postrrtirwncnt 

Rcconciliation of Renelil Obligation and Plan Assets 
Changc in bcnefit obligation 

Hcnctit obligation at 
January I ............................ $25,144 $21,890 $2,375 %2,56 1 

Scrvicc cost ........................... 1,134 922 21 
Interestcost ........................... 1,573 1,455 188 151 

Actuarial (gain) loss .............. 1,517 1,780 793 ( 149) 
Benefits paid ......................... 

16 

Amendments ......................... 

(967)-,,,- (898) (225) (204) 
Bcnctit ohligation a1 

ikcctnbcr 3 I ...................... $28,406 $25,149 $3,152 $2,315 

Charipc in ulan assets 
Fair value ofplan assets at 

Actual return on plan assets .. 1,441 3,041 - 

Employer contribution .......... 2,807 2,!93X 225 I83 
Plan participants' 

Administrative expense ........ (58) 
Hcnctits paid ......................... (967) (898) (225) (204) 

Fair value of plan assets a t  

J~IIULIIY I ............................ $22,615 $17,534 $ - $ - 

- 21 contribution ........................ 

Dcccrnhcr 3 I ...................... $25,838 $22,615 $ - $ 
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Fundcd Status Reconciliation and Key Assumptions 
Postrrtiremcnt 

Pension Uriirfits Renrlils 

2U114 2003 ZUU4 2003 - 
Reconciliation of funded strtus 

Funded Status 
Unrecognizcd nct tictuarial 

CJ nrccognized prior 

1 Jnrecogni~ed trans 

Prepaid accrued 

Amounls recognizcd in 
tinanciul statements 

$(2,568) $(2,533)  %(3,152) $(2,374) 

(gain) loss ......................... 6,l 12 4,345 1,737 1,128 

service cost ........ 499 009 - 

obligation (assct) - - 207 233 

(benelit) cost ..................... $ 4,043 $ 2,42 I %( 1,208) %(1,013) 

Prepaid bcncfit cost/ 
(Accrucd hcnetit 

.... $ 3,612 $ 1,992 (1,208) (1,013) 

- ............. 222 25 I - 

Acciiniulated other 
comprehensi vc 

- income (loss) .................... 209 I78 

Ne1 amount recognized ........ $ 4,043 $ 2,42 I $(1,208) $( 1,013) 

The Hank's Supple~nental Lmployee Retirement Plan (the 
"SERP") was the only pension plan with an accumulated bcncfit 
obligation in exccss of plan assets. The SLKP's accuiiiulated 
bcnciit obligation was $1,788,000 as of Deccniber 3 1,2004 and 
$1,665,000 as of Dcccmbcr 3 1,2003, There arc no plan assets 
in the SERF' due to the nature of the SERP. The C'orporation's 
plan for postretirement benetits other than pensions also hiis no 

The assumptions used in the measurement of the Chrporation's 
bcnclit obligation arc shown on the following table: 

plan assets 

Puvtretii-ement 
Penviirn Hrnefits Bcnrtitq 
2004 2003 2004 2003 

Wcightcd-average assurnplions as 
of cnd of year 

Discount rate ............... 6.UU'%' 6.25% 6.00% 6.25% 
Expected retuni on plan assets ........... 8.75% 8.75% N/A NIA 

The assutnption for calculating the cxpected rate of return uti 
plan assets are based on an estimated range of returns, iitilizirig 
tlie rcsults or  the 25'" and 75"' pcrccntilc, which are presentcd its 
a guideline within which the investment return assumption m y  
be selected. Tlic range was constnicted using u number of 
itcluarial assumptions to detenniiie the range of iiivcstment 
rcsulls. From this calculiition llie 25'" and 75"' pcrccntile returns 
wcrc derived. Rased on thc asset allocation ranges set in the 
C:orporiitioii's Pension lnvcstrncnt Policy, the 25"' percentile 
returns arc approximately 6.61 % and the 75"' percentile returns 
10.060/, The arithmctic average return is 9.01%. Based 011 this 
data, a rate or8.7S'% was selected. 

Rate ol'compcrisation increase 4.UU%r 5.00'% 4.0flyo 4.00% 
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2004 2003 
Assumed health care cost trend rates at the end of year 

Hciilth care cost trend ratc assumed 
............ for next year .......... 11% 7 9 "  

( h e  ultitnate trend rate) 6% 5% 

trend rate ............................. 2010 2008 

The following table provides the components of net periodic 
cost (income) for the plans for years elided December 3 1,2004, 
2003 and 2002: 

Rate to wliicli the cost trcnd rate is assumed to dccline 

Year that the rate reaches the ultimate 

Postretircincnt 
Pciision Hmelila Benetits 

2UU4 2003 2001 20114 2003 2002 

Service cost ....... $ 1,134 li; 923 $ 808 $ 21 $ 17 $ 28 
Merest cost 1,573 1,455 1,355 188 151 171 
Expcctcd return on 

Amorlizntion of prior 

A mortiza I ion of 

e l ~  .................... (1,937) (1,493) (1,807) - 

1x1 - - scrvicc cost .................. 130 I X I  

- - 26 26 26 

achiarial (gain) loss ..... 285 2x5 12 185 107 144 

cost .............................. li; 1,185 $ 1,351 549 $420 $301 369 
Nct pcriodic (benelil) 

Plan Asscts 
Prnsiiin Heliefits 

Percciitagc of 
Target Allocation plan assets at 

year ending Dcrcrnber 3 I 
Drr. 31,2U1)4 2004 2003 

Assct C:ulegory 
Equity Securities* .,.. 50% - 65% 60'yo 60% 
Dcht Securities 30'% - 45%) 290/0 29% 
Rcal Fstate ............................... 0%' 0% 0% 
Otl1cr ............. 1% - 5%) 1 1 %  11% 

Total 100Yo 100% 
* INC'LUtXS H t y i  Maw Bunk C:orporcilion corninon stock in Ihc trniormf of' 

SS87,220 (2%) t d  %64$,5fifi (3%) (11 D w o n b w  -11, 2004 und3003. 
I w p ~ l - t l V e ~ ~ ~ .  

Thcrc arc no plan assets in the Corporation's plan for 
postretirement benefits other than pwsioiis. 

The investment strategy oftlie Plan is to maintain tlie 
investment ranges listed above. The target ranges arc to be 
periodically reviewed based on the prevailing market 
conditions. Any modification to the current investment strategy 
must be ratified by the Pension Committee of the Corporation's 
board of directors. 'I'hc Plan will retain approxiinately 2.S% of 
Bryn Mawr Rank Corporation cotninon stock. 
Measurement Date 

l'hc nicasureineiit date used to determine pension and other 
postretirement benetit measures for the pension plan and othcr 
postretirement benefits plan was Decctnbcr 3 1" for all 
respective years presented. 



Expected contribution tu be Paid En the Next Fiscal Year 

Based on the status of the Chrporation’s dclined benefit pension 
plan at December 3 1, 2004 no minimum funding rcquircment is 
anticipated for 2005. The cxpcctcd contribution for the SEKP is 
$128,834 for 1005. 

Hcalth care cost trend rate if changcd hy 1% 

I-Percentage 1-Pcrccntngc 
h i n t  Point 

Increase I Decrease 
Effect on total of service and 

Effect on accuiiiuleted 
interest cost components $ 15,322 $ (13,645) 

postretirement benefit 
obligation .. 159,893 (275,266) 

‘I‘hc Medical Prescription Dnig lmprovcmcnt and 
Modcrnizatioii Act of2003 was signed into Law Dcccmber 8, 
2003. In accordance with FASR Staff Position ITAS 106-1, the 
Chrporation has made a one time election to defer recognition 
oLthe effect ofthe law in the accounting Lor its Plan under 
1;AS IO6 and iii providing disclosure related to the Plan until 
authoritative guidance on the accounting for the federal 
prescription subsidy is issued. Any mcasure of the 
Accumulatcd Postretirement Benefit Obligation or Net Periodic 
Postretirement Bcncfit Cost in this report does not reflect the 
effect of the Act on the Plan. Authoritative guidance is pending 
and, when issued, could require the company to change 
previously reported information. 

13. Stock Option Plan: 

At December 3 I ,  1988, thc Corporatioil established a stock 
option and stock appreciation rights plan (the “Stock Option 
Plan”), which is described below. The C‘orporation applies 
APB Opinion 25 and related interpretations in accouiitiiig for 
the Stock Option Plan. Accordingly, no compensation cost has 
bccn recognized for the Stock Option Plan. Had coinpensation 
for the Corporation’s Stock Option Plan been determined based 
on the fair value at thc grant date for awards in 2004, 2003 and 
2002, consistent with the optional provisions of Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards No. I23R, “Accounting for 
Stock Based Coinpensation,” the Corporation’s net income and 
earnings per share would have been reduced to the pro forma 
amounts indicated hclow: 

2004 2003 2002 

Net income ~ as reported. $9,345 $9,356 $10,207 
Nct Income pro forma ........ $9,251 $9,277 $10,049 
Basic carnings per share - 

as reported ...................................... $ 1.09 $ I .OX Pl; 1.17 
Basic earnings per shim - 

proforma ......................................... $ 1.07 $ 1.07 $ 1 . 1  5 

Thc Ihir valuc of each option granted is estimated on thc date of 
the grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the 
following weighted-average assumptions used [or grants in 
2004, 2003 and 2002: dividend yield of I .76 percent, expected 

volatility of 21 percent, expected life of six years and risk-frcc 
interest rates of 3.9, 3.5 and 5 .  I percent, respectively. 

The Plan had, prior to 1994, up to 2 16,000 authorized and 
unissued or Treasury shares of the Corporation’s common stock 
reserved for issuance under the Plan. During 1994, thc 
slxtreholders’ approved an additional 217,720 shares for 
issuance under the Plan, The option to purchase shares ofthe 
Corporation’s common stock was issued to key oflicers. During 
1995, the shareholder’s approved the issuance of 80,000 shares, 
20,000 10 be granted to outsidc directors, for 4 years after each 
Annual Meeting. The option price was set at the last sale price 
for the stock on the 3rd business day following the 
Coi-poration’s Anriual Meeting. Options tolaliiig 76,000 shares 
of Corporation stock were issued undcr the outside directors’ 
plan. During 1998,2001 and 2004, the sharcholdcrs approved 
the issuance of up to 2 17,606, 192,663 and 43 I ,  143 respective 
shares available for issuance lo both employees and dircctors. 
‘l’hc price wil l  be determincd by the Corporation’s 
Compensation Committee of the Hoard of Directors at the time 
the option is granted. Options granted may either bc “incentive 
stock options” within the mcaning of the Ititernal Revenue 
Service code, or non-qualitled options. The slock optioris are 
exercisable ovcr a period determined by the Boiird of Directors; 
however, the option period will not commence earlier than one 
year or be longer than ten years from the date of the grant. The 
Plan provides that the option price at the date ofgranl will not 
be less than the fair market value of the C’orporation’s common 
stock. The following is it summary of transactions under the 
Plan: 

wcigllictl 
Slinrcr Availablc Prirr AVCWpc 
Ilsder fur prr Ererciw 
Option Optiun Shsrr I’ricc 

Balancc at 
I)cccrnbcr31,2001 ..... 828,300 258,478 $ 3.69-$15.15 $’ - 

Options grantcd I:M,SOO (134,500) $16.25 - $18.32 $ 17.7h 
(422,866) -. $’ 3.b9 - $13.22 $ 7.47 C)ptions exercise 

Options canccllcd ..... (2X.700) 28,700 $12.25 . $15.15 $- 

Balance at 
I)cccrnhcr31,2002 ..... 511,234 152,678 5 4.00-$I8.32 $ 

Options granted ........ 142,500 (142,500) $17.85 . $21.6X $ 18.02 
Optioiw cxcrciscd ..... (53,016) - $ 4.00-$18.32 $ 11.72 
Clptions cancelled ..... (6,334) 6,334 $ l S . l S  . $18.32 5 17.06 

Dccernber31, 2003 ..... 594,384 16,512 $ 4.34-$21.68 S 14.66 
Options :iuthurizetI .... - 43 1,143 
Options granlrd ........ 138,750 (138,750) $20.47 . $22.68 $ 20.51 
Options cxcrciscd , , , , , (3 7,350) - $10.50-$18.46 $ 13.11 
Options cancclled ..... (43.000) 43,000 $14.49 . 

Balance at 

- - 

Balance at 
Dceemlier 31,2004 ..... 652,784 351.0US $ 4.34 . $22.68 $ 15.80 



Information pertaining to options outstanding at Dcccmber 3 I ,  
2004 is as follows: 

Price range of shares under option at December 31,2004: 
Weighted Weigbtrrl 

Llnder ,“‘ (’onrmctual tixercise Numbvr Ercrciuc 
Option Sharc Life Price Exerciuublc Price 

Shares Price Rcninliiing Average AWWge 

20,000 $ 4.34 - $ 6.25 0.85 $ 5.40 20,000 $ 5.49 
iho,ooo $ 8.45-$12.45 4.53 ~ 1 . 4 5  iho,ono $11.45 
236.368 $13.22 - $17.85 6.65 $15.70 107,035 $15.04 
236,416 $18.32 - $22.68 X.54 $19.63 65.444 $18.30 

Balilnce rl 
December 31, 
2004 ............... 652,184 $ 4 . 3 4 - ~ 2 2 . 6 ~  6.62 w . n o  412,419 ~ 1 3 . 7 1  

The weighted-average fair value of options granted during 
2004,2003 and 2002 were $4.61, $3.98 and $3.88, respectively. 
The number of exercisable shares at December 3 1,2004, 2003 
and 2002 were 401,145, 336,551 and 303,444, rcspcctivcly, 
with respective weighted average exercise prices of $13.58, 
$7.09 and $5.80. 

Stock appreciation rights may be granted in tandem with non- 
qualified stock options. No stock appreciation rights have been 
granted under the Plan. 

The options had a $01 per share dilutive effect on earnings per 
share for the years ended December 3 1,2004, 2003 and 2002, 
respectively . 

14. Related Party Transactions: 

In  the ordinary course of business, the Bank griintcd loans to 
principal officers, directors and their affiliates. Lman activity 
during 2004 and 2003 was as follows: 

Following is it summary of these transactions: 

Balance, beginning of year $ S,lSO $5,026 
Additions .......................................... 2,009 633 
Amounts collected (904) (509) 
Balance, end of year $ 6,255 $5,  I50 

Related party deposits amounted to $ I ,9hX,O00 and $1,116,000 
at December 3 I ,  2004 and 2003, respectively. 

15. Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk and 

(in fhort.ssand,s) 2004 2003 

Concentration of Credit Risk: 

‘I’hc Corporation is a party to financial instruments with 
off-balancc shcct risk in the normal course of business to 
meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial 
instniments includc commitments to extend credit and standby 
letters of credit. Those instruments involve, to varying dcgrces, 
clcineiits of credit risk in cxccss of the amount recognized in 
the consolidated statements of financial condition. The 
contractual amounts of those instruments rcflcct the extent of 
involvement the Corporation has in particular classes of 
financial instruments. 

‘I’hc Corporation’s exposure to credit loss in the evcnt of 
nonperformance by the counterparty to the financial instrument 
of commitments to extend crcdit and standby letters of crcdit is 
represcntcd by the contractual amount of those instmments. Thc 
Corporation uses the same credit policies in making 
comimitments and conditional obligations as it docs for on- 
balance sheet tinancial instruments. 

Commitments to extend credit arc agreements to lend to a 
customer iis long iis there is no violation of any condition 
cstablished in the agrccmcnt. Commitments generiilly have 
fixed expiration dates or other tcrminatioii clauses and may 
require payment of a fee. Some o f  the commitments are 
cxpected to expire without being drawn upon, and the total 
commitment amounts do not necessarily represent fittire cash 
requirements. Total cotnmitments to cxlend credit at December 
3 I ,  2004 arc $269,036,000. The Corporation evaluates each 
customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-casc basis. The 
amount of collatcriil obtained, if deemed necessary by the 
Corporation upon extension of credit, is based on management’s 
credit evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral varies but may 
include accounts rcccivable, marketable securitics, inventory, 
property, plant and equipment, residential real estate, and 
income-producing commercial properties. 

Stitlldby letters of credit arc conditional commitments issued by 
the Bank to a customer for a third party. Such standby letters of 
credits are issued to support privatc borrowing arrangements. 
The credit risk involved in issuing standby letters of credit i s  
similar to that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. 
The collateral varies, but may include accounts receivable, 
marketable sccurities, inventory, property, plant and equipment, 
and residential real estate for those commitments for which 
collateral is deemed necessary. The Corporation’s obligation 
under standby letters of crcdit as of December 3 I ,  2004 
amounted to $8,803,000. There were no outstanding bankers 
acceptances as of Dccember 3 1, 2004. 

As of December 3 I ,  2004, the Corporation had no loans sold 
with recourse outstanding. 

The Corporation grants construction, commercial, residential 
mortgage, and consumer loam to customers primarily in 
Southeastern Pennsylvania. Although the Corporation has a 
diversified loan portfolio, its debtors’ ability to honor their 
contracts is substantially dependent upon the general economic 
conditions of the region. 

16. Risks And Uncertainties: 

The earnings of the Corporation depend on the earnings of the 
Rank. The Bank’s earnings are dependent upon both the lcvcl of 
net interest inconie and non-interest revenue streams, primarily 
fccs for trust services that are earned annually. Accordingly, the 
earnings of the Corporation are subject to risks and uncertainties 
surrounding both its exposure to changcs in the interest rate 
environment and movements in financial markets. 
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Most of the Hank’s lending activity is with custoiners located in 
Southeastern Pennsylvania. Lending is spread bctwccn 
commcrciiil, constinier and real estate related loans, including 
construction lending. While thcse loan concentrations represent 
a potential coticentration of credit risk, thc Bank’s credit loss 
experience cornpares favorably to the k ink’s  pccr group credit 
loss experience. 

The financial statements of the Clorporalion are prepared in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles that 
require iiianageiiient to make estimates iind assumptions that 
affect the rcportcd itmounts ofassets and liabilities, as well as 
disclosures of contingent iisscts iind liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the repotted amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

Signiticant estimates arc made by tnmiigcmcnl in detenniuing 
the allowance for loan losses and the carrying value of other 
real cstatc owned. Consideration is given to a variety of factors 
in establishing thcsc estimates, including current economic 
conditions, the results ofthe internal loan rcvicw process, 
delinquency statistics, borrowers perceived financial and 
nianagerial strengths iind the adequacy or supporting collateral, 
if collateral dependent, or the present value of futiirc cash flows. 
Sincc the allowance for loan losses and the carrying value of 
other real cstatc owned iirc dependent, to a great extent, on 
general and other economic conditions bcyoiid ihe Bank’s 
control, it is at least reasonably possible that the estimates ofthe 
allowance for loaii losses and the carrying value of other real 
cstntc owned could difkr iiiaterially from currently reported 
values in  the near term. 

As a part of its mortgage loan scl-vicing business, the Bank 
records the value of mortgage servicing rights (“MSKs”) BS iiii 
asset at the time the respective residential mortgage loan is sold 
with the servicing retained by the Rank. Quarterly an 
indcpcndcnt firm is retained to (1) determine if any inipainiient 
in the MSK porlfolio has occurred as oftlie current quarter end 
and ( 2 )  dctcrminc the itmount of ainorlizalioii of MSRs to be 
utilized in the upcoming quarter. Certain assumptions arc made 
in dctcniiining the loan prepayment speeds for the respective 
rcsidcntial mortgitge loans tliat will deteniiine the amount of 
amortization for the subsequent quarter. Should movements of 
related interest rates differ from those projected, the actual 
prepaytnent speeds and related amortization of MSKs could 
differ tnaterially from those pro.jected by the indcpcndcnt 
valuatim. 

17. Goodwill: 

Joseph W. Koskos & Co. was acquired as of January I ,  I999. 
The transaction was accornplished on April I ,  1999 under the 
purchase method o f  accounting. Goodwill arising from this 
transaction wiis recorded on thc balaiice sheet and was beiiig 
airlortized 011 a straight line basis over a 20 year period. 
Beginning in 2002, under Statement ofFiiiancia1 Accounting 
Standard No. 142 - Goodwill and Other Intaiigible Assets 
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(“SFAS No 142”), all components ofCioodwil1 are no longer to 
be amortized, but rather tested annually for any potential 
impainiicnt. During the fourth quarter of2002, the balance of 
goodwill was tcstcd for inipainiient. Based on a discounted cash 
tlow analysis, reflecting lower projected revenue streams for 
Joseph W. Roskos & C’o. in future periods, it was deteniiined 
that goodwill had iinpairrnent in the amount of $400,000. 
‘I’hercforc, the balance of‘gootlwill was written down by 
$400,000 during the fourth quarter or2002 to $2,405,000, As of 
June 30, 2003, the business of Joseph W. Koskos & C‘o. aiid 
substaiitially a11 ofits assets were sold and the balance of 
$I,OO5J)OO in goodwill was written olTas a part of the sale 
transaction. As o f  December 3 I ,  2004 and 2003, thcrc was no 
goodwill rccorrled on tlie books o f  tlie Corporation. 
18. Minimum Rcvulatory Capital Requirements: 
Rotli the Corporation and the Bank arc subject to various 
regulatory capital requirements, adtninistcrcd by the federal 
biinking agencies. Failure to meet ininirnuin capital 
requirements can initiate certain iiiaiidatory and possibly 
adtlitiorial discretionaiy actions by regulators that, if taken, 
could have a direct iiiaterial effect on the C:orporation’s and the 
Rank’s financial statements. h d c r  ciipitul adequacy guidelines 
aiid the regulatory framework for prompt corrective iiction, the 
C.’orporution und the Bank must meet specitic capital guidelines 
that involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities and 
certain off-balance-shcct items us calculated under regulatory 
accounting practices. l’hc capital amounts aiid classitications 
arc also subject to qualitative judgments hy the regulators about 
components, risk wcightiiigs aiid other factors. Prompt 
corrective action provisions urc not applicable to bank holding 
companies. 

As set forth in tlie following table, quantitative tnciisurcs have 
bccn cstablishcd to eiisiire capital adequacy ratios required of 
both the Coiporation and Rank, specitidly to detine the 
minimum rcspcctivc capital ratios as follows: total capital to 
total assets (the Icvcrugc ratio) or40/;,: Tier I capital to risk 
weighted assets of 4%) and ‘l’icr 11 Lapila1 to risk weighted assets 
ofX%. Both the Corporation’s and the kink’s Tier I1 capital 
ratios arc calculatcd by addiiig back a portion ofthe loatt loss 
reserve to the Tier I capital. Management believes, as of 
Dcceiiiber 3 I ,  2004 and 2003 that the C‘orporation and the Bank 
have met all capital adequacy rcqiiircmcnls to which they are 
subLject. Federal banking regulators have defined spcc ik  citpital 
categories, based on an institution’s capital ratios. The 
categories range froin a best of“wel1 capitalized ‘‘ to a worst of 
“critically under capitalized”. To be considered “well 
capitalized”, an institution iiiiist have a total (Tier I I )  capital 
ratio of IO% or better. Both the Corporation and the Bank have 
been classified as “well capitalized” for both periods ending 
December 3 1,2004 and 2003. 



Thc Corporation's and the Rank's actual capitill amounts and 
ratios as o f  Dcceinber 3 1,2004 and 2003 arc presented in Ihe 
following tablc: 

Minimrim Minimom 
IO bc Wrll 

Amounl Raim Airwuni M I u t  Amonnl - 
Deccmber 31,2004 

Total (Tier 11) Cnpltal 
to I h k  Wciglited Assets: 

Consolidated .................... $ 78,312 12.33% 8.0% NIA 
The Bank .......................... 69,XH6 11.09% $ 50,417 8.0% S 63,UZ I 

Tier I Cnpital to Risk 
Weighted Assets: 

Cu1liolld;Ited .................... 71,378 11.249/. 4.0'% NlA 
l'hc Hank .......................... 62,YS2 9.99% 25,209 4.0% 37,813 

'l'uinl (hpital io Total 
Assets (I.cverage k i t l o ) :  

C'onsolirlalctl .................... 71,238 10.43% 4.0% N/A 
~i~~ nank .......................... 62,813 4.26~" 27,122 4.0~" 33,903 

llecemhcr 31,2003 

Total (Ticr II) Cnpilal 
to Risk Weighted Asscts: 

Consolidatcd ................... $ 74,186 13.01% 8.0% N/A 
ThcHank .......................... 03,776 \I.1l)'X $ 45,118 8.0% $ 50,423 

Tier I C'apilal to Risk 
Wcighted Awcts: 

Ccmsolidnted .................... 67,508 11 .X4% 4.0% N/A 
...... 57,098 IO 12Yu 22,509 4.0"h 33,854 

'l'olnl (hpilal 10 Total 
Asacls (Ixveragc Katio): 

4.0% NIA 
23,954 4.0% 29,073 

19. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited): 
QII~IIPT% cndlng TOO4 ~. 

( I n  ilnrusands. crccpl pci A.ZIC dal;11 3/31 hlRO Y/30 12/31 

Ititcrest incuinc ................................................... $ 7,452 S 1,632 $ 7,969 S 8,328 
......................... 1,083 1,083 1,155 1,232 
......................... 6,369 6349 6,814 7.096 
......................... 187 188 187 33H 
......................... 4,635 3,239 3,159 3,064 

......................... $3,020 S 2,129 $2,109 $2,087 

h s i c  eaniings per conmlotl shnre ............... S 0.35 $ 0.25 S 11.25 $ 0.24 

Uilulcil carninps per coiimoii shnrc ............ Yi 0.34 S 0.24 $ 0.24 0.24 

Interest mcl)tiit' ................................................... 

Provision fur luat~ IcIsses .................................... 
liicorric hetbre iiicoiiic taxes mid 

discorninucd opcralioiir ................................... 
l t icni i ie from continuing opcra1ions ................... 
(Loas) iiicoiiie froiii discontinued 

c)uancrs Fnlllrlg 211(11 
3/31 bi30 1)/3(1 12/31 

$1.271 $ 7,204 $7.415 $ 7,305 
I ,OOO 1,090 I.000 1,060 
b.lXI (>,IO5 6,340 (1.236 

250 ?SO 167 K3 

4,414 4,191 4.421 4,288 
2,801 2.137 2,933 2,141 

(192) (im) i s0 54 

Nctincome .................................................. $2,hhO $ 809 $3,OK3 $2.795 
Basic c;imings per Coiniiioti share 

Income from continuing upcrations ............. R 0.33 $ 11.31 $ 0.34 $ 0.32 

...................................... $ (002) $ (0.22) $ 0.02 0.00 
Total carnings pel-coiiirrioll share ................ $ 0.31 $ 0.00 $ 0.36 $ 0.32 

Income h l n  continuing npcrations ............. $ 0.32 $ 0.1 I $ 0.33 Y; 0.3 I 

................. ~ ( 0 . 0 2 ) ~  (0.22) $ 0.02 $ 0.00 

Total camitigs per wirlrllnti share ............... $ 0.30 Y; 0.00 $ 0.35 R 0 31 

(Loss) income frcim tliscontintietl 

nilutcd cartlings per Coiiitntnn shart.: 

20. Condenscd Financial Statcrnents: 
The condensed finailcia1 statements of the Corporation (parent 
compitny only) as of Deccillber 3 I ,  2004 and 2003, and for each 
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004, are 
as follows: 
Condensed Balance Sheels 
(in thorrrmdsi 2004 2003 

Asscts: 
Cash ........ J 1,174 $ 3.076 

Premises and equipment. net .............. 

Investtncnt 
at cqtiily in net assets ...................... 66,665 60,773 

3,467 3,565 
Assets h m  disconlinucd 

Other aissels .... 543 614 
- ..................................... 

..................................... 
Total assets ................................... ... $ 71,849 Y; 68,028 

Liiibililies and shareholdcrs' equity: 
- - Mortgages payable ............................. 

.................................. Other lkabilitics 611 640 

hl I 646 ................................... 

authorized 25,000,000 s h a m  as 
of December 3 I ~ 2004 and 2003, 
respectively, ihsucd 11,J 72,582 shares 
and 1 I ,  135,232 shai-es as of 
Deceinhcr 3 I ,  2004 and 2003, 
1-espectivcly and outstainding 
8,597,958 shires and 8,670,974 shai-es 
as o f  Deceiiiher 3 I, 2004 and 2003, 
rcspcctively .......................................... . 11,172 11,135 

Piiid-in capi1al. in cxccss of par value ......... 7,112 6,487 
Accumulated olhcr comprehcnsivc income, 

Ketained earnings ....... 75,179 69,280 
Less coininon stock i n  treasury, 

at cost - 2,574,624 shares and 

Decetnhcr 3 I ,  2004 arid 2003 (21,937) ( 19,394) 

71,238 67,382 

nct of delkrrcd iiicoine taxcs ................ .... (288) (126) 

.................... 
'l'otal sharcholdcrs' equity -~ .............. 

cs iiiid sharcholders' equity ...... J 71,849 $ 68,028 

Condensed Statements of Income 
(in ~ h o i u i r r r t l ~ )  2004 2003 2002 
Dividends kom 'l'hc Bryn Mawr 

................................... $3,446 $ 3,465 $ 4,Xlh 
236 ome ........................... 236 236 

'Total operating incrrrnc ......................... 3,682 3,70 I 5,052 
...... 59 1 ................................... 472 459 Expenses -_ 

iiicoiiie oKsubsidiaries ............................. 3,210 3,242 4,461 
Iricornc befoir equity in undistributed 

................................... 6,055 7,954 6,060 

discontinucd operations ........................... 9,265 11,196 10,521 
Federal income lax hcncfit ......................... 80 7 6 121 
Incomc froin contiiiuiiig operations 9,345 1 1,272 10,642 

0 (1.916) (435) 

Net iiicoiiie ......... S 9,345 S 9,356 $ 10,207 ......................... 



Condensed Statements o f  Cash Flows 
(in rlrorr.rrrridlc) 2004 2003 2001 

Operating activities: 
Iiicoine froiii contiriuing 

Adjusttncnts to rccoiic 
opemli on s ............... $ 9,345 $11,272 $ 10,641 

iiicotiic to net cash pi-ovided 
by operating iictivities: 

Equity in undistributed income 
(losses) o f  whsidiarics ........................ (6,054) (7,954) (6,060) 

Other ..................................................... (19) (221) 1,916 

operiiting activities ........................ 3,370 3,195 6,596 

Invcstmcnt in Subsidiaries ..................... 162 I ,3 13 2,494 

investing activities ........................ 162 1,313 2,494 

1)eprcciatinn cxpcnsc ............................ 98 98 99 

Nct cash provided by 

Invcsting Activitics: 

Net cash provided by 

Financing activitics: 
Dividends paid ...................................... (3,446) (3,465) (3,3 17) 
Repayiiienl of inorlgage deht ................. 0 (513) (46) 
Repurchase o f  treasury stock ................. (2,585) (1,787) (6,183) 
Proceeds fi-om issuance 01' 

stock ................................................... 597 838 3,228 
Net cash used by 

Net cash ( i~sed) provided hy 

Nct cash provided by 

fiiiaiiciiig activities ........................ (5,434) (4,927) (6,3 18) ~, -.*_ 

continuing operations .................... (1,902) (419) 2,772 

discontinued operillions ................ 0 4x9 0 

.................................... (1,902) 70 2,772 
Change iii cash i i l d  cilsh 

beginning ol'year ..................................... 3,076 3,006 234 

S 1,174 $ 3,076 $ 3,006 

Thcsc statcmcnts should bc read in conjunction with the other 
notes related to the consolidatcd financial statcmciits. 

As a bank and trust cornpany subject to the Pennsylvania 
Banking Codc (thc "Banking Code") of 1965 as arneiided, the 
Hank is subject to Icgal liniitations as to [he amounl of 
dividcnds thitl can be paid to its shareholder, the Corporation. 
The Banking Codc rcstricts the payrncnt ofdividcnds by the 
Rank to the amount of its retained earnings. As of Dcccmbcr 31, 
2004, the Rank's retained earnings arnounted to $%,S 14,000. 
Therefore, as of December 3 I ,  2004, dividends available for 
payincnt to the C:orporation are limited to $S6,5 I4,OOO. Since 
thc primary source of dividend funding for the Corporation's 
dividend payments to its shereholders is the Bank's dividends, 
the Corporation is effectively limited as to thc atnount of 
dividends that it may pay to an amount equal to the limits 
placcd on thc Bank, as discussed above. 
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21. Scement Information: 

The Corporation's principal operating segments are structurcd around the financial scrviccs provided its custoincrs. The Banking 
scgineiit gathers deposits and miikcs fuiids available for loans to its cusloniers. The Ranks Wealth Management segment provides both 
corporate and individual investinent management and trust products and services. Thc Bank's Mortgage Banking segment originates 
and sclls rcsideiitial mortgage loans to thc sccoiiduy mortgage market. 

Segment information for the years ended Deceinbcr 3 1, 2004, 2003, and 2002, including income from continuing operations, is 

Net interest 

LCSS loan luss 
provision _... 

Net intcrcil 

luall luss 
provismii .... 

lllculllc , , , , , , , , , , , 

lllcolllc ancr 

Other inconic 
bets fur 

invcstmcnt 
nianagcmcnl 
;ind huul  
YcrVII:c\ ... 
scrwcc Lllarges 

,111 <le~'"slt 

Other fees and 
dCC(I"1llS . ......... 

bel'vlce 
chaiEcs .... ....... 
snlc of IUIlnS ....... 
of lnoltpagc 
servicing 
t'lglla ... . ....... . 

Net gain on 

Ne1 gain 011 salc 

Other operating 

iota1 othcr 
lllcolnc 

lllcolllc , , , , , , , , , , , , . 

Y 26.481 $ - 5 255 S 86 Y 26.828 

900 - .. 900 

25,5117 - zss nh 25,Y28 

2UY - 1,670 - 1.879 

34 - 2,886 - 2,Y20 

1,145 - - - 1,145 

1,547 112 667 2,326 

4.7h2 lll,ll87 4.668 667 20,184 

Othcr mpcn,ch 
Ssliiric,-rcXula t'... 8,78Y 3,674 904 200 11,567 
Siiliirieh-~~lhe~ ...... 942 322 171 1 1  1,446 
rrillyc henelits 1,Zhll 820 16s 52 4,ZY'l 

Otlier cq>erating 

Tcrldl arlllet 

Sognicnl pnrlil 
(loss) ....... , .. , 8,769 3,hSl  1,756 (81) 14.007 

lntcrscpmcnl 
(Ic"o"ucY) 

o'c,lpruLy ... 3,246 572 249 131 ~ J Y X  

enpellacs ... .. 5,343 1,046 1,678 440 x,5u7 

cxycnim ........ 2 1,sxn (r,434 3,167 834 12,n I S  

cnprnhca. .. I 66 181 - (347) - 
Sayrnrlil pmlit 
a1ier 
cliiiiiiiatiuiis...... $ 8.935 9 3,834 S 1,756 $ (428) S 14.097 

O h  of scp1llont 
yrutit (IO?\) 63% 27"/u 13% (3j% inn% 

Tulal ~ I V C L L  ML 
nccrrrihar.31 ..... 9 588,7S11 $ 865 Y: 88,446 UiA,ll8S S 682,946 

Dcprccmliun snd 
amoiiizalion, , S 1.050 S 142 $ XU S 104 S 1.376 

21,057 160 64 24,IXI 

.- '1.4~4 -- 9,481 

I00 2.2ZI - 2,420 

13 - 10,637 10,(,50 

- - 

1,406 451 637 2.587 

3,604 9,484 13.317 hR7 27,037 

8,274 7,665 1,743 314 13,596 
4 1') I13 833 I3 1.43R 

3.267 x79 195 52 4,353 
2,')94 617 258 210 4.085 

4.182 1,002 4,855 386 10.42s 

19,196 6.236 7,4X4 981 33.897 

K,:M 3,248 ';.IXX v x o )  17,321 

, 528.651 $ 067 R 69,636 S 5.5YI $ 6114.848 

i 2,848 R 22 R 5 2  $ 3 $ 2,925 

23.0'17 - 2nn 31 23,928 

I ,K22 - - -  1,822 

235 - 1,512 - -  1,747 

6 .. . Y.047 - - 9.653 

1.567 3 351 6 l X  2.539 

j.63u n,623 i i , s i o  618 24.381 

7 .~74 1,464 1.088 281 I 2,707 
1,9xs ~ Y I  692 in 2,L>7x 
2,451 706 88 sn 3.2Y5 
3,onh 5 8 0  172 316 4,154 

4,77X 8YI  2.859 462 X,YOO 

10.174 5.~32 4 .8~0 1,119 ??.I24 

7,153 2.h0I 6,811 (47U) lk185 

6485,717 R 1,117 $86,288 $4.305 3 577.427 

1 1.046 6 176 R 7 1  S I O X  $ 1,361 

RMT Mortgitgc Company, a division of the Bank and Bryn Mawr Settlement Scrviccs, Inc. have been aggregated in Mortgage 
Ranking. 

Bryn Mawr Rank Corporiition, Insurance Counsellors of Bryn Mawr, Iiic., and Bryn Mawr tinmcc Inc. have all been aggregated in 
All Others. 
* Re( I L I I  ~ified fur ( orri~trrtrtivc~p11rl)o~i'~ 
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